ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL AGENDA - MARCH 22, 2021

Electronic Meeting
Public Access:

City website at https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos
Facebook Live at www.Facebook.com/CityofRoseburg

Comments on Agenda Items and Audience Participation can be provided in person electronically via Zoom.
See next page for instructions on how to participate in virtual meetings.

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting

1.  Call to Order — Mayor Larry Rich
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call
Beverly Cole Bob Cotterell Sheila Cox Alison Eggers
Sheri Moothart Brian Prawitz Patrice Sipos Andrea Zielinski
4. Mayor Reports
A. Child Abuse Prevention Month Proclamation
B. National Library Week Proclamation

C. Budget Committee Appointments

5. Commission Reports/Council Ward Reports
A. Parks and Recreation Commission Appointment

6. Audience Participation —In Person via Zoom/See Information on the Reverse

7. Special Presentation
A. Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan Presentation

8. Consent Agenda
A. Minutes of March 8, 2021 Meeting
B. OLCC Additional Off-Premises Sales — Hacienda Vieja Mexican Restaurant

9. Department Items
A. West Avenue Water Main Extension Bid Award Recommendation, 19WAO04

B. Contract Award — Construction Management Services West Avenue Water Main
Extension — 19WA04

C. Harrison St. - Harvard Ave. Storm Drain Improvements Bid Award Recommendation,
20PW21

D. 2021 Pavement Management Program — Phase | Bid Award Recommendation,
21PWO01

E. Resident Observation Master Contract Award

10. Items from Mayor, City Council and City Manager
11. Adjourn

12. Executive Session ORS 192.660(2)
Informational

A. City Manager Activity Report



AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION INFORMATION

The Roseburg City Council welcomes and encourages participation by citizens at all our meetings, with
the exception of Executive Sessions, which, by state law, are closed to the public. To allow Council to
deal with business on the agenda in a timely fashion, we ask that anyone wishing fo address the Council
follow these simple guidelines:

To provide comment during virtual meetings, contact the City Recorder by phone (541-492-
6866) or email (info@cityofroseburg.org) by 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. Please indicate at
that time if ADA accommaodations are requested. Provide your name, address, phone number and
which item on the agenda you wish to speak. You will then be provided with a link and phone
number to the Council meeting. Log or call in prior to the start of the meeting using the link or
phone number provided.

e When accessing the meeting through the ZOOM link, you will be asked to enter your email and
name. After entering your email and name, click “Join Webinar” to join the meeting as an attendee.
* When accessing the meeting through the phone, call the number provided.
All attendees will be held in a “waiting room” until called on to speak.

Persons addressing the Council must state their name and address for the record, including
whether or not they are a resident of the City of Roseburg. All remarks shall be directed to the
entire City Council. The Council reserves the right to delay any action requested until they are
fully informed on the matter.

TIME LIMITATIONS

With the exception of public hearings, each speaker will be allotted a total of 6 minutes. At the 4-minute
mark, a warning bell will sound at which point the Mayor will remind the speaker there are only 2 minutes
left. All testimony given shall be new and not have been previously presented to Council.

A total of 30 minutes shall be allocated for the “Audience Participation” portion of the meeting.

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the agenda may do so when Council addresses that item.

Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the Consent Agenda, or on a matter not on the evening’s
agenda, may do so under “Audience Participation.”

PROVIDING COMMENTS

If you join the meeting via Zoom, please select the “raise hand” button when the Mayor calls for speakers.
You will be moved out of the “waiting room” to speak. After you have provided your comments, you will
be moved back into the “waiting room”.

If you join the meeting on the phone number you provided to the City Recorder, you will be brought into
the meeting to speak when the Mayor calls for speakers, then moved back to the “waiting room”.

If a matter presented to Council is of a complex nature, the Mayor or a majority of Council may:

1. Postpone the public comments to “ltems From Mayor, Councilors or City Manager” after completion
of the Council’s business agenda, or

2. Schedule the matter for continued discussion at a future Council meeting.

The Mayor and City Council reserve the right to respond to audience comments after the audience
participation portion of the meeting has been closed.

The City Council meetings are on Facebook Live and available to view on the City website the next day
at: https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos

The full agenda packet is available on the City’s website at: htips://cityofroseburg. org/your-
governement/mayor-council/council-agendas.




MAYOR REPORTS A
03/22/2021



MAYOR REPORTS B
03/22/2021



MAYOR REPORTS C

03/22/2021
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY
BUDGET COMMITEE APPOINTMENT
Meeting Date: March 22, 2021 Agenda Section: Mayor Reports
Department: Administration Staff Contact: Mayor Larry Rich
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6866

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY
There are two vacancies on the Budget Committee which need to be filled.

BACKGROUND
A. Council Action History. n/a

B. Analysis.

The Municipal Code requires someone residing in the city limits to fill current vacancies.
Staff has advertised the availability of the positions on this Committee through the local
news media, City’s website and social media multiple times since the vacancies occurred.
Two new applications have now been received from Ms. Kelly Peter and Mr. Stephen
Krimetz.

C. Financial/Resource Considerations. n/a

D. Timing Considerations.
It is recommended an appointment be confirmed as soon as practical.

COUNCIL OPTIONS
The City Council has the option to appoint Ms. Peter and Mr. Krimetz to the Budget
Committee or direct Staff to continue soliciting for more applications.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Pursuant to the Municipal Code, Staff has not made a recommendation regarding an
appointment as that responsibility lies with the Mayor.

SUGGESTED MOTION
“I MOVE TO APPOINT MS. KELLY PETER AND MR. STEPHEN KRIMETZ TO THE
BUDGET COMMITTEE.”

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment #1 — Ms. Kelly Peter’s Application
Attachment #2 — Mr. Stephen Krimitz Application


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

MAYOR REPORTS C
ATTACHMENT #1



MAYOR REPORTS C
ATTACHMENT #1



MAYOR REPORTS C
ATTACHMENT #2



MAYOR REPORTS C
ATTACHMENT #2



COUNCIL REPORTS A
03/22/2021

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION APPOINTMENT

Meeting Date: March 22, 2021 Agenda Section: Council Reports
Department: Administration  Staff Contact: Koree Tate, Management Assistant
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6866

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY
There is one vacancy on the Parks & Recreation Commission which needs to be filled.

BACKGROUND
A. Council Action History. n/a

B. Analysis.

The Municipal Code requires someone residing in the city limits to fill this vacancy. Staff
has advertised the availability of a position on this Commission through the local news
media, City’s website and social media twice since the vacancy occurred. Two
applications have now been received from Mr. Mike Baker and Mr. Tobiah Mogavero.

C. Financial/Resource Considerations. n/a

D. Timing Considerations.
It is recommended an appointment be confirmed as soon as practical.

COUNCIL OPTIONS
The City Council has the option to appoint one of the applicants to the Parks & Recreation
Commission or direct Staff to continue soliciting for more applications.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Pursuant to the Municipal Code, Staff has not made a recommendation regarding an
appointment as that responsibility lies with the Commission Chair and the Mayor.

SUGGESTED MOTION
“I MOVE TO APPOINT TO THE PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION.”

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment #1 — Mr. Mike Baker’s Application
Attachment #2 — Mr. Tobiah Mogavero’s Application


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

COMMISSION REPORTS A
ATTACHMENT #1



COMMISSION REPORTS A
ATTACHMENT #1



COMMISSION REPORTS A
ATTACHMENT #2

CITY OF ROSEBURG COMMISSION APPLICATION

Application for Appointment to: PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION

Parks & Recreation Commission meets at 8:15 a.m. on the first Wednesday of each month to
consider and prepare long and short-range operation and management programs for the park
system, investigate means of economic operations, consider/evaluate rules for park usage,
establish operation parameters for the Stewart Park Golf Course, including long range goals,
maintenance standards, financing and capital improvement. Applicants must either reside within
the City.

Name: MOgavero Tobiah
Last First
Home Address: 1920 NW Lynwood St., Roseburg, OR 97471
Street Zip Code
Phone Number: 435-210-0509 Cell Phone: 435-210-0509

Email Address: tobiahm78@yahoo.com
Oceupation Environmental Programs MV, Roseburg VA

Place of Employment

Business Address 913 NW Garden VaIIev BlVd-, ROS 541-440-1000 x4

Phone
1. Do you reside within the Roseburg city limits? Yes|U No
2. Do you own property or a business within the City? Yes | U No
3. How did you learn about this vacancy?
Newspaper|[] Social Media City Website Word of Mouth

Other| [Please Specify:

4. The Municipal Code requires a minimum attendance rate of 75% each calendar year.

Can you meet this requirement? Yes|U No

5. What experience/training do you have that qualifies you for this particular appointment
and what specific contributions do you hope to make?

Personal experience includes: 20 years of environmentally related work such as trail construction and
maintenance, community development, tourism; expedition guiding, timber sale planning, wildlife
habitat management, and heavy equipment operation within federal forest lands; a Bachelor's degree
in Environmental Studies and a Master's of Science in Environmental management. Current job
duties include the planning, analysis and management of the following environmental programs:
natural resources, waste water, storm water; pesticides, hazardous waste, underground storage tanks



COMMISSION REPORTS A
ATTACHMENT #2

6. Please give a brief description of your involvement in community groups and activities.

Involvement includes a member of Source One Serenity veterans community group (trail maintenance,
outdoor activities and community outreach); the co-chair of the Roseburg VA Green Environmental
Management Systems Committee (regulatory compliance, project planning and analysis).

Activities include: landscaping, mountain biking, hiking, fly-fishing, running and yoga.

7. Please list community topics of particular concern to you that relate to this
appointment.

The generation and management of waste streams within city parks;

The sustainable development of city property to accommodate multiple use;
Community outreach;

Community event planning.

8. Please list your reasons for wishing to be appointed.

| desire appointment to this position because | am a highly motivated to sustainably develop the
community. | love hard work and collaboration with others who have vastly different ideas. | thrive on
adversity and the challenges of winning the hearts and minds of numerous stakeholders. | believe
Roseburg is ripe for gaining personal and professional experience in land development and stewardship.
| respect and value the longstanding traditions established within this timber community. With my
experience | see these traditions preserved while assisting to add an abundance of new recreation
opportunities, right here within city limits.

7 TN A 2/6/2021

Applicant Signaturé Date

Return completed application to the City Administration Office, 900 SE Douglas,
Roseburg, OR 97470 or e-mail to info@cityofroseburg.org.

If applicable, you will be advised when the City Council will conduct interviews of the
applicants. Plan to be present to discuss your application with the Council. The Council
will endeavor to make its selection at that meeting; however, it may wish to take more
time to deliberate before making the appointment.

Information on this form is public information.
Thank you for your expression of interest in serving the community.

Note: City of Roseburg employees may not serve on an elected body.
SUBMIT FORM




SPECIAL PRESENTATION A
03/22/2021

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

DOWNTOWN PARKING ASSESSMENT AND PLAN PRESENTATION

Meeting Date: March 22, 2021 Agenda Section: Special Presentation
Department: Community Development Staff Contact: Stuart Cowie
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6750

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY
The purpose of this memo is to present Council with the Downtown Parking Assessment
and Plan.

BACKGROUND

A. Council Action History.
April 27, 2020 — Council authorized termination of the Park Smart contract with the
Downtown Roseburg Association.

B. Analysis.

On July 23, 2020, the City entered into a contract with Rick Williams Consulting to have
them perform a parking assessment for the downtown area and Laurelwood
neighborhood. The attached document is a copy of the draft assessment and plan. The
plan identifies guiding principles in which a future parking program could operate. It also
outlines specific parking management strategies that may be implemented over an
immediate, short-term, mid-term, or long-term time frame. Each strategy is classified
within one of the following criteria: Management and Administration, Policy and Code,
Downtown Parking Operations, Residential Parking Operations, Communications and
Outreach. Attached to the plan are five appendices that helped to shape the guiding
principles and strategy recommendations provided within the plan. Each appendix acts
as a white paper on the following subjects: Parking Inventory and Field Assessment,
Review and Assessment of Policy and Code, Summary of Guiding Principles, Parking
Management & Financial Review, and Summary of Public Outreach.

The consultant team worked with a Stakeholder Advisory Committee (SAC), made up of
downtown property and business owners, and Laurelwood residents. The SAC met over
the course of four work sessions to review work being completed by the consultant and
provide feedback and input. The work of the SAC was also informed by a strong outreach
effort to the community, comprised of an online survey and two public open houses.


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

SPECIAL PRESENTATION A
03/22/2021

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.

Payment to Rick Williams Consulting has occurred throughout the project as outlined
within the terms of the contract. Future financial considerations will be evaluated based
upon the implementation of strategies identified within the plan. These financial impacts
will be evaluated prior to them being put into place as specific action items.

D. Timing Considerations.

The contract with Rick Williams Consulting expires April 1, 2021. Staff is looking for
Council to accept the plan and staff will begin implementing strategies recommended
within the plan.

COUNCIL OPTIONS

Council could choose to:

1. Accept the Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan; or

2. Not accept the Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan; or
3. Request additional information.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends Council accept the Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan.

SUGGESTED MOTION
“I move to accept the Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan.”

ATTACHMENTS
Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan



2021

Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan
(COUNCIL DRAFT: March 15, 2021)

Prepared For:

Prepared By:


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/
ktate
Stamp

ktate
Stamp

ktate
Stamp


Acknowledgments

Stakeholder Advisory Committee

Dick Baltus

Ray Bartrum

Carole Cohen

Eva Marie Chasteen
Paul Bentley

Susie Johnston-Forte
Misty Ross

Brian Prawitz

Ashley Hicks
Stuart Cowie

City Management Team

Stuart Cowie
Nikki Messenger
Ron Harker
Amy Sowa

Eric Johnson

Downtown Professional Service Provider (AHM Brands)
Downtown Restaurant Owner (Old Soul Pizza)

Downtown Resident (1130 SE Cass)

Downtown Restaurant (Little Brothers Pub)

Downtown Professional Service Provider (Paul Bentley Architect)
Roseburg Town Center/ Downtown Roseburg Association
Downtown Personal Service Owner (Hair Garage Barber/Salon)
City Council & Laurelwood Resident & Downtown Professional Service (BP
Media)

City Council (Former Downtown Business Owner)

City Staff (Community Development Director)

Community Development Director
City Manager

Finance Director

City Recorder

Communications Specialist

Consultant Team - Rick Williams Consulting

Rick Williams
Owen Ronchelli
Pete Collins
William Reynolds
Connor Williams
Michael Vasbinder

Lead Project Manager

Vice President

Vice President

Senior Associate

Data Manager/Field Technician
Field Coordinator/Research



Table of Contents

Acknowledgments .......ooeenneeenreenreeens

Table of Contents......ieverserennas
1.

2.

Stakeholder Advisory Committee
City Management Team ...

Consultant Team - Rick Williams Consulting

Introduction.....ceenneeeeeeneeens 1
1.1 THE PTOCESS ...coreeeeeeeeseerees e sees e sees s eses s as s s s8R R R R AR E SRR e s 1
1.2 Key Findings and Recommendations of the Stakeholder Advisory Committee.........mremrerserersneeeninens 2
1.3 Where to Start — A Guide to IMpPlemMentation ... s 2
1.4 PLAN COSES . rrureerureseersreeseeeseesseessseesssessseesssesssesessessssessseeese s esse s8R RS R R £ R R R AR R R 2
1.5 Consideration fOr CityY COUNCIL ... sssssssssss s s s sssss s ss s bbb snsans 3

GUIAINE PIINCIPLES covereeeeeereeseeeseeseeesseesseseseesssessseessseesssessseesssessseesssess s ess e es s es s e8RS RS R 4
2.1 20 00 L 0] O 4
2.2 Capacity Management
2.3 Information Systems (Supply and Customer-based)

2.4 Code and Regulation
2.5 FINANCIAL VIADIIIEY couvevveeeeeeeeienrseesr s sssess s s s s s sss e ssssssssssssssssssssssessssses s sssesssssssesssesssssesssssesssanens 4
2.6 Roles and Coordination 4

Parking Management STEatEZIES ... eeeeseerseesssessessssesssesssssssssesssesssssssssssssesssessssessssasssessssessssesssesssssssssssssasssssssassssessss 5
3.1 Immediate (0 = 12 MONEIS) .t isseeesesssse e s s s bbb bbbt 7

P1 — Adopt Parking COAE UPAALES ....ccuurerurermreressssessssessssesssssesssssessssssssssssssssesssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssesssssesssssesssssessssessss 7

P2 - Formalize GUIding PriNCIPIES ....ooeeerereeesseessseesseesssesssssssseesssesssesssssssssssssesssssssssssssesssessssessssesssesssssssssssssessssssssassasessss 8

P3 = Define DiStriCt BOUNAATIES .c.vueuieurcrreeeeeeecsseisseesssssssessssessssssssss s sssesssssssssssssesssss s sssasssessssessssssssesssssssssssssassssssusassssssans 9

M1 - Ongoing Daily MAnageIMENT .......correrrereesressssesssssesssssssssssessssssssssssssssesssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssesssssesssssssssssssssanans 12

M2 - Establish Downtown Parking WoTKing GIOUD ......ceeereseereesseessseessesssessssessssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssseses 13

M3 — Consolidate PArKing PEITNES .....oceeeiesseersseessesesssessesssesssssssssssssesssesssssssssesssessssessssssssesssssssssssssesssesssssssssesssesssssssseses 14

M4 - Review Court Procedures for Citations 15

M5 - Track Parking Revenues and Expenses 16

M6 - Publish Annual Parking Performance Status Report 17

M7 - Initiate Parking Vendor CONTIACE ......orrerrereesssesssssesssssessssssssssessssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssesssssesssssesssssesssasessssnens 18

D1 - Redefine and Time-Limit the DOWNEOWI COTE ......ueeueeerrereernseessesssseesssesssesssssssssssssesssssssssssssesssesssssssssesssesssssssseses 20

D2 - Define Consistent Time Limits in and around DOWNEOW ......ceeeeeeeemeessesseessssssssessesssessssssssssssesssssssseses 21
3.2 ShOTt-Term (12 — 24 MONEIS) .vcoicireesneenressneisesssssesssesssss s sssssssssssss s ssssss s ssssss st s s bsssssssssssssssssssesssssssases 23

C1 - Install Consistent Public Parking Signage in Downtown 23

C2 - Improve Parking Information 0N WEDSILE .......eeeenmreseerseessssssssessesssesssssssssssssessssssssssssssssesssssssssssssasssssssseses 24

P4 — EXPlOTe FUNAING OPLIONS covurreresrerusrerserersesesssesssssesssssesssssessssssssssssssssssssssesssssesssssesssssessssssssssssssssesesssesssssesssssesssssesssssessssnens 25

M8 - Implement Routine Data Collection 28




D3 - Calibrate Parking Rates to Demand .29

R1 - Install Consistent Signage in LaUrelWo0d ... eeeeeeenniesnserseessssssssessesssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssseses 30

R2 - Implement License Plate-Based Permitting in Residential Areas ........ecnmeneernseessssseesssessesesssessenes 31

R3 - Evaluate Residential Permit Rates .32

R4 - Reevaluate Need for No Parking Signage in Laurelwood........eennieneeneessissesseessesssssesssssssesssssseses 33

3.3 Mid-Term (24 — 48 MONTNS) ..ttt seersesssessssses s es s b es bbb bR 34

D4 - Assess ADA Compliance in City-OwWned FaCilities ......oeineninssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesns 34

C3 - Rename Public Off-Street Facilities .35

34 LoNgG-Term (48+ MONTNS) co.uuiurereersiers s s s SpsRs e a b ps 36

D5 - Implement Parking Garage IMProVEMENTS ........eeeeeemreseesmeessesssseesssesssessssessssesssesssssssssssssesssesssssssssesssessssssseses 36

D6 - Implement Surface Lot Improvements 37

D7 - Implement On-Street Paid Parking in Highest Demand Areas ... 38

4. SUMMATLY .o ssssssssssses 41
Appendix A: WP #1 - Parking Inventory and Field Assessment

Appendix B: WP #2 - Review and Assessment of Policy and Code B

Appendix C: WP #3 - Summary of GUIding PIinCIPLES ... eeeeeereeeseeseceseesseesseessesssessssessessseesssssssessssssssssssssssssssssessssssseees C

Appendix D: WP #4 - Parking Management & Financial Review D

Appendix E: WP #5 - Summary of Public Outreach FINdings ......c.cueeeeeesssssesssessssesssssssssessssssssssssssssssesess E

*Cover Photo Credit: Travel Southern Oregon



Downtown Parking Assessment

1. Introduction

Rick Williams Consulting (RWC) was retained by the City of Roseburg to examine parking management
solutions for both the on- and off-street systems in its downtown and adjacent Laurelwood Neighborhood.
Through the stakeholder process, stated desired outcomes for the public parking system included:

Emphasize customer parking - as the public parking system is prioritized to serve customers.
Consistent - in format, messaging, and design.

Sustainable - both financially and as it supports City goals.

Equitable - by ensuring fairness and balance in regulation, affordability, and management

Convenient - easy to navigate and interact with and take advantage of downtown’s walkable
environment to connect to stores, restaurant, business, and recreational destinations.

o Flexible - to anticipate and respond to increasing demand for access to the downtown.

e (learly marked - clearly communicate how and where to find appropriate and available parking; make
parking understandable.

To achieve this, revisions will need to occur within the municipal code to add clarity and guidance toward
meeting downtown'’s parking vision. The City will need to strategically pursue upgrades to existing
technologies and infrastructure (e.g., meters, signage and permit systems, and performance monitoring and
reporting). A new and revamped enforcement program will provide reasonable oversight to the City’s public
parking system to encourage compliance and help facilitate a successful parking program.

The strategies recommended in this report were developed under the direction of the Parking
Stakeholder Advisory Committee.

1.1 The Process

The consultant team worked with the Downtown
Stakeholder Advisory Committee (SAC) over the course
of four (4) work sessions to understand desired
outcomes, as well as current challenges and
opportunities that clarified desired outcomes. The work
of the SAC was also informed by a strong outreach effort
to the community, comprised on an online survey and
two public Open Houses (held Thursday, November 18th,
2020 and Wednesday, February 17t, 2021). Detailed
information about the system was also compiled and
presented to stakeholders. This included a complete
inventory of public on and off-street parking in the
downtown and the Laurelwood neighborhood and a thorough on-the-ground field assessment by the
consultant in August 2020.

Several important topics were researched by the consultant for the SAC and summarized in a series of White
Papers. Topics included:

White Paper #1: Parking Inventory and Field Assessment (August 2020)
White Paper #2: Review and Assessment of Policy and Code (September 2020)
White Paper #3: Summary of Guiding Principles (October 2020)

White Paper #4: Parking Management and Financial Review (November 2020)
White Paper #5: Summary of Public Outreach Findings (February 2021)

Each of the five White Papers used available data and on-the-ground observations, incorporated research
from industry best practices, and input from the public online survey and Open Houses. Outcomes and
recommendations were tailored to Roseburg’s unique parking and access environment and validated through
the Stakeholder Advisory Committee work sessions. We believe the recommendations that follow will

Page |1
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

improve the efficiency and usability of the existing supply and set a foundation necessary to address future
growth.

The Stakeholder Advisory Committee encourages the community to access the website and examine the
extensive research that supports the strategies recommended in this report. Full copies of each White Paper
are provided as appendices to this Report.

1.2 Key Findings and Recommendations of the Stakeholder Advisory Committee
Upon completion of this process, the Stakeholder Advisory Committee came to the following conclusions:

e Implementation of the recommended strategies should be a priority for downtown.

e The City will need to lead the effort to initiate these solutions, in partnerships with private partners
and the broader community.

e Recommendations will need to be strategically phased in an immediate, near, mid, and long-term
format.

e Cost of new programs likely exceed existing staff and budget capacity, thus the need for strategic phasing
and evaluation of funding options.

e There is a need for a continuing role of the current SAC to review implementation of
recommendations, serve as a sounding board and facilitate reasonable forward movement.

e The outcome of plan implementation will be a more vibrant downtown, supporting existing businesses
and commercial, residential /housing growth.

1.3 Where to Start - A Guide to Implementation

The strategies recommended here (see Section 3) are extensive and will require levels of time and resources
that are not currently in place. Key immediate strategies that will catalyze the plan for success include:

1) Formalize policy and municipal code recommendations necessary to establishing a new framework
for parking management (see Appendices), which includes new Guiding Principles established for
this Plan, establishing 85% Occupancy Rule as the standard for decision-making and refining new
parking management district boundaries for Downtown and the Laurelwood neighborhood.

2) Continue the role of the existing Downtown SAC as a reconstituted Downtown Parking Work Group.
3) Initiate a new contract for enforcement and parking management with a third-party vendor.
These initial strategies should be completed within 12 months of implementation of this plan.

1.4 Plan Costs

The Plan is formatted in implementation increments of Immediate, Short-term, Mid-term and Long-term
duration.

Immediate Term

It is envisioned that strategies that occur in the Immediate period (0 - 12 months) will come at little or no
cost to the parking fund. However, this is based on the premise that these strategies can be developed and
completed using existing City staff time and input from a new volunteer Downtown Parking Work Group
(PWG), serving in an advisory capacity.

Short-Term

Short-term strategies (12 - 24 months) include estimated costs of up to $61,000 for new on-street time limit
signage downtown, to $18,225 in the Laurelwood neighborhood. This assumes a cost of $600 per affected
block face, providing signage to cover the current 822 stalls in the Downtown Parking Management District
and 243 stalls in Laurelwood. Up to $5,000 has been assumed for a new logo and up to $7,500 for website
improvements. An additional $20,000 to $25,000 would be necessary for data collection efforts to support

Page | 2
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

and inform other Mid and Long-term strategies. Short-term strategies related to pricing permits and/or
citations would provide new revenue that would off-set some of these costs. While the placement of new
signage on-street is a one-time cost, data collection efforts would be an ongoing program expense.

Mid-Term

Mid-term strategies (24 - 48 months) are estimated at $12,000 - $16,000, to provide new identifier signage at
the City's off-street facilities.

Long-Term

Long-term strategies are estimated to be in the range of $320,000 or more. The highest proportion of this
estimate would go to funding a new parking meter system for the downtown (i.e., smart meter technology).
The number estimated here assumes replacement of the 262 stalls currently metered in the downtown.
Where such meters would be placed and in what sequence would be informed in short and mid-term strategy
work related to new district boundary definitions, occupancy data collection, and revenue/expense analyses
assessing financial feasibility. This work would be coupled with identification of other funding sources (that
might be necessary if meter revenue does not cover equipment costs).

1.5 Consideration for City Council

Downtown Roseburg is an active and vital commercial and customer district that will experience increasing
pressure on its parking supply as desired growth occurs. This will require more strategic coordination of the
parking system.

As City Council considers approval of this plan, key policy questions to consider include:

1) Whatis the City’s role in, and priority for, managing parking?

2) What are the implications of this plan on the organization, administration, and daily operation of the
City’s current parking program?

3) Whatresources can be leveraged, with parking funds, to support implementation of
recommendations within this plan?

The Stakeholder Advisory Committee believes this report is based on a solid understanding of how the
parking system is currently functioning and makes recommendations that will help Roseburg continue to
flourish. These recommendations are sensitive to the historic, pedestrian-friendly nature of downtown and
recognize the importance of economic growth. The report also provides a basis for community discussion on
enhancing the downtown parking system and experience. The information and recommendations in this
report are intended to complement broader transportation and economic development efforts.

Page | 3
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

2. Guiding Principles

Strategies presented for consideration are intended to accomplish specific
outcomes and support specific user priorities that were identified through the
parking study process. The Stakeholder Advisory Committee consolidated these
priorities into a formal set of Guiding Principles?. Success of any recommended
strategies will be measured against these statements of priority, which include:

2.1 Priority Users

e On-Street System (Downtown): The most convenient on-street parking
will be preserved for the priority user: the short-term customer trip2

e On-Street System (Adjacent Neighborhoods): The most convenient on-
street parking will be preserved for the priority user: the resident and their guests.

o Off-Street System: Coordinate public off-street parking to meet employee and residential demand,
balanced with the need for customers and visitors seeking a longer term stay option.

2.2 Capacity Management

e Optimize Utilization: Manage the public parking system using the 85% Occupancy Standard to inform
and guide decision-making3.

2.3 Information Systems (Supply and Customer-based)

e Monitor and Report Utilization: Performance measurements and reporting will be used to facilitate
decision-making.

e Product Quality: The public on- and off-street parking systems will be safe, reliable, user-friendly, and
attractive. They will complement the quality of downtown and attract visitors and customers.

e System Communications: Communications will be uniform and strategically coordinated.

2.4 Code and Regulation

e Code & Regulation: The City’s parking code should be supportive of user priorities and reflect these
Guiding Principles.

2.5 Financial Viability

o Fiscal Stewardship: All public parking operations should strive to be financially sustainable.

2.6 Roles and Coordination

e Primary Role (City of Roseburg): In the Downtown, the City is primarily responsible for supplying
parking to customers, using its off-street system to balance demand of other users. In adjacent
neighborhoods, the City will ensure primary access to residents and their guests.

o Stakeholder Support: Ensure that a representative body of affected private and public constituents
routinely informs decision-making.

1 The full draft of the Guiding Principles document is available in Appendix C.

2 Customer is defined here as anyone using businesses downtown by a transient trip - this includes shopping, eating, entertainment,
recreating, and visiting downtown amenities. As such, a customer can be a shopper, tourist, or local resident visiting the downtown.
3 Cars currently move and circulate well in the downtown. The 85% Rule will help to manage growth and support priority users as
demands change and conflicts emerge.

Page | 4
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

3. Parking Management Strategies

The solutions outlined below further support recommendations that grew from discussions among the City,
the Stakeholder Advisory Committee, and based on input received through the public outreach process. The
proposed parking strategies are generally organized in the following stages to guide implementation:

Immediate: 0 - 12 months
Short-Term: 12 - 24 months
Mid-Term: 24 - 48 months
Long-Term: 48+ months

However, the implementation schedule is flexible, and the order of projects may be changed as opportunities
and resources are identified. For those same reasons, timelines can be accelerated or extended.

Each strategy is also classified within one of the following categories:

e M: Management and Administration
e P:Policy and Code

e D: Downtown Parking Operations

¢ R:Residential Parking Operations

e C: Communications and Outreach

Where possible, planning-level cost estimates are provided (see Table 1). Final costs would require
additional evaluation, scoping, and estimating. All strategies will require a level of support, coordination,
commitment, and resource identification that goes well beyond what is currently in place.

Page | 5
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Table 1: Task Cost Summary Table*

Immediate (0 -12 months)

Resource/Cost Estimate

P1 - Adopt Parking Code Updates

P2 - Formalize Guiding Principles

P3 - Define District Boundaries

M1 - Restructure Existing Staff Time

M2 - Establish Downtown Parking Working Group

M3 - Consolidate Parking Permits

M4 - Review Court Procedures for Citations

M5 - Track Parking Revenues and Expenses

M6 - Publish Annual Parking Performance Status Report
M7 - Initiate Parking Vendor Contract

D1 - Redefine the "Downtown Core" Boundary

D2 - Define Consistent Time Limits in and around Downtown

Staff time

Staff time

Staff/PWG time

Revenue neutral

Staff/PWG time

Staff time/new revenue potential
Staff time

Staff time, then to vendor contract
Staff time, then to vendor contract
Staff time, then, at minimum, revenue neutral
Staff /PWG time

Staff /PWG time

Estimated Costs: Staff Time Only

Short-term (12 - 24 months)

Resource/Cost Estimate

C1 - Install Consistent Public Parking Signage in Downtown

C2 - Improve Parking Information on Website

P4 - Explore Funding Options

M8 - Implement Routine Data Collection

D3 - Calibrate Parking Rates to Demand

R1 - Install Consistent Signage in Laurelwood

R2 - Implement License Plate-Based Permitting in Residential Areas
R3 - Evaluate Residential Permit Rates

R4 - Reevaluate Need for No Parking Signage in Laurelwood

$5,000 New logo/Brand

$49,000 - $61,000 @ $600 per block face - signs
$5,000 - $7,500

Staff/PWG/Council time

$20,000 - $25,000

Revenue positive

$14,580 - $18,225. See Strategy C1

In vendor contract - See Strategy M7

Revenue neutral

To City Traffic Engineer

Estimated Costs: $94,580 - $117,725 (potentially reduced by additional revenue)

Mid-term (24 - 48 months)

Resource/Cost Estimate

D4 - Assess ADA Compliance in City-Owned Facilities
C3 - Rename Public Off-Street Facilities

See Strategies D5 and D6
$12,000 - $16,000

Estimated Costs: $12,000

-$16,000

Long-term (48+ months)

Resource/Cost Estimate

D5 - Implement Parking Garage Improvements
D6 - Implement Surface Lot Improvements
D7 - Implement On-Street Paid Parking in Highest Demand Areas

$18,000 - $22,000
Cost of 3rd party assessment or by Public Works

$295,000 (@ 262 stalls metered)

Estimated Costs: $300,000+

4 All costs are provided only as estimates to facilitate discussion and to provide a framework for future decision-making.

Page | 6
March 2021



http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

3.1 Immediate (0 - 12 months)

P1 - Adopt Parking Code Updates

Action Statement

Review and implement as necessary the parking code recommendations outlined in White Paper #2
(Appendix B) as they relate to Title 8 of the City’s Municipal Code. This will ensure that the parking code
both informs and facilitates the parking priorities and desired outcomes of the Guiding Principles.

Strategy Description

White Paper #2 (Appendix B) provides a detailed outline of potential code revisions that clarify the intent
of specific regulations, cleans up inconsistencies between sections and provides for clearer standards and
processes for decision-making in Title 8 of the municipal code (e.g., fee and rate policies, types of parking,
permit systems and roles of the City Council and City Manager in the on-going or day-to-day decision-making
for parking management). It is recommended that City staff and legal counsel initiate an internal process to
fully evaluate the policy and code related recommendations in White Paper #2 and move forward with those
deemed appropriate to improving the functioning of the code and the efficiency and success of parking
management in the downtown.

Several areas of note in the white paper (with recommendations for revision) include:

e Policy Guidance - Purpose and Intent
e Policy Guidance - Fee and Rate Policy
Definitions

City Manager Powers

Criteria for Administrative Action
Meter regulations and legal time limits
Special parking permits

Order of Implementation

Immediate
e Initiate code review
e Complete internal City presentations
e Public process and Council adoption

Estimated Costs

There should be minimal costs associated with this strategy other than staff time required for necessary
policy and/or code changes.

Page | 7
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

P2 - Formalize Guiding Principles

Action Statement

Formalize Guiding Principles as policies for the management of parking in Roseburg.

Strategy Description

The Guiding Principles summarized above and detailed in White Paper #3 (Appendix C) are based on the
premise that to accommodate growth in the downtown effectively will require an integrated and
comprehensive package of strategies which maintain balance and efficiency within the parking system and
establish clear priorities necessary to “get the right vehicle to the right parking stall.” These Principles should
be formally approved by the City Council within appropriate policy documents that define City’s role in
parking management (e.g., code, Transportation System Plan, etc.).

Many cities formalize their Guiding Principles within a parking element of their Transportation Systems or

Comprehensive Plans.5 Others include Guiding Principles as a policy element within their municipal codes.6 A

simpler route, that other cities have taken, is to formally approve Guiding Principles as elements within an

approved Parking Management Plan, like this report and document.”

Order of Implementation

Immediate

e Formalize with Council acceptance of this plan or within other document most applicable to Roseburg’s
policy processes.

Estimated Costs

There should be minimal costs associated with this strategy other than staff time required for necessary
policy and/or code changes.

5 Examples: Bend, OR and Redmond, WA
6 Example: Portland OR includes their Guiding Principles as policy elements within Title 33.510 of their code.
7 Examples: McMinnville, OR and Olympia, WA

Page | 8
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

P3 - Define District Boundaries

Action Statement

Redefine parking management district boundaries, creating separate Downtown and Laurelwood Parking
Management Districts. Any block faces zoned residential, should be eliminated from the Downtown Parking
Management District.

Strategy Description

The parking study area for the 2020 Downtown Parking Assessment included areas both within the
Downtown and the Laurelwood neighborhood (see Figures A and B maps below). Also, the parking code
review indicated a lack of clear definition of parking management districts.

Parking best practices would suggest that “parking management districts” reflect the unique zoning and
character of an area. Thus, downtown parking districts generally encompass city blocks that are commercial
in nature, with a clear focus on ground level active business uses. Neighborhood districts encompass those
blocks that are truly residential in both function and uses. Per best practice standards referred to above, the
revision of the Downtown Parking Management District should not include any block faces zoned for
residential. Figure B reflects the SAC’s interpretation of an appropriate boundary, which includes the High
School and the area beyond Laurelwood Park.

It is recommended that the City reevaluate its current definition of the Downtown Parking Management
District and narratively describe that within the Definitions Section (8.02.005) of the municipal code.
Specific recommendations in this regard are addressed in White Paper #2 (Appendix B), which would
recommend specific definitions for the Downtown Parking Management District, the Laurelwood Parking
Management District, and a potential Downtown Central Core (Strategy D1). This would likely revise or
replace current definitions for Parking District, Primary Area, and Secondary Area (8.04.005 B - D).

Order of Implementation

Immediate

e Review and finalize boundary definitions

e Complete internal City presentations

e (Coordinate implementation with Strategy P1
Estimated Costs

There should be minimal costs associated with this strategy other than staff time required for necessary
policy and/or code changes.

Page | 9
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment
L.

Figure A: Downtown District Study Area Map

Page | 10
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment
L.

Figure B: Laurelwood Study Area Map

Page | 11
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

M1 - Ongoing Daily Management

Action Statement

Restructure or augment staff time allocated to effectively manage the parking system and implement new
programs identified in the Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan.

Strategy Description Implementation of the
Parking Plan will likely
require levels of staff effort
and resources that exceed
what is currently in place.

The success of any multi-faceted parking system depends on
administration, management, and communication. This includes

ongoing management of facilities, oversight of third-party vendors,
financial accounting and reporting, marketing and communications,
customer service, and strategic and capital planning. As this plan is
implemented and demand for parking grows, management capacity

will likely need to be augmented beyond the current status quo approach.

Roseburg’s current system for managing parking is not centralized in a single department or individual at the
City level. From a strategic management point of view there is no clear single point of responsibility for
guiding the parking system in a manner that gives due diligence to the evolving complexity of the existing
system and the level of technical and response capability called for in this parking management plan. Several
Oregon cities (e.g., Bend, Corvallis, McMinnville, Milwaukie) experienced the same issue and began by
consolidating their parking services within a single city department with an existing staff or staff persons
specifically assigned to parking issues (operations, management, communications). For Roseburg, this can be
accomplished through restructuring an existing FTE position within the City to coordinate parking issues and
strategic plan implementation and/or allocating time across staff positions within a single City Department
(e.g.,, Community Development or Public Works).

As Roseburg assesses potential new third-party parking management vendors (see Strategy M7), the
internal and external transition will need proper oversight and staff time management, which will include
RFP writing and development of clear work scope deliverables, proposal review, and contract negotiations.
Once a vendor is engaged, there needs to be a lead staff or single entity responsible for oversight of third-
party contract performance, strategy implementation (from this Plan), and ongoing parking planning. There
also needs to be coordinated communication of the transition to the public including residents, employers,
employees, and visitors.

This recommended approach recognizes Roseburg's limited resources and allows for efficient transition back
into parking management as the current COVID environment allows. It also stresses the need for internal
oversight and communications distinct from that of a third-party parking management vendor.

Order of Implementation

Immediate

e (Clarify internal responsibilities to centralize delivery of parking services (which includes role of City staff

and expectations and responsibilities that could be allocated to a third-party service provider (for
parking operations and enforcement services).

Short-Term

e Identify and/or restructure existing FTE to create a single City entity responsible for parking services and
implementation of the Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan.
Estimated Costs

Not known at this time. Could be restructuring of an existing position(s) coupled with a third-party vendor
contract for operations services (parking and enforcement).

Page | 12
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

M2 - Establish Downtown Parking Working Group

Action Statement

Continue the role of the existing Downtown SAC as a reconstituted Downtown Parking Work Group (PWG).
The PWG would consist of downtown stakeholders, staff, and City leadership to assist in implementation of
the recommendations Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan. City staff would advise Council on all
recommendations put forward by the PWG.

Strategy Description

Active participation by those affected by downtown parking management strategies is best accomplished
through an established advisory committee or work group that reviews the performance of the public
parking system, serves as a sounding board for issues, periodically review the recommendations presented in
this plan, and acts as a liaison to the broader stakeholder community as changes are implemented. The City
should develop a process through which a representative cross-section of downtown interests routinely
assists in the review and implementation of this planning effort.

The Stakeholder Advisory Committee established for this Downtown Parking Assessment effort includes
representation by businesses, residents, professional service providers, the downtown business association,
City staff, and City Council representatives. This existing group provides a solid foundation of a representative
group well versed in the key elements of the new Parking Plan, and it is recommended that this group
continue, by default, as the Plan transitions into the implementation phase. Members who no longer wish to
participate or who have consistently been unable to attend or send other representation may be replaced
through the application process outlined for the SAC at the outset of this process. This is a format commonly
used in other Oregon cities (e.g., Bend, Hood River, Oregon City, and Springfield).

The PWG would meet as necessary (at least once a year) to assist the City in implementing the parking
management plan, review parking issues, and inform City Council and other decision-making bodies on
strategy implementation (via City staff). In the early going of Plan implementation (immediate and short-
term), meetings would likely be more frequent. The PWG would use the recommendations in this plan as a
basis for action, discussion, stakeholder communications, and tracking progress.

Order of Implementation

Immediate

e Schedule regular meetings to advocate for, shepherd, track, and communicate the plan (meetings could
be hosted by the City or through a partnership with the downtown business association).
e  Assistin structuring a new third-party enforcement/parking management agreement (see Strategy M7).

Short-Term

Establish business-to-business outreach.

Facilitate data collection efforts.

Assess plan progress.

Inform City Council (via City staff).

Coordinate and disseminate, through constituency groups, communications with the broader downtown
business community.

e Determine and implement plan action items.

Mid- to Long-Term
e Meet on a more frequent schedule as warranted.

Estimated Costs

There should be no additional costs to the City if current staff time is reallocated to parking per Strategy M1.
Costs could also be mitigated if hosting of the PWG is facilitated through a partnership with the downtown
business association.

Page | 13
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

M3 - Consolidate Parking Permits

Action Statement

Consolidate all parking permits currently issued by multiple entities under a single distribution entity,
preferably under the restructured third-party vendor contract recommended in Strategy M7.
Strategy Description

Per the consultant review of current parking operations, there are several different permit types in
distribution in the downtown and Laurelwood. These include employee, residential, juror, and other special
use permits issued by different agencies of the City. At minimum, these different permits are not coordinated,
and in many cases, they are not issued with an agreement with the City regarding validity or area of use (on-
street or off-street). This creates a problem for enforcement personnel and may come at a loss of revenue
and/or conflicts for space between permit users and downtown visitors.

It is recommended the City engage with all current entities distributing permits to establish a coordinated
system of permitting that would be managed through a single entity (preferably the City's parking and
enforcement vendor).

Issues that should be resolved in this conversation would include:

e Types of permits allowed (e.g., employee, resident, juror, and other special use types).

e (riteria for use and location(s) for use (e.g., on-street, off-street, or other designated areas)

e Distinguishing permit by type (e.g., design) to ensure accurate tracking and documentation of use.

e Points of distribution to users (through centralized system) and documentation of permit distribution.
e Cost of permits by type of use.

Order of Implementation

Immediate

e Schedule meeting(s) to convene current entities issuing parking permits to establish criteria, guidelines,
and costs for use of permits on City streets and off-street facilities.

Short-Term

e Finalize program framework and incorporate into portfolio of services to be provided in a third-party
parking management and enforcement vendor agreement.

Mid- to Long-Term
e On-going program management by vendor.

Estimated Costs

Staff time to coordinate meetings and development of final framework.

Page | 14
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

M4 - Review Court Procedures for Citations

Action Statement

Work with the Roseburg Municipal Court to clarify violation

procedures for issuing citations in the public rights-of-way Downtown The high level of waived or
and other managed parking areas. voided parking citations

- should be investigated to
Strategy Description ascertain whether this was
Citation revenue was one of the three main revenue sources which done internally by the
funded the management and enforcement capabilities of Park-Smart. parking management
From 2016 through 2019, Park-Smart issued 11,938 parking citations®. company or by the courts. If
Of the nearly 12,000 citations, 3,114 (26%) were voided while 7,894 the courts, then a discussion
(66%) citations were paid®. The cumulative revenue associated with to clarify and resolve issues
the paid citations was $542,587. The cumulative value of the voided that result in waivers or voids
citations was $221,090 over the last four years. will improve the efficiency of
Within the parking industry voided or waived tickets should be less :::z;cueement and program

than 10% of all tickets issued. As such, current levels in Roseburg are
very high. This should be investigated to ascertain whether this was
done internally by the parking management company or by the courts.
If the voids occurred through the courts, it would be helpful to
understand why so many were/are consistently being thrown out. Clarified criteria for issuing citations
developed and implemented.

Order of Implementation

Immediate

e Schedule meeting(s) to meet with the Municipal Court to review voided or waived citations and develop
clarified criteria for issuing citations.

Short-Term

o Finalize clarified criteria and incorporate into portfolio of services to be provided in a third-party parking
management and enforcement vendor agreement.

Mid- to Long-Term
e On-going program enforcement by vendor.

Estimated Costs

Staff time to coordinate meetings and development of clarified criteria and procedures for issuing parking
citations.

8 Source: ‘Notice Count by Violation with Pay Off Amount’ - City Excel summary.
9747 remained open and unpaid at the time of writing.

Page | 15
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

M5 - Track Parking Revenues and Expenses

Action Statement

Develop a parking revenue and expense tracking tool and routinely update and report.

Strategy Description

To facilitate informed decision-making and to provide a sound basis for
both financial viability of the existing parking program, and funding for
future need, a more thorough system of reporting expenses and
revenues generated from the parking system should be established. The
format for reporting should be established by the City. Compilation of
data to complete reporting can then be conducted internally by
designated City staff (Strategy M1) or as a component of an approved
scope of work by a third-party parking management vendor (Strategy
M7). This is an industry best practice.

During the Parking Assessment it was found that current data does not
provide clear and consistent information regarding actual revenue and
expenses associated with the overall parking and enforcement program.
The information provided was incomplete and at times conflicting,
therefore, some basic assumptions had to be made and data was
extrapolated when necessary to provide a more complete financial picture.

Given that much of the oversight of parking and enforcement was contracted out via a third-party operator, it
was unclear as to the actual total cost of supporting the parking system0. At minimum, the City (or a third-
party vendor) would account for all revenue and expenses related to parking and enforcement management
annually, for both vendor and City activity. This “ledger”—a revenue and expense statement—would be
replicable and comparable on a year-to-year basis by line item. The point being to show a very clear picture of
revenues generated by type of revenue system (i.e., meters, enforcement, permits) and how those revenues
are spent (i.e., on salaries/wages, operations, infrastructure, etc.). Such an accounting would then be made a
part of a broader Annual Report of Parking Operations (see Strategy M6).

Order of Implementation

Immediate

e Reformat current financial reporting to track revenue and expenses by category and begin monthly
tracking.

e Ifnew format is to be provided by a third-party vendor, incorporate specifics of such reporting into an
approved scope of work within a new third-party management services contract (Strategy M7).

Short-Term

e Publish an annual financial report tracking, at minimum, parking revenue by type and expenses by
operational category. This would be included in an annual parking report that summarizes finances as
well as other system performance measures (see Strategy M6).

On-Going
e Routine annual reporting

Estimated Costs

There should be no additional costs associated with this recommendation when coordinated with Strategies
M1 and M7.

10 e.g,, accounting for contractor costs, city expenditures, wages, and salaries of parking versus non-parking personnel, and the overall
relationship of income to expenses (resulting in a surplus or deficit of funds).

Page | 16
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

M6 - Publish Annual Parking Performance Status Report

Action Statement

Publish an annual Parking Performance Status Report.

Strategy Description

An annual status and performance report will provide consistent tracking of performance measures (and
fund status). An annual report provides transparency within the program and helps inform the City
leadership and the PWG on opportunities, challenges, strategy implementation progress and system viability.
This reinforces and facilitates decision-making.

Minimum performance “success measures” can be developed with the PWG. The measures below are useful
metrics to track and incorporate into an annual summary report. Many could be incorporated into required
tasks as part of a restructured parking management/enforcement agreement with a third-party vendor
(Strategy M7).

Parking Management District boundaries (i.e., maps for Downtown and Laurelwood)
City lot locations and stall totals

Rate schedules for on-street, off-street (by lot), and permits by type
Number of permits sold (average month)

0 On-street permits (downtown) - if any
0 Off-street permits (downtown)
0 Residential permits (downtown and in Laurelwood)

e (itations issued

0 Number of citations issued / dollar value of citations
0 Number of citations voided, or waived / dollar value of citations voided or waived
0 Number of citations outstanding (unpaid)

e Revenue/Expense Summary
e Peak Occupancy (as measured in Strategy M8)

On-street
Off-street by lot/garage
Indications of areas of constraint (based on 85% Occupancy Standard)

o
o
o
0 Other measures of utilization

e Customer service (Routine tracking and reporting of customer complaints, recommendations and other

input from users and stakeholders)

Performance measures should be tracked annually and comparatively to, for instance, the previous three
fiscal years.

Order of Implementation
Immediate

e Establish internal systems for gathering data for identified performance measures.
Short-Term and Ongoing

e  Publish first Parking Performance Status Report
e Routine annual reporting

Estimated Costs

Unknown. Responsibility of the duties could be managed by restructuring of an existing position (Strategy
M1) or through reporting requirements that are made part of the scope of work for a third-party
management contract with a vendor.

Page | 17
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

M7 - Initiate Parking Vendor Contract

Action Statement

Initiate a new contract for enforcement and parking management services with a third-party vendor.

Strategy Description

Despite the contract termination of Park-Smart, contracting with a third-party enforcement company
provides several benefits to a community Roseburg’s size. A contracted service allows for built-in flexibility.
There is a start of service and end of service term. Specific operational and performance metrics can be
incorporated into the contract/agreement scope of services, with formats for tracking/monitoring and
reporting outcomes (reporting directly to a designated City staff and Parking Work Group). In this way the
cost-benefit goal necessary to sustainably operate a successful parking program is clearly laid out, routinely
evaluated, and expected.

In addition, a contracted service allows for flexibility in terms of the actual current needs within in the
system. In other words, the level of service can be specifically tailored to meet the parking needs (permit
management, enforcement, maintenance, revenue, expense reporting, etc.). This concept is particularly
critical as Roseburg begins a phased process to upgrade its current parking system with updated technologies
and associated enforcement capabilities. Finally, an experienced third-party provider will bring a built-in
expertise in terms of services, protocols, recommendations, and performance metrics.

Given current fiscal constraints within the parking system, it is recommended that the City structure its third-
party contract solicitation in a format that would ask vendors to:

a. Bid an estimated annual expense budget (updated annually—and approved by the City—to reflect
reasonable expense inflation and/or line-item efficiencies.

b. Propose a monthly Management Fee that includes the cost of management, supervision, accounting,
billing, administration of validations and monthlies, and all other overhead and profit of the vendor.

C. Propose revenue sharing options (vendor incentive) for a percentage of net revenues!! derived in
excess of an established revenue benchmark or threshold.

d. Manage and track all gross revenues in an “owner account,” with the vendor drawing approved
expenses as needed.

Under these contract terms, the City will control all revenue from permits and citations (and meters, if
applicable), paying only a Management Fee, expenses, and, in some years, a share of net revenue.

Order of Implementation

Immediate

o Initiate development of a detailed scope of work for parking and enforcement management services!2.
e  Solicit vendors through and RFP or RFQ process.
e Award contract/agreement.

Short-Term
e Initiate new operations arrangement.

Estimated Costs

Not known at this time. Under the new contract structure, the City would pay an operator a Management Fee
and budgeted expenses using gross parking revenues (approximately $177,000 from permits, meters, and

11 A revenue sharing agreement tied to net revenue (rather than gross revenue) assures that when gross revenues do not exceed agreed
upon expenses, revenue sharing would not put the City in a situation that would put the parking fund into a deficit.

12 In some cases, a strategy planned for implementation at a later phase may require the vendor to have specialized capabilities (for
example, see Strategy R2).

Page | 18
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

citations in 2018). This is a departure from the model in which a third-party operator retained all parking-
related revenues and paid the City a fixed monthly fee.

Page | 19
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

D1 - Redefine and Time-Limit the Downtown Core

Action Statement

Eliminate the Downtown Free Parking Zone. Consider replacing
the Free Parking Zone with a new “Downtown Central Core”
boundary per time limit formatting recommendations in Strategy
D2.

Strategy Description

The current Downtown Free Parking Zone provides free and
unlimited parking for anyone using the on-street system inside
the Zone. The zone is currently irregularly configured and
represents nearly 40% of all on-street parking in the downtown.

According to stakeholders and in interviews with those involved
with enforcement, many employees abuse the free zone, which
limits parking availability for customers and visitors. Also,
enforcement personnel indicate that implementing violations
within the free zone is severely flawed and unmanageable!3. This
creates significant inefficiencies for enforcement, and in high
demand situations, limits the ability of the City to prioritize on-
street parking for customers.

It is recommended that a more accurate representation of
downtown's central core (or "heart of the downtown") be

Existing Downtown Free Parking Zone

established. This core would represent the highest use area of the downtown, a core zone that requires high
turnover and a higher volume of activity than other areas of the larger Downtown Parking Management

District.

Order of Implementation

Immediate

e Determine whether the boundary of the existing free parking zone truly represents the central core of

downtown (see existing boundary at right).

e Coordinate time limit reformatting effort with PWG in conjunction with Strategy D2.

Short-Term and On-Going
e Implement signage changes.

Estimated Costs

Cost estimates are provided for in Strategy C1.

13 Per the process required, in 8.04.010 and 8.04.030 of the code, which requires businesses and other entities to report employee names

and license plate numbers to the City.

Page | 20
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

D2 - Define Consistent Time Limits in and around Downtown

On-Street

Action Statement Supply 822 100.0%
. . . . . . . . . 10 Minute 16 1.9%
Simplify time limits in the Downtown Parking Management District to ;
. i X 15 Minute 7 <1%
apply to all block faces in the District. 30 Minute 4 <1%
1 Hour 17 2.1%
Strategy Description 2 Hour 229 279%
. . . 3 Hour 13 1.6%
In Roseburg, there are 822 total on-street parking stalls within the - = AT
Downtown study area and thirteen (13) different use types!*. Over 50% 10 Hour 78 9.5%
of parking in the study area is unregulated and many areas have multiple R 322 39.2%
time stays on single block faces. This creates confusion, makes U;f;;:;eg‘i 102 12.4%
enforcement very difficult and inefficient, and enables abuse. ADAaccessible 15 18%
RV & Trail Parking 3 <1%
Best practices recommend simplifying the parking system to the highest e . »
. . . . . <
degree possible, using the presumption that every on-street parking BarinzOnly ’

customer is a first-time user?s. To this end, the on-street system within a Current stall types (2020)

downtown parking management district should be time limited to a base

standard¢ (whether free or paid parking) that best supports appropriate turnover while providing a
reasonable stay option for the priority user of on-street parker: the short-term customer trip. Over the past
four years, the consultant has conducted numerous studies in Northwest cities and found very high
consistency in the use of 2- and 3-hour stalls as base standards for on-street parking??.

To this end, it is recommended that Roseburg create a 2-hour limit in what will become the higher turnover
Downtown Core Zone established in Strategy D1. All other non-residential blocks within the Downtown
Parking Management District boundary would be time limited at 3 hours. This would, in effect, create two
sub-zones within the larger District. It is assumed that the existing parking meters, which are outdated and
beyond their useful life, will be removed when time limits are implemented (see Strategy D7 for a discussion
of on-street paid parking). There would be no time limits in residential areas unless a parking permit
program for a specific area (like Laurelwood) were established. Time limits in residential parking
management districts (permit areas) would be "2 Hours or by Permit" during posted enforcement hours.

The intent is to ensure that any downtown block face that abuts a commercial storefront is structured to
preserve and prioritize access for customers and visitors, using either a 2- or 3-hour standard. Time limits
throughout the parking management district also support enforcement efforts and parking permit strategies
to move employees to off-street facilities or other specifically designated areas that minimize conflicts with
customers.

Order of Implementation
Immediate
e  Work with the Downtown PWG, City staff, and other stakeholders to determine an on-street time limit

format for all non-residentially zoned parking within the Downtown Parking Management District.
e Using existing downtown on-street inventory map, develop a sign replacement plan.

Short- to Mid-Term

e Coordinate signage design with Strategy C1.
e Initiate signage changes.
e Remove existing parking meters.

14 See White Paper #1: Parking Inventory and Field Assessment (Appendix A) for a detailed breakout of the parking inventory.

15 Oregon Transportation and Growth Management Program - Parking Made Easy: A Guide to Managing Parking in Your Community.

16 Base standard would be initially applied to all block faces in a given zone or district (e.g,, 2 or 3 hours). Any other type of stall (e.g.,
loading zones, specialty stalls or other time formats like 15, 30, 60 minutes) would be considered exceptions to the base standard and
approved based on specific criteria demonstrating the unique business need that would require changing the base standard.

17 This includes cities like Albany, Ashland, Hood River, McMinnville, Newberg, and Salem, in Oregon.

Page | 21
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Estimated Costs

The cost for this strategy should be minimal as it involves discussion and process to determine the new,
simplified time limit format. However, transitioning the existing metered area to free and time-limited
parking would result in a reduction in annual gross revenue of approximately $31,000 (based on 2018 data):

e 2018 Meter Revenue: $31,000
e 2018 Permit Revenue: $54,000
e 2018 Net Citation Revenue: $92,000

$177,000

If Roseburg wishes to maintain consistent revenues ($177,000) following the removal of all on-street meters,
permit and net citation costs may be increased accordingly. The table below shows four (4) options for
maintaining consistent gross revenues (estimates only) following the removal of on-street meters.

Table 2: Options for Offsetting Lost Meter Revenue

Average Monthly Estimated Annual | Estimated Annual
Permit Cost Average Citation Increase in Increase in
Increase!8 Cost Increase?? Permit Revenue | Citation Revenue
Option 1 +$2.00 +$24.00 +$5,000 +$27,000
Option 2 +$3.00 +$22.00 +$8,000 +$25,000
Option 3 +$4.00 +$18.00 +$11,000 +$20,000
Option 4 +$5.00 +$16.00 +$14,000 +$18,000

18 This is based on assumption that the approximately average monthly permit cost is now $20.00 per month. White Paper #4 shows
permit revenues of approximately $54,000 (Table 4, after bulk discounts), leading to an assumption that there are approximately 225
permits sold each month ($54,000 / $20 / 12). If the number of monthly permits sold each month varies from this assumption, gross
revenues would be different from what is shown in the table.

19 This based on an assumed net revenue per citation paid. White Paper #4 shows citation revenues of approximately $92,000 (Table 4)
as well 2,254 paid citations in 2018 (Table 3), resulting in an assumed net revenue per citation of approximately $41. If it is assumed that
this revenue value represents 50% of what the user pays (to account for court fees), the average citation amount paid in 2018 was
approximately $82. The values in the table are based on these average citation values and assumptions regarding annual numbers of
citations paid. If the average citation value is different from these assumptions, or the total number of paid citations significantly differs
from these assumptions, gross revenues would be different from what is shown in this table.

Page | 22
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

3.2 Short-Term (12 - 24 months)

C1 - Install Consistent Public Parking Signage in Downtown

Action Statement

Develop a consistent signage package to integrate the public on and off-street parking system. Install a new
signage package consistent with a new time limit format.

Strategy Description

Findings from the 2020 inventory and ground assessment showed a range of parking signage types. Quality of
signage was an issue as well as conflicting information communicated. The inconsistency of signage (and
signage design) conflicts with the goal of simplicity and understandability as factors supporting a "customer
friendly” environment.

Given the recommendations to reformat and simplify parking within parking management districts, a new
signage package is necessary and can be developed cost-effectively. This would mean creating a simple and
recognizable "logo" intended to communicate public parking. This identifier would then be integrated into all
signage within the City's on- and off-street systems. A great example of a such integration of public on- and
off-street parking is shown at right (from Springfield, Oregon)2°. Another example of a simple logo is from
Seattle, WA using a stylized “P” is shown below right?1.

It is recommended that a simple stylized “P” (using the City’s colors) be created
and extended throughout the public parking system as the parking brand. The
brand can also be incorporated into downtown marketing and communications,
such as maps and websites.

Order of Implementation

Immediate

e Develop and create a simple but recognizable logo to be ready for
incorporation into implementation of new signage.

o Initiate a survey of all existing signage and estimate number of new signs
based on a standard configuration per affected block face. A standard signage

package is defined as a single block face with two poles with blade signs—one
at each end of the block with arrows pointing inward.

Short-Term

e Integrate new logo into on- and off-street systems and all communications formats (maps, website, etc.)

Estimated Costs

A stylized “P” logo/brand could likely be developed in-house at a very low cost. A contract with a private
graphic designer could involve costs of less than $5,000 for a simple logo/brand. Based on information from
other cities, estimated per unit costs for signage upgrades would be:

e Unit Costs for Signage?2?

0 Pole unit cost = $470
0 Blade sign unit cost = $30

20 The Springfield example uses the City's colors in the stylized "P" logo, which is prominently placed in on and off-street signage. The
intent being that anyone seeing the City parking logo knows intuitively that the parking is public and particularly prioritized for visitors.
21 The "e-Park" tag was also a simple way to connect users into Seattle's electronic parking guidance system and other parking
information available online.

22 Only material costs are provided in these estimates, no labor.

Page | 23
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

C2 - Improve Parking Information on Website

Action Statement

Design, create, and upgrade existing parking website with information for customers and employees.

Strategy Description

Communication with the public, including locals, visitors, and employees will be critical to the success of
management strategies. Parking locations, rates, hours of operation, connections to transportation options,
etc. should be marketed and communicated via a continually updated City website. The more information
people have when it comes to parking, the better. Piggybacking on Strategy C1, the City’s parking logo should
be incorporated on the website.

Order of Implementation

Immediate

e  Working with stakeholders and City staff, create and launch the website.
Ongoing

o Keep website information current.

Estimated Costs

Costs associated with design and deployment of a coordinated and well-maintained webpage are estimated at
$5,000-$7,500. Variations in cost depend on the complexity of the website, and how often the site is updated
to reflect current parking management. The website could be hosted by the City, the downtown business
association, or a third-party vendor.23

23 The consultant would note that having a downtown parking website hosted by the third-party parking vendor is not the most ideal
option (only one of three options). The consultant believes any downtown website should incorporate a City logo and identity. The
parking system needs to reflect a public function provided to the community by the City. See for instance: Parking | City of Bend

(bendoregon.gov).

Page | 24
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/
https://www.bendoregon.gov/visitor/parking
https://www.bendoregon.gov/visitor/parking

Downtown Parking Assessment

P4 - Explore Funding Options

Action Statement

Explore and develop funding options for maintaining the existing parking supply and funding future
infrastructure and program needs.

Strategy Description

A wide range of funding sources and revenue streams could be used to implement an enhanced parking
management plan in Roseburg. Given the costs of new infrastructure, considering new funding mechanisms is
prudent. The list of potential sources summarized here is not exhaustive, nor are these sources mutually
exclusive. Some may already be in place in Roseburg.

Funding sources and their use for projects, programs, and infrastructure, continues to evolve as various State
laws or City ordinances are authorized. A decision to pursue any options for implementation should be
reviewed by the City Attorney to determine their feasibility considering applicable laws.

Options Affecting Customers

User Fees

Many cities collect revenue through parking meters and/or sale of permits and direct it to parking or
transportation development enterprise funds. Transit or shuttle riders pay in the form of fares. These funds
can be used to construct or bond for additional parking or transit capacity.

Parking Fines

Revenues are collected for parking violations and a portion directed to parking development enterprise
funds.

Options Affecting Businesses

Parking and Business Improvement Area or District (BIA or BID)

An assessment on businesses rather than property owners, these can be based on assessed value, gross sales,
square footage, number of employees, or other factors established by the local legislative authority. As an
example, Salem, Oregon assesses a fee on businesses in its downtown Parking District to support parking
services and future supply.

Parking Utility Fee/Tax

Under this approach, each business within an established parking district pays a share of the Parking District
operating budget based on the number of parking spaces needed by the business according to an approved
assessment formula. The only Oregon example we could find is in place in Salem's Downtown Parking
District, established in 1976. Salem's annual assessment is called a parking tax and the formula is based on: 24

e Business type
e Gross floor area
e  Customer parking demand

The “demand factor” is the number of customer parking spaces required by a particular type of business for
every 1,000 square feet of gross floor area. Gross floor area includes walls, corridors, stairways, restrooms,
closets, storage rooms, etc.

24 Pay Downtown Parking Tax (cityofsalem.net

Page | 25
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/
https://www.cityofsalem.net/Pages/make-a-downtown-parking-tax-payment.aspx

Downtown Parking Assessment

Options Affecting Property Owners
Special or Local Improvement District (SID/LID)

A SID or LID is a property tax assessment that requires buy-in by property owners within a specifically
identified boundary. LIDs usually result from a petition process requiring a majority of owners to agree to an
assessment for a specific purpose. Cities have used this mechanism to fund parking facilities or transit
infrastructure improvements.

Options Affecting Developers
Fee-in-Lieu

Developers may be given the option to pay a fee in lieu of providing parking with a new private development.
Fee-in-lieu fees provide the developer access entitlements to public parking facilities near the development
site. As an example, a fee-in-lieu option is currently in place in Hood River, Oregon.

A useful guide to the diversity of cash-in-lieu programs and their advantages and disadvantages is provided
by Donald Shop, in Journal of Planning and Education Research, 18:307-320, 1999.

Options Affecting the General Public
Divestment of Public Property

This would entail divesting ownership of one or more existing public lots (most underutilized) through sale
to a private owner. Surplus revenue derived from such sales would then be allocated to a parking fund to
support more efficient parking operations. Vancouver, WA divested itself of two parking garages in its
downtown to buy down debt service on other parking assets being carried in its general fund. The city of
Bozeman, MT has considered the sale of public surface lots to generate funds for the possible construction of
a new parking garage that would allow new private land use(s), consolidate current supply, and anticipate
future demand.

General Fund Contribution

Local jurisdictions may make either one-time capital or ongoing operating contributions to a downtown
parking or transit/shuttle program.

Interfund Loan

This would entail a loan from one City fund to a Parking Fund for projects or upgrades, subject to future
repayment based on pre-determined terms. This is a common form of funding for municipal projects.

State and Federal Grants

In the past, a variety of state and federal grant programs have been applied to funding parking and transit
infrastructure in business districts. In the current environment of more limited government funding, there
may no longer be readily identifiable programs suitable for parking facility development, though transit may
be more feasible.

Recommended Options for Roseburg

In considering Roseburg's current funding needs, the consultant would suggest that a combination of the
following would best provide funding for support of Parking Plan implementation. We would also suggest
that (a) and (b) be pursued first as they provide less risk to the City. An interfund loan would be more
strategically implemented post-COVID, and after more data regarding parking use and demand are assembled
(Strategy M8).

a. Raterestructuring - User Fees (Strategy D3)
b. Divestment of underutilized public lot(s)
c. Interfund Loan

Page | 26
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Order of Implementation
Short-Term

e Evaluate all potential funding options as provided herein (and others not listed) for appropriateness to
Roseburg, feasibility, and timing necessary to initiate.

Mid-Term

e Narrow to a workable and implementable funding package to support costs identified and/or revised in
this plan

Estimated Costs

This is very much a process task, requiring research and conversations with City policy- and decision-makers
and legal counsel, and discussion with a range of potentially affected stakeholders. Existing staff time to
would be needed to vet feasible funding options (e.g., Fee-in-lieu, urban renewal, local improvement districts,
capital funds, bonds, grants, etc.).

For the purposes of this discussion, it is assumed that costs would be absorbed internally by the City and
through the parking management plan implementation process. These include:

e Internal legal review and recommendation

e Downtown Parking Work Group consideration and recommendation
e Public review and input

e City Council approval

Page | 27
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

M8 - Implement Routine Data Collection

Action Statement

Parking information can be
collected in samples, and
other measures of success can

Strategy Description be gathered through third-
party data collection and/or
volunteer processes (to
reduce costs).

Develop a reasonable schedule of data collection to assess
performance.

A foundational element of this parking management plan is the
facilitation of decision making with accurate data. The Guiding
Principles intent to use the 85% Occupancy Standard will
require some level of basic data collection, as well as to assist the
City and stakeholders to separate the reality of parking
performance versus perceived issues.

As such, a system for routine data collection should be established. The system does not need to be elaborate,
but it should be consistent and structured to answer relevant questions about occupancy, seasonality,
turnover, duration of stay, patterns of use, and enforcement.

Parking information can be collected in samples, and other measures of success can be gathered through
third-party data collection and/or volunteer processes. Data can be used by the City and stakeholders to
inform decisions, track use, and measure success.

Order of Implementation
Short-Term

e  Work with the Downtown Parking Working Group and
City staff to develop a data collection schedule to monitor
parking

Mid-Term

e Conduct baseline turnover and utilization study of the on-

and off-street systems in downtown. 70% - 85%
Efficient
Long-Term Supply
e Conduct occupancy and/or utilization updates at least 5% to 69%
every two years. Moderate Use

Estimated Costs

The estimated cost of a data inventory and turnover/occupancy study would range from $20,000 to $25,000
if conducted by a third party. Costs can be minimized in subsequent surveys using the inventory and database
developed for the first effort as well as sampling and using volunteers to collect data. Ideally, and over time,
parking fund revenue will partially or fully cover the cost of updates.

Page | 28
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

D3 - Calibrate Parking Rates to Demand

Action Statement

Routinely calibrate current pricing of off-street parking (particularly monthly permit rates) - "performance-
based pricing.” Over time, routinely adjust permit pricing to the ongoing findings of Strategy M8.

Strategy Description

Performance-based pricing uses rates to influence behavior. Facilities with low demand or in less convenient
locations are priced lower than those with high demand or near high traffic destinations. Effective use of
performance-based pricing results in better distribution of users across facilities, particularly those that are
underused. This is a method to strategically manage the off-street facilities for employees and to maximize
available stalls and revenue.

Over the course of plan implementation, data derived from routine occupancy assessments can be applied to
rate decisions based on actual demand at specific facilities.

Public off-street facilities with excess capacity (after accommodating the long-term stay needs of permit-

holders) should also be available to the public to accommodate visitor needs (see the Guiding Principles). To

enforce this mixed environment, the garage and public off-street lots should either have a time limit (e.g.

signed “4-Hours or By Valid Permit”) or charge an hourly rate for non-permit holders.

Order of Implementation

Short-Term

e Price off-street parking based on demand and/or desire to influence behavior and occupancy at certain
facilities and adjusting rates, as necessary.

e Determine whether additional data collection is necessary to inform baseline pricing.
e Market program to local businesses and employees.

Mid- to Long-Term
e Routinely assess demand at each off-street parking facility and adjust rates accordingly.

Estimated Costs

Rate systems will likely provide revenue to cover cost of program management.

Page | 29
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment
e

R1 - Install Consistent Signage in Laurelwood

Action Statement

Update signage package in residential parking management districts (Laurelwood) consistent with Strategy
C1.

Strategy Description

Signage in the Laurelwood neighborhood is in place,
but consultant observations during the field
assessment noted that signage is not consistent and
there are gaps where signage should be in place but
is not.

The Laurelwood neighborhood should be included in
the review and redesign of signage recommended in
Strategy C1.

Order of Implementation

Short-Term

e Initiate a survey of all existing signage and
estimate number of new signs based on a
standard configuration per affected block face (with Strategy C1).

e Include residential signage in broader logo and signage package development process in Strategy C1.

Mid-Term

e Integrate new logo into on- and off-street systems and all communications formats (e.g., maps, website,
etc.)

Estimated Costs

A stylized “P” logo/brand could likely be developed in-house at a very low cost. A contract with a private
graphic designer could involve costs of less than $5,000 for a simple logo/brand. Based on the 2020 inventory
of the Laurelwood neighborhood, there are currently 243 stalls that currently require a permit. Using the
standard stall package estimated for downtown in Strategy C1, new signage costs for this area would range
from $14,580 to $18,225.

Page | 30
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

R2 - Implement License Plate-Based Permitting in Residential Areas

Action Statement
Tie residential permits to specific license plate(s).
Strategy Description

Input from the public and the SAC indicated that there are times when residents with permits forget to
display a valid permit in their vehicle and receive a citation in permitted areas. This is a common instance in
many other cities as well, creating frustration. In many cases, the citation is subsequently waived.

By requiring that residential permits be tied to a specific
license plate or license plates at a residence, this situation
can be significantly minimized. Over time, the City could
even move to an entirely electronic residential permit—a
"virtual permit"—if its enforcement vendor possesses
handheld or mobile citation technology, which can also be
license plate based. These systems eliminate the need to
distribute physical permits and can be set up to allow for
issuance of permits in an online format. If successful in the
residential application, a similar approach could be explored
for other displayed permit contexts (e.g., employee and
specialty use permits) that the City offers.

It is recommended that the City explore this approach and

move to require it as a function a new third party enforcement vendor will provide as a part of Strategy M7.

Order of Implementation

Short-Term

e Incorporate this permit management option within the development of a detailed scope of work for
parking and enforcement management services per Strategy M7. Implementation of such a system
contingent upon a new vendor contract.

Estimated Costs

Costs will be a part of a new parking management/enforcement vendor contract. If program becomes virtual,
there should be cost savings associated with both supplies (e.g., hang-tags, stickers) and process.

Page | 31
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

R3 - Evaluate Residential Permit Rates

Action Statement

Evaluate current residential permit rates to ensure the program is revenue neutral.

Strategy Description

The goal of any residential permit program is to ensure that residents and their guests have priority access on
residential streets. To facilitate this, the best practice is to issue residential permits in areas where parking
demands from other uses limits access for the priority users. This

entails costs to the City. Ideally, the cost of residential permits is

set at a rate that:

1. Provides residents and their guests priority access to the
curb space but does not facilitate or encourage the
storage of vehicles on-street (particularly for homes that
already have available garage or driveway space). This
encourages congestion rather than influencing the
demand that creates congestion, and

2. Covers the cost of administering the program.

In a recent sixteen city survey of residential programs throughout
the US and Canada, the consultant found average annual
residential permit fees ranged from as low as $0 per year to a
high of $144. Roseburg's "base rate" for residential permits is $10
per annual permit

The mid-range was about $67. For the mid-range cities, most had
cost recovery policies in place to address the outcomes described
in (1) and (2) above.

Order of Implementation

Short-Term

e Conduct a cost recovery analysis specific to the current residential permit program in coordination with a
permit pricing program developed for employee permits in Strategy D3.
e Re-evaluate and re-set the current base residential permit rate.

- Implement Strategy R2 -Tying all residential permits to a license plate number, with proof that the
vehicle is (a) registered to the address of the residential unit and/or (b) proof of residency in the
district (e.g., water bill, electric bill, etc.)25

- Consider limiting the number of permits to 2 per residential unit (at the base rate)

- Consider graduated rates that would provide the first two permits at the base rate, allowing one
additional permit at 200% of the base rate.

- Consider reducing the residential permit limit to 1 for residential units (at the base rate) that have
driveways or garages. These units would be allowed 1 additional permit at 200% of the base rate.2¢

- For multi-family residential units, the total number of allowed permits per unit would be reduced by
the number of off-street stalls serving the multi-family residential site.

Mid-Term
e Routinely review and adjust rates accordingly.

Estimated Costs

New rate systems will likely provide revenue to cover cost of program management.

25 This strategy alone will significantly reduce abuse of residential permits by non-residents.
26 Monitoring and validating driveways and garages by address adds administrative burden to such a program.

Page | 32
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

R4 - Reevaluate Need for No Parking Signage in Laurelwood

Action Statement

Evaluate potential traffic conflict on W. Riverside Drive in the Laurelwood neighborhood.

Strategy Description

Though not specifically a parking issue,
the consultant team noticed potential
traffic and circulation issues along W.
Riverside Drive. As the photo at right
shows, parking on both sides of the
street appears to create a difficult
pinch point, limiting maneuverability
for both cars and (potentially) public
safety vehicles.

The pinch points may be a factor of
confusing signage or a situation that is
now allowed (parking on both sides of
the street) that should be reviewed.

Again, this is not a parking issue per

the focus of this plan but should be
addressed by the City's Traffic

Engineer, which can inform the new
signage package plan referenced in earlier
strategies.

Page | 33
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

3.3 Mid-Term (24 - 48 months)

D4 - Assess ADA Compliance in City-Owned Facilities

Action Statement

Confirm that all City-owned off-street facilities comply with ADA parking requirements.

Strategy Description

All City-owned off-street facilities should be compliant with ADA parking requirements. This may require
additional designated ADA stalls, depending on the facility’s size, slope, access route planning, signage, and
number of stalls. Additional information can be found at:

https://www.ada.gov/restriping parking/restriping2015.html

Order of Implementation

Short-Term

e Assess compliance with federal and state requirements for ADA parking.
Mid-Term

e Implement necessary improvement as funding allows.

Estimated Costs

Costs associated with this strategy are related to painting, signage, and maintenance of any new ADA-
compliant stalls in off-street facilities. These costs could be rolled into an assessment of necessary upgrades
recommended for Strategy D5 and Strategy D6, which call for engaging a facilities specialist to conduct
physical assessments, develop cost estimates, and outline an implementation schedule.

Page | 34
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/
https://www.ada.gov/restriping_parking/restriping2015.html

Downtown Parking Assessment

C3 - Rename Public Off-Street Facilities

Action Statement

Rename all publicly owned/controlled lots by address.

Strategy Description

When communicating location to transient users of an area, the name of parking facilities is extremely
important. Names like Shalimar Lot or Phillips Lot do not communicate useful information to users,
particularly those who are less than familiar with the downtown. Industry best practices for naming off-street
parking facilities suggest using an address or intersection associated with the main auto ingress point to a
facility.

Roseburg’s current facility identification format is not intuitive or informative. Renaming facilities by address
will support the City’s broader efforts to make the parking system more
intuitive and easier to use.

As an example, Boulder, Colorado does a good job integrating a
simple stylized "P" logo with identification of facilities by address—
like the 10th & Walnut example at right. This approach easily and
intuitively communicates not just a location, but a logo/brand that
can be integrated into web communications, apps, wayfinding, and
other materials.

Order of Implementation

Short-Term

e Coordinate with integrated signage package development (Strategy C1).
e C(Create budget package for installing new signage at all City owned/controlled lots.

Mid-Term

o Initiate installation of new signage.
e (Coordinate new messaging into all communications (maps, app, webpage, etc.)
Estimated Costs

Initial costs would involve changing existing signage and integration in marketing and promotional materials,
estimated to range between $12,000 and $16,000 for 6 facilities (assuming non-electric facility identifiers).

Page | 35
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

34 Long-Term (48+ months)

D5 - Implement Parking Garage Improvements

Action Statement

Develop and implement improvements at the downtown public parking garage to enhance its appearance,
identity, safety, and pedestrian access.

Strategy Description

The City's public parking garage is truly an asset and opportunity moving forward. It is important to think of
parking garages as an enduring resource, give that they are structured and intended to have long use lives
(50-70 years). In other words, they are a stable and reliable asset when contrasted with surface parking
which is intended "to go away" to make room for new buildings and land uses as Downtown grows. As such,
this 299 stall garage should be a center piece for the City's off-street parking program; serving (according to
the Guiding Principles) a diverse mix of users that includes employees, downtown residents and visitors
needing longer term stay options.

As we noted in the physical assessment of the City parking system and the garage (see Appendix A), the
garage is not well lit and there is graffiti along some of the walls and stairwell. This environment is not
welcoming and leads to a feeling of being unsafe. These observations have been repeatedly confirmed in SAC
work sessions and from comments provided in the Public Open Houses and online survey. The SAC concluded
that upgrades to the garage’s operating systems are critical to the City’s ability to attract new users and
establish a sense of safety and convenience.

It is recommended that the City engage in a facility review of the garage and develop an action plan and
budget to implement improvements. At minimum, the following should be evaluated:

e Lighting/lamping upgrades (particularly in ingress/egress areas,
stairwells, lobbies, and elevator plazas)

Interior and external Signage upgrades (as developed in Strategy C1)
Potential use of awnings as entry plaza identifiers

Waterproofing needs (if any)

Elevator improvement

Interior and exterior paint upgrades

Deep cleaning of pedestrian stairwells, lobbies, and entry/exit plazas.

Order of Implementation
Mid-Term

e Engage a consultant to conduct physical assessment, outline needed upgrades, estimate costs, and
prepare an implementation schedule that is compatible with City funding.
e Initiate upgrades.

Long-Term
o Complete upgrades as funding permits.

Estimated Costs

Given the range of improvements that may be necessary to implement it is difficult to estimate what a full
capital upgrade to the garage might be. To that end, we would recommend engaging a third-party facilities
management/maintenance consultant to assess the garage and lay out both costs and a potential plan for
phasing improvements (which would be based on availability of City funds). The City could add into this
engagement an ADA compliance evaluation (Strategy D4) and additional assessments of the public surface
lots (Strategy D6) We would estimate that such an assessment would be in the range of $18,000 to $22,000.

Page | 36
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

D6 - Implement Surface Lot Improvements

Action Statement

Bring all City-owned surface parking lots up to a uniform standard.

Strategy Description

Given the proximity of the five City-owned parking lots to the downtown core, it is recommended that all lots
maintain the same high standards for paving, striping, lighting, signage, and overall appearance. Consistency
among the lots will support a positive and convenient user experience and reinforce the logo and messaging

approach recommended in Strategy C1.

Order of Implementation

Mid-Term

e (Coordinate with Strategy D5 assessment(s).
e Evaluate and prioritize City lots for upgrades.

e Determine improvements and budget costs.
e Initiate upgrades as funding permits.

Long-Term
e Complete upgrades as funding permits.

Estimated Costs

These costs could be rolled into an assessment of necessary upgrades recommended for Strategy D4 and
Strategy D5, which calls for engaging a facilities specialist to conduct physical assessments, develop cost
estimates, and outline an implementation schedule.

Page | 37
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

D7 - Implement On-Street Paid Parking in Highest Demand Areas

Action Statement

Strategically phase to multi-space pay-stations or single head smart meters in areas where demand exceeds
85% and based on ability to fund. Means to fund such an upgrade should be determined in Strategy P4,

supplemented by data in Strategy M8.

Strategy Description

One of the key goals of the strategies developed for implementation in earlier phases is to prioritize
Downtown on-street parking for customers and visitors. If these strategies have the desired outcome of
encouraging employees and long-term visitors to park off-street or out of the core, time-limited parking in
Downtown with an effective enforcement program may be adequate to ensure that customers and visitors are
able to find parking relatively easily within a short-walk of their destination. This cannot be known until all

strategies are put into place and parking utilization data is collected.

However, following implementation of all strategies outlined in this plan for Downtown, parking occupancy
data may demonstrate that areas of the Downtown Core routinely exceed 85% occupancy levels during peak
periods, limiting parking availability for customers and visitors. Best practice consistently demonstrates that
when parking demands begin to exceed the 85% occupancy threshold, implementing on-street paid parking
(or increasing on-street paid parking rates) is the most effective way to manage demand and ensure that the
greatest number of customers and visitors can be served by the limited number of Downtown on-street
parking stalls. In a paid parking system, employees and long-term guests have a strong economic signal to
park off-street or in other lower-costs long-term parking areas. The most convenient on-street parking stalls
are therefore prioritized for short-term customer and visitor trips, allowing each stall to serve a higher
number of vehicles per day on average, contributing to a thriving Downtown.

Due to the costs of installing and maintaining on-street paid parking infrastructure, the strategy is best
deployed only when demands reach a point where it is starting to become difficult to find parking in
Downtown. This helps to ensure that when paid parking is implemented, the system can pay for itself, and
over time, fund additional parking and transportation improvements in Downtown.

Funding Considerations

During the consultant review of parking finances, estimates of annual
revenue generated from existing meters is approximately $26,000.
This low number may be the result of several factors: current rates, the
age and operability of the coin only function of the existing meters, the
high number of unregulated stalls within the Downtown Study Area
boundary, and their location outside the highest demand area (what is
now the downtown free zone). The difficulty for Roseburg moving
forward will be the cost associated with a transition to new parking
meter technology and determining if demand is sufficient to cover the
cost of the new technology at reasonable rates.

As an example, the cost of replacing the same number of paid parking
stalls (262 spaces) would be in the range of $290,000 (assuming multi-
space pay stations)?’. The example budget shown provides estimates
based on the consultants’ recent work in evaluating financial
feasibilities of new smart meter systems in other cities (e.g., Salem, OR
and Leavenworth and Everett, WA).28

27 For discussion purposes, given that 262 existing stalls are now metered.

The intent of the expense and
revenue analyses in the
example cities was to
determine if the revenue
generated through the
upgrade would cover the
estimated cost to install and
operate. In each of the
example cities, this was the
case, based on the actual
demand data available. As
such, no other sources of
funding were needed to
supplement the upgrades.

28 The example here is only for illustrative and discussion purposes as it is based on averages for such projects in other cities. Its
conclusions should only be used to better understand potential outcomes and is not provided as a definitive estimate of cost for the City.

Page | 38
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

As the example shows, the annual debt cost for such a technology upgrade would be in the range of $73,000
per year, carried over an assumed 5-year financing horizon?°. There would be an additional annual operating
cost of about $64,032 per year to cover maintenance, equipment repair and associated back office fees that
come with smart meters (e.g., operating

supplies, software support, credit card fees, Debt to Carry (Example Only)

etc.). In total, the cost side of an upgrade using Parking Stalls Metered: 262
these assumptions (262 stalls metered) would Meters to Purchase 29
total $135,000 annually through the first five One-Time Costs

years, dropping in year six as debt is relieved. Of e Meter System $189,222
course, these numbers .are only examples and e Signage $3,144
could be lower dependln.g on size of area e Installation $7.540
metered and type of equipment selected. «  Existing Meter Removal $13,100
What is missing in the example above is Warranty (5 years) $78,600
potential revenue that could be generated using = Total Debt to Carry (5 years) $291,606
this technology. In the cities used to create the Total Debt @ 5% financing $364,508
example, occupancy and use data was available Annual Debt Expense (over 5 years) $72,902

which was translated into revenue generation

estimates using various rate scenarios and actual observed visitor activity. The intent of the expense and
revenue analyses in the example cities was to determine if the revenue generated through the upgrade would
cover the estimated cost to install and operate. In each of the example cities, this was the case, based on the
actual demand data available. As such, no other sources of funding were needed to supplement the upgrades
and demand was high enough to cover debt/operating costs at reasonable rates.

What is lacking in Roseburg is data related to actual use, which makes forecasting revenue speculative,
leaving us no insight into the net difference between estimated debt/operating cost and potential revenue. To
this end, we would recommend that the decision to move to new meter technology be strategically phased
using on-street use data collected as part of Strategy M8, supplemented by funding options developed in
Strategy P4. To this end, a decision to move to smart meter technology would be based on good data,
revenue projections, and demand, all best practice criteria.

Order of Implementation

Immediate
e Complete Strategy D1 and Strategy D2 to determine time limit format for downtown.

Short- to Mid-Term

e Conduct occupancy and use data collection for, at minimum, on-street stalls in the downtown parking
management district (Strategy M8).

e Use data findings to determine when demand is sufficient to move some level of paid on-street parking
(e.g., in newly identified Downtown Central Core).

e Discuss and determine preferred technology type (pay-station or single head smart meter).

e Finalize as necessary other funding options evaluated in Strategy P4 that might be necessary to forward
an upgrade to smart meter systems.

Long-Term

Solicit vendor proposals for new payment technology
Receive cost proposals from vendors

Select vendor

Implement transition plan

Expand paid system as demand and funding allows

29 Single head smart meters could be lower in cost (in the $200,000 range) but would continue the pattern of lots of meter poles in the
pedestrian amenity space (which is an urban form question).

Page | 39
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Estimated Costs

Costs of new smart meter equipment is high. Roseburg should investigate all scenarios to determine the most
beneficial and cost-effective formats for implementing this type of technology upgrade. Estimated costs for
will range based on technology selected, vendor costs and size of supply. Estimates from projects recently
completed in the Pacific Northwest are provided below.

e  Multi-space meters $6,000 - $8,000 per unit (exclusive of indirect costs)
e Single Space Meters $600 - $800 per unit (exclusive of indirect costs)
e Data collection See Strategy M8

Page | 40
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

4, Summary

Roseburg is one of Oregon’s top destination cities, nestled in the beautiful Umpqua Valley and possessing a
small-town charm. The City is envisioned to grow, resulting in potential constraints in the downtown parking
system which calls for more coordinated and strategic management. The strategies recommended in this
report offer a toolbox of methods with which Roseburg can manage its parking-related challenges that come
with a successful downtown.

This report recommends parking management strategies that directly address these issues through
observation, best practices assessments, research, and stakeholder input. Strategies follow a logical order of
implementation, from immediate, near, mid, and long-term, with estimated costs where appropriate. It is
hoped that portions of this plan can be implemented as expediently as possible.

Page | 41
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Appendix A: WP #1 - Parking Inventory and Field Assessment

Page | A
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

White Paper #1: Parking Inventory & Field Notes
September 2020 (v1)
1.1 Study Areas

Per input from the City of Roseburg, the 2020 inventory boundaries were drawn to represent parking
supplies in the downtown and in the Laurelwood area (near downtown). Figures A and B provide an
illustration of the two study areas. Note that the inventory boundaries for the downtown and Laurelwood
neighborhood were utilized strictly for data collection purposes only and do not necessarily reflect
corresponding boundaries associated within current policy and/or code.

1.2 Parking Inventory (Supply)

Rick Williams Consulting (RWC) senior staff inventoried all on-street parking within the Downtown and
Laurelwood inventory study areas on August 18, 2020. During the inventory, all spaces were catalogued by
block face and time limit designation (on-street). On the same day, each of the six (6) City-owned off-street
parking facilities were evaluated for stall count and physical condition.

Where physical stall markings were not in place, RWC used measuring wheels to estimate stall capacity. RWC
uses a 23-foot standard to calculate stalls on blocks that are not marked or striped. RWC also accounts, in this
type of measurement, for sight lines, turn radius for curb cuts, and things like fire hydrants to ensure that stall
inventory estimates are both accurate and cognizant of actual operational functionality within a street’s
circulation system.

In total, the Downtown parking inventory is comprised of 1,365 publicly owned stalls, including 822 on-street
stalls and 543 off-street stalls located in six (6) public facilities (5 lots/1 garage). The Laurelwood on-street
parking inventory totals 261 on-street stalls. The complete area inventories are summarized in detail in the
following sections.

Page |1
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment
L.

Figure A: 2020 Downtown Parking Inventory Study Area

Page | 2
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Figure B: 2020 Laurelwood Inventory Study Area

Downtown
On-Street Parking

The on-street system is comprised of several stall types which can largely be separated by pay-to-park (coin
meter), unmetered (no fee charged), and uniquely signed special use spaces (e.g., ADA accessible).

There are 822 total on-street parking stalls within the Downtown study area. Of this total, 262 (31.9%) are
metered pay-to-park, while the remaining 560 (68.1%) are unmetered. Most unmetered stalls have no time
restriction (424 stalls), which allow unlimited parking. Of these stalls, 322 (39.2% of total) are in the
Downtown Free Parking Zone - Employee Parking Prohibited and 102 (12.4% of total) are unrestricted (no
signage). The remaining unmetered stalls consist of 10-Minute (16 stalls), 15-Minute (7 stalls), 30-Minute (4
stalls), 1-Hour (17 stalls), 2-Hour (73 stalls), and special use (19 stalls). Pay-to-park stalls, which all have
single head, coin-operated meters, consist of 2-Hour (156 stalls), 3-Hour (13 stalls), 5-Hour (15 stalls), and
10-Hour (78 stalls). The complete breakout of stalls by type in the downtown is summarized in Table 1.

Parking is enforced mostly Monday through Friday, with some stalls including Sunday, over a variety of hour
ranges including 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM (12 stalls), 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM (35 stalls), 9:00 AM to 4:00 PM (1 stall),
9:00 AM to 5:00 PM (36 stalls), and 9:00 AM to 6:00 PM (234 stalls).

According to the City of Roseburg, enforcement hours of the Downtown Free Parking Zone stalls are from
9:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through Saturday (322 stalls). Of the Downtown Free Parking Zone stalls, 14
stalls are also enforced from 1:00 AM to 5:00 AM. Sunday enforcement hours consist of 7:00 AM to 2:00 PM (3

Page | 3
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

stalls) and 9:00 AM to 2:00 PM (12 stalls), with most parking being free and unregulated all day. The
remaining 153 stalls have no known enforcement hours associated with them.

Table 1: Downtown on-street parking supply by stall type and restriction

Signed
0,
Stall Type 0 Total Metered Unmetered Or by permit
0“;1‘;;;’; 822 100.0% 262 (31.9%) 530 (64.5%) 30 (3.6%)
10 Minute 16 1.9% - 16 -
15 Minute <1% - -
30 Minute <1% - -
1 Hour 17 2.1% - 17 -
2 Hour 229 27.9% 156 43 30
3 Hour 13 1.6% 13 - -
5 Hour 15 1.8% 15 - -
10 Hour 78 9.5% 78 - -
Downtown Free 0
Pt Hore! 322 39.2% - 322 -
Unrestricted 102 12.4% . 102 ;
No Signage
ADA accessible 15 1.8% - 15 -
RV & Trail Parking 3 <1% i 3 i
Only
Veteran Service Van 0
Parking Only 1 <1 i 1 i

Figures C and D provide a detailed mapping of each of the 822 identified on-street stalls within the
downtown inventory study area. Given the complexity of detail (and for readability) in the mapping, the

inventory was divided in half for the area north and south of SE Washington.

1 Employee Parking Prohibited

Page | 4
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment
e

Figure C: Downtown on-street parking supply by stall type and restriction, North of SE Washington Avenue

Page | 5
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Figure D: Downtown on-street parking supply by stall type and restriction, South of SE Washington Avenue

Off-Street Parking

The City owns six (6) off-street sites in the downtown inventory study area and all are publicly accessible.
These sites total 543 stalls. The location of these sites is illustrated in Figure E.

Of this total, two (2) City lots provide free (including the ground-level of the parking garage), unlimited
parking to the public, with a combined 221 stalls (about 41% of all off-street parking downtown). The
remaining 322 stalls consist of permit (240 stalls), employee (55 stalls), and special use (27 stalls) parking
only. This is summarized in Table 2.

Page | 6
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Table 2: Downtown off-street parking supply by stall type (combined supply)

Stall Type Stalls % Total
Off-Street Supply 0
Collected (6 sites) 543 .
Permit Parking Only 238 43.8%
Permit Parking Only o
Oversize Vehicles 2 S
City Employee 53 9.8%
Employee Only 2 <1%

2 Hour Public Safety Center Event

0,
Parking Only or by Permit 17 3.1%
Unrestricted
. 221 40.7%
No Signage
ADA accessible 8 1.5%
Electric Vehicle 2 <1%

The largest City facility is the Parking Garage (299 stalls), located at the corner of SE Washington and SE Rose.
The smallest is the Shalimar Lot (19 stalls), located mid-block on the west side of SE Stephens, between SE
Cass and SE Lane. All the off-street sites, except for the Free Parking lot (at the Corner of SE Cass and SE
Rose), are primarily allocated to quarterly permit parking and employee parking. Of these sites, three (3)
dedicate 100% of their parking supply to permit parking (Armory Lot, Shalimar Lot, and Phillips Lot).

Table 3 provides a breakout of each lot by types of uses and fee (where applicable).

Table 3: Downtown off-street by site, stall type, and permit cost
Court Parking Armory Free Shalimar Phillips

Stall Type

Street Lot Garage2 Lot Parking Lot Lots
$66.00
Permit Cost per Quarter $51.00 $51.00 $72.00 - $75.00 $66.00
$75.00
Off-Street Supply Subtotal ‘ 20 299 40 52 19 43
Permit Parking Only 17 119 40 - 19 43
Permit Parking Only ) 2 ) ) i _
Oversize Vehicles
City Employee 53 - - - - -
Employee Only ‘ - - - 2 - -
2 Hour Public Safety Center
Event Parking Only or by 17 - - - - -
Permit
UnresFrlcted ‘ ) 173 _ 48 i -
No Signage
ADA accessible 3 3 - 2 - -
Electric Vehicle | - 2 - - : -

2 Parking permit costs per quarter are shown for the second, third, and oversized floor, respectively.

Page | 7
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment
e

Figure E: Downtown off-street parking supply by site and stall count

Page | 8
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Laurelwood

On-Street Parking

The residential area is comprised of 261 on-street parking stalls, most of which are dedicated to Residential
Permit Parking use (93.1%). The remaining stalls consist of no time restriction (16 stalls with no signage) and
Park Use Only (2 stalls). Parking is enforced during school days from 8:00 AM to 2:00 PM at Residential
Permit Parking stalls only. Parking is also enforced Monday through Friday from 4:00 AM to 6:00 PM on W
Bellows Street between SW Washington Avenue and W Finlay Avenue, which allows for no parking through
the corridor. However, an additional 42 stalls with no time restriction become available after the enforcement
hours.3 Parking is free and unregulated all day on non-school days, Saturday, and Sunday.

Table 4 summarizes the parking supply within the Laurelwood inventory study area.

Table 4: Laurelwood on-street parking supply by stall type and restriction

Stall Type Stalls % Total
On-Street 261 100.0%
Supply
Residential Permit o
Parking Only 243 93.1%
UnresFrlcted 16 6.1%
No Signage
Parking for o
Park Use Only 2 <1%

Figure F provides a detailed mapping of each of the 261 identified on-street stalls within the Laurelwood

inventory study area.

3 For inventory purposes, this area is restricted to no parking for the majority of a typical day and is noted as such.

Page | 9
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment
L.

Figure F: Laurelwood on-street parking supply by stall type and restriction

1.3 Field Notes

Downtown - Overview

Downtown Roseburg is a beautiful and historic Main Street city located in the scenic Umpqua River Valley
of Southern Oregon. The Downtown features several street amenities including hanging flower baskets,
city maps, community art, ADA curb cuts, and bicycle racks. These features compliment historic buildings
along Main street, which create a very walkable downtown serving a diversity of businesses. The photo
montage below illustrates the variety and quality of these streetscape amenities.

Page | 10
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment
L.

On-street parking Downtown on-street parking is well striped, creating an ordered system for drivers where
allowed parking is easily identified(see photo at right). Drivers can park downtown in the ‘free zone’ which
allows drivers to park on-street without having to pay nor adhere to a time stay. However, the boundary of
the free zone is irregular and confusing as meters/time stays may begin in the middle of a street abutting the
free zone.4 Further, the on-street signage is also confusing, unclear, and not consistent. Overall, the parking
occupancy of the on-street system was moderation the day of the inventory5. The highest on-street
occupancy observed occurred in the free zone.

From visual observation, use appeared to be in the range of 50%-60%of supply, which is seen as
moderate/adequate from an industry perspective (see graphic at right).

The free zone allows for free all day long-term parking near many retail shops along the main street. Single-
head meters are on the periphery of the downtown, and in some instances are in front of single-family
housing units. The meters are older and outdated coin-operated meters which do not allow for credit/debit
card nor smartphone transactions, which (based on industry findings) is the preferred method of payment by
users. The time-limits for the meters are inconsistent throughout the inventory and along single blackfaces,
varying from 2 hours to 10 hours. Therefore, street signage did not always comport with the actual meter
time-limit sat a location. Rates also varied, along with enforcement hours. Recorded enforcement hours from
meters included 8:00 AM-6:00 PM and 8:00 AM-5:00 PM (9 and 8 hours, respectively) allowing for
enforcement gaps for 10-hour metered stalls. This can be frustrating to customers and communicates a
confusing message overall. The photo montage below shows the range of meter type and quality. A further
examination of the meters, meter location, corresponding signage and enforcement would benefit the on-and
off-street systems. Off-street parking

4See map of Downtown Free Parking area in Appendix at the end of this document.

50bservations were completed in August 2020 with some COVID-19 restrictions in place.

a location. Rates also varied, along with enforcement hours. Recorded enforcement hours from meters included 8:00 AM-6:00
PM and 8:00 AM-5:00 PM(9 and 8 hours, respectively) allowing for enforcement gaps for 10-hour metered stalls. This can be
frustrating to customers and communicates a confusing message overall. The photo montage below shows the range of meter

Page | 11
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

type and quality. A further examination of the meters, meter location, corresponding signage and enforcement would benefit the
on-and off-street systems. Off-street parking
Downtown - Parking

Off-street parking

Like the on-street system, the six (6) public off-street lots and parking garage were largely underutilized at
the time of observations (refer to Figure E Downtown off-street parking supply). Not surprisingly, the free
zone lot, which is essentially an off-street extension of the on-street free zone, is the most occupied of the off-
street lots. The lower level of the parking garage allows for visitor parking, while the two upper levels are
permit only.

The Parking Garage is centrally located in downtown, however, not well utilized. It is not well lit and there is
graffiti along some of the walls and stairwell. This environment is not welcoming and leads to a feeling of
being unsafe.

The Court Street lot is divided into City employee parking, permit holders and public safety events parking,
although the signage is somewhat confusing. The Armory lot, also a permit lot, is relatively well utilized.
Finally, the Shalimar and Phillips permit lots had very low occupancies. Overall, the six (6) lots are well
striped on smooth pavement. Signage is well marked but inconsistent and, at times, confusing. There is not a
unifying City brand for the off-street lots.

Of the six (6) public off-street lots, the free zone lot and the Armory lot appeared to have the highest usage*

Free Zone Lot Parking Garage it Philips Lot

Laurelwood - Parking

4 Observations were completed in August 2020 with some COVID-19 restrictions in place.

Page | 12
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

The Laurelwood neighborhood near the local high school
and Chadwick street, abutting the downtown area, are both
part of Residential Permit Programs (RPP).

The street signage reflects that permitholders are
prioritized for the on-street system. In the Laurelwood
neighborhood, the residential permit stalls are enforced
from 8:00 AM - 2:00 PM during school days. Overall signage
is apparent in most areas, however, there are some gaps as
well as confusing signage, which could lead to unwarranted
parking tickets. Chadwick street signage is straightforward
(2-hour parking or by residential permit).

Overall, the RWC survey staff observed several promising elements of the on- and off-street parking systems.
Further investigation and ultimately strategic recommendations will help modernize the systems allowing for
an effective and efficient parking experience for all users.

Page | 13
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Appendix A

Figure G: Downtown Free Parking Zone area

Page | 14
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Appendix B: WP #2 - Review and Assessment of Policy and Code

Page | B
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

White Paper #2: Review and Assessment of Policy and Code

September 2020 (v1)

1.1 Purpose

The description of services for the Roseburg Downtown Parking Assessment calls for a review of the current
Roseburg Municipal Code (RMC) regulations regarding the City’s parking program and provide
recommendations for amendments to help facilitate a more successful parking program. Current RMC
regulations for parking are in Title 8, Chapter 8.02 - TRAFFIC CONTROL AND GENERAL PARKING
REGULATIONS and Chapter 8.04. - PARKING IN DOWNTOWN PARKING DISTRICT, Chapter 8.06 - ON-STREET
PARKING EXEMPTIONS, and Chapter 8.08 - PARKING FINES AND ADDITIONAL REMEDIES.

This Section will summarize the consultant’s review of the parking code and recommendations for additions
and revisions to the current code. The review will also propose several parking policy elements that will be
beneficial to, and supportive of, specific code sections. The recommendations herein will also be referenced in

the Recommendations and Implementation Plan.
1.2 Background

One of the most significant challenges of managing a
municipal parking system is trying to accommodate
the needs of competing user groups. The parking
system simply cannot serve all users’ needs equally,
particularly when the demand for a space occurs
during similar peak times. Parking is a scarce and
costly resource that needs to be prioritized for the
highest and best use.

With a clear understanding of who has priority to a
parking spot, polices can be developed that “get the
right user to the right space.” This outcome should be
reflected both in a city’s parking policy framework
and, subsequently in its code regulations which are
established to ensure parking priorities are delivered.

Knowing there is a limited supply of parking, city parking managers must make decisions regarding who
should get priority access to specific stalls. Further, when one group is not prioritized, city parking managers
must consider how and in what form their parking needs should or should not be accommodated. Industry
best practices emphasizes that there should be high clarity and agreement in identifying priority users of the
parking system, particularly for publicly controlled on- and off-street resources. With a clear understanding
of who has priority to a parking spot, policies can be developed that “get the right user to the right space.”
This outcome should be reflected both in a city’s parking policy framework and, subsequently, in its code
regulations which are established to ensure parking priorities are delivered.

The following analysis provides an overview of recommendations for revisions to Title 8 of the Roseburg
Municipal Code related to parking management and program delivery. The intent here is to augment policy
guidance and clarify regulatory standards within the code.

1.3 Title 8 Parking Code Review

Find below specific references in Title 8, Sections 8.02 - Traffic Control and General Parking Regulations and
8.04 - Parking in Downtown Parking District, that could be refined/modified to create a more direct
functional relationship between the City’s overall management of parking and intent to support a more

efficient and successful downtown.
Policy Guidance - Purpose and Intent

8.02.010 - Traffic laws—State statutes adopted.

Based on the premise that growth in the downtown will require an integrated and comprehensive package of
strategies to respond to growth, it will be important to establish clear priorities necessary to facilitate an
efficient and successful parking program. Without clear and consensus priorities, it becomes difficult to
initiate solutions requiring changes to the parking system (and the status quo) and form partnerships

between stakeholders that facilitate success.

Page |1
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Consultant Finding:

At present, Title 8, Chapter 8.02 of the code does not include any reference to parking policy priorities. It does
reference policy related to traffic laws in 8.02.010, stating “it is the policy of the City to conform its traffic
laws as closely as feasible to the traffic laws of the State of Oregon.” The 1999 Downtown Roseburg Master
Plan? provided parking focused guidance for the downtown system and was heavily weighted (in parking
guidance) to street systems and new parking infrastructure, with a specific recommendation to ensure that
most on-street parking remain free and unregulated (except for time limits along Jackson Street). That said,
the guidance from this document is over 20 years old and does not tie well into a linkage between policy
intent and code regulations.

As related to parking and parking management in code, many cities include in their codes a section called
“purpose and intent” (e.g., Portland) or “legislative findings” (e.g., Corvallis) which serve as pre-sections of a
code chapter. The goal being to create a relationship between code regulations and a priority intent.

Consultant Recommendation:

Consider retitling this section to Purpose and Intent - Traffic Laws and Parking Management. This would
preserve 8.02.010 A and B, which specifically refers to policies related to traffic. A new section C would be
added stating:

C. Where parking is regulated, the City of Roseburg intends to:

1. Coordinate parking in a manner that supports the unique character of emerging downtown districts
and neighborhoods.

2. Strive to achieve parking operations that are financially sound and self-sustaining, taking into
consideration affordability and efficiency.

3. Capitalize on strategic investments in technology to improve parking management and the user
experience.

4. Manage the on-street system to provide a rate of turnover that supports “district” vitality.

5. Reduce conflicts for access between users, prioritizing visitor access in commercial districts and
residents and their guests in neighborhoods.

6. Provide sufficient parking to meet employee demand, specifically in conjunction with City owned off-
street facilities and other reasonable travel mode options.

7. Be supportive of the City’s goals for Downtown by managing parking to encourage other modes of
travel where feasible.

8. Use performance measurements and reporting to ensure the intent and purpose for parking
management are achieved.

This revision would create a straightforward and easy to articulate outline of purpose and intent that will
better inform the public (and readers of the code) as to the need for parking management when certain
conditions require city actions and programs. It will better clarify actual code regulations as they will now tie
back to stated priorities.

Policy Guidance - Fee/Rate Policy

Adjusting parking rates and fees is always a difficult process. Cities that do not have clear criteria for
adjusting rates and fees often experience political and community pushback, which at times delays or
suspends financial decisions that can have significant impacts on parking and general funds, mitigation of
access constraints and forward progress in evolving parking and access systems.

It is not uncommon for medium-small cities to not have established rate policies. However, growing cities
that anticipate different parking and transportation needs and goals often provide a framework and path

11999 Downtown Roseburg Master Plan. See especially, Chapter IV.

Page | 2
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment
e

from which rates can be adjusted based upon a clear policy statement(s). This type of approach can serve as a
guide for Roseburg.

Consultant Finding:

Within the Roseburg Code, there is not clear direction as to a parking rate or fee policy to help guide decision
making on rate increases (or decreases). There is also use of both the terms “fee” and “rate,” which, upon first
review, may or may not have similar meaning.

There is only a reference in 8.02.030 F.4. - City Manager powers, that states the City Manager can exercise
administrative action as regards “parking area time limitations, including the form of permissible parking and
any fees thereof” though this authority does not extend to “establishing parking meter zones or parking meter
rates.”? Subsequent code sections do not clearly state who does have authority or the specific criteria for
setting rates or fees. In 8.02.040 D.4. - Criteria for administrative actions, it does indicate that the City
Manager, with the decision of City Council, will consider “the demand for operating revenues, the cost of
operation and enforcement of the parking regulations.” The consultant assumes parking rate and fee
adjustments are targeted in this regard, though again, that is not clear.

Consultant Recommendation:

To guide rate changes over time, we recommend adopting a formal administrative document that outlines the
City’s Parking Rate Policy and protocols for fee/rate adjustments. This document would then be referenced in
8.02.030 - City Manager powers and 8.02.040 - Criteria for administrative actions (see below).

Evaluative criteria that are common in other municipalities, are described below. The City of Roseburg may
want to consider other metrics and protocols that better fit its administrative and management capacities.
The intent, as stated, is to create a formal administrative policy document that establishes clear metrics and
protocols for advising City Council and the community on the strategic review and potential adjustment of
parking rates and fees.

Periodic Review

Establish a routine review of parking rates to ensure that rates are
adequate to parking demand and coverage of normal operating costs
associated with the City’s parking operations and enforcement. Review
would also be consistent with new language related to Purpose and
Intent recommended above for 8.02.010 C. Best practices would
suggest review no later than every two years.

Target Occupancy Ranges

On and off-street rates should be calibrated based on measured
occupancy levels and compared to a set of targets (such as 85%) to
determine whether rates are effectively supporting downtown
businesses.?

Establish Rate Ranges

A rate range refers to the potential rates for a specific area or parking type (e.g. hourly on-street, employee,
and residential permits and/or citations). For example, the new rate policy could allow for rate changes to be
carried out administratively if they fall within a range established by Council and are based on an agreed-
upon evaluation process. City Council should approve ranges that establish a minimum rate and an upper rate

2 Emphasis added by the consultant.

3 The “85% Rule” is an operating principle and industry based management tool for coordinating a parking supply. When occupancies
routinely reach 85% in the peak hour, more intensive and aggressive parking management strategies are called for to assist patrons in
finding available parking. The “85% Rule” standard will facilitate Roseburg’s ability to make reasonable and effective decisions regarding
fees/rates, time stays, enforcement and other strategic decisions related to capacity management.

Page | 3
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

to which adjustments can be made over time. For instance, Vancouver, WA has rate ranges for on-street
parking that range from $0.35 - $2.00 per hour and $30 - $150 per month for monthly passes. The decision to
adjust rates is made based on clearly established criteria that are documented, measured, and reviewed by
the City Manager and appropriate staff and/or committee. If criteria are met, then the City Manager has the
authority to adjust rates within the approved ranges without Council approval. Once the top end of a rate
range was achieved, City Council would need to approve new ranges.

Key Metrics
Common metrics used for “calibrating” parking rates and fees include:

o True cost: True cost refers to the actual cost necessary to cover the normal operating cost and debt
coverage of the parking inventory in question. This would include the cost of supplies, operating fees,
maintenance, support, and operation of the on-street pay-to-park system as well as the reasonable cost of
financing debt. Enforcement citation rates/fees would be based on the cost of labor, administrative
support, and equipment/technology.

e Growth & Maintenance: Reasonable increments necessary to assure continued growth and replacement
of the operating system itself? This would include turnover of equipment due to life cycle replacement,
new technologies and/or other factors of growth in the operating system.

o Parking occupancies: Sustained occupancies in excess of 85% (i.e., market demand).

o Comparable cities: To ensure rates are reasonable with other like-sized cities, rates and fees should use
comparisons to a set of reasonable comparable cities and routinely track their rate performance over
time for on-street, off-street and enforcement. This provides the City with a “market” assessment of rates
for similarly sized cities.

Data Collection

Ideally, the City would move to a data-driven approach to inform fee/rate changes. This would require
parking occupancy data to be collected on a regular schedule to assess the true parking environment.

General Code Guidance

Find below specific references in Title 8, Section 8.02 - Traffic Control and General Parking Regulations, that
could be refined/modified to create a more direct functional relationship between the City’s overall
management of parking and intent to support a more efficient and successful downtown.

8.02.005 - Definitions

Consultant Finding:

With the conclusion of the downtown assessment of parking, it may be necessary to amend one definition in
this code section (i.e.,, Downtown Parking District) and add definitions for fees and rates.

Consultant Recommendation:

Add new definitions:

e Downtown Parking District - the current definition may need revision per consultant
recommendations, which would include in the “downtown parking district” only block faces that are
zoned for commercial uses.

o Fees and Rates -8.02.005 should add definitions for both “fees” and “rates” as they currently seem to be
used interchangeably throughout Section 8.02. If there is a clear distinction between the two terms, they

Page | 4
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

should be defined here. If they are intended to be one and the same, then one should be selected for
consistent use throughout all sections of 8.02.

e Metered Parking - any time limited parking stall or parking area where use of parking is limited by a
posted maximum time allowance and requires payment of a stated fee for use, whether by coin,
credit/debit card or virtual payment (on-line payment or data base record).

o Parking permit - a document, card, hang-tag, sticker or chip for display in a vehicle, as well a virtual
(data base record), showing accurately the driver of the vehicle has permission to park in a specific area
and the terms and conditions of use are stated on the permit.

e Time Limited Parking - any parking stall or parking area where use of parking is limited by a posted
maximum time allowance. Time limited parking may or may not require payment of a fee.

e Types of Parking - the code currently has definitions for loading zones and passenger loading zones. It
may be useful to establish definitions for:

0 High turnover parking stalls - any parking stall signed or metered for stays of less than 1 hour.
0 Long-term parking stalls - any parking stall signed or metered for stays of more than 4 hours.
0 Short-term parking stalls - any parking stall signed or metered for stays of 1 to 4 hours.

8.02.030 F.4. - City Manager powers (as relates to fees and rates)

Consultant Finding:

8.02.030 F.4. currently states that the City Manager can, by administrative action, establish, maintain, or alter,
“Parking areas and time limitations, including the form of permissible parking and any fees therefor. This
authority does not include establishing parking meter zones or parking meter rates.”

At this point, the City code does not provide clear direction or criteria for establishing or adjusting fees/rates.

Consultant Recommendation:

We recommend that the City consider changing the language in 8.02.030 F.4 to state:

e Parking areas and time limitations, including the form of permissible parking and any fees or rates
therefor as provided in 8.02.040 D.4.

This change will refer to new language in 8.02.040 D.4. (see below) that provides the City Manager flexibility
to manage fees/rates within the context of a City Council established administrative policy for managing
fees/rates in Policy Guidance - Parking Fee/Rate Policy described above.

8.02.030 F.4. - City Manager powers (as relates to enforcement)
Consultant Finding:
8.02.030 I currently states that the City Manager can, by administrative action:

Adopt and enforce parking and traffic control regulations at the Roseburg Regional Airport. Enforcement will
include state laws and City ordinances regarding motor vehicle operations and all parking and traffic control
devices at the Airport.

No other section of the code addresses enforcement outside of the Roseburg Regional Airport.

Consultant Recommendation:

Revise 8.02.030 I to state:

e Adopt and enforce parking and traffic control regulations for all regulated parking areas or districts.
Enforcement will include state laws and City ordinances regarding motor vehicle operations and all
parking and traffic control devices where parking is regulated.

Page | 5
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

8.02.04.0 - Criteria for administrative actions

Consultant Finding:

8.02.040 D.4 currently states that administrative actions of the City Manager and the decision of the City
Council upon review of such actions shall (among other conditions) be based upon consideration of “the
demand for operating revenues, the cost of operation and enforcement of the parking regulations.” This
language does not clarify a procedure for establishing the need for a fee /rate adjustment, nor a timeline for
such review. The current language also infers that all fee /rate adjustments are case-by-case reviews by City
Council, which reduces the flexibility of the City (through the City Manager) to adjust fees/rates as necessary
to demand, within a City Council approved framework of criteria (see Policy Guidance - Fee/Rate Policy,
above).

Consultant Recommendation:

Revise 8.02.040 D.4 to state:
e Guidance on fee/rates as set forth in the City’s Fee/Rate Policy for parking.

This change will allow the City Manager the flexibility to adjust rates more appropriate to demand and
market circumstances, using clear metrics and standards. This will streamline the process and better support
decision-making and system viability.

8.02.090 B.1. - General parking regulations (parallel/angled parking).

Consultant Finding:

8.02.090 B.1- Required Methods of Parking would appear to prohibit angled parking, requiring that all
parking in a street will be “parallel with the edge of the roadway, heading in the direction of lawful traffic
movement...” We were not sure if opportunities for angled parking exist in Roseburg but have experience
with some cities that have found it advantageous, where feasible, to increasing parking capacity and
supporting street level businesses.

Consultant Recommendation:

To provide flexibility in the future for examination of potential opportunities to expand on-street parking
capacity, we would recommend that 8.02.090 B.1 be revised to state:

e Unless approved by the City Traffic Engineer, no person shall stand or park a vehicle in a street other
than parallel with the edge of the roadway, headed in the direction of lawful traffic movement and with
the curbside wheels of the vehicle within twelve inches of the edge of the curb, except where the street is
marked or signed for angle parking.

8.02.090 E.2. - General parking regulations (as regards bus stops and taxicab stands).

Consultant Finding:

This reference is more a housekeeping question to ask if the City has actual taxicab stands in place. If so, it
might be useful to remove the reference to taxicab stands. That said, such stands may exist at the airport. If
taxicab stands are in place, then the finding and recommendation below are moot.

8.02.090 E.2 - Vehicles Other Than Buses or Taxicabs states:

e No person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle, other than a bus in a bus stand, or other than a taxicab in a
taxicab stand, except that the driver of a passenger vehicle may temporarily stop for the purpose of, and
while actually engaged in, loading or unloading passengers, when such stopping does not interfere with
any bus or taxicab waiting to enter or about to enter such zone.

Page | 6
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment
e

Consultant Recommendation:

If taxicab stands are not in place in the downtown or at the airport, then retitle 8.02.090 E.2 as Vehicles Other
Than Buses, and state:

e No person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle, other than a bus in a bus stand, except that the driver of a
passenger vehicle may temporarily stop for the purpose of, and while actually engaged in, loading or
unloading passengers, when such stopping does not interfere with any bus waiting to enter or about to
enter such zone.

8.02.100 - Parking meter regulations.

Consultant Finding:

Given changes in technologies for payment of parking and to recognize that parking stalls may be regulated
by time limit only as well as through use of meters (coin operated and pay station), we believe the current
titling of this section is outdated.

Consultant Recommendation:

8.02.100 should be retitled as 8.02.100 - Use of regulated parking.

8.02.100 A. - Parking meter regulations (as regards payment for parking).

Consultant Finding:

The current language is focused on coin use of metered parking. Regulated parking systems are a generally a
combination of time limited (free) parking, which must be enforced, as well as metered systems which
require coin or electronic payment (e.g., debit/credit cards).

Consultant Recommendation:
8.02.100 A. - should be updated to state:

e Payment for parking. No person shall park any vehicle in any metered parking space, except as otherwise
permitted by this Chapter, without immediately depositing in the parking meter adjacent to such space,
such lawful methods of payment (coin, credit/debit card or virtual payment) as are required by such
meter and as designated by directions on the meter, and when required by the directions of the meter
unless the parking meter indicates at the time such vehicle is parked that an unexpired portion of the
period for which a payment has been previously deposited remains.

8.02.100 B. - Parking meter regulations (as regards legal time limit).

Consultant Finding:

As with the above change, the current code is focused on metered parking, when other types of unpaid
parking are allowed (i.e., time limited). 8.02.100.B should be revised to reflect new definitions recommended
for 8.02.005 and actual formatting (types) of parking on-street.

Consultant Recommendation

8.02.100 B. - should be updated to state:

e Legal Time Limit. Except as otherwise permitted by this Chapter, no person shall park a vehicle or allow a
vehicle to remain parked in any time limited space beyond the maximum time limit for parking in such
space.

Page | 7
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

8.02.110 A. - Special parking permits (as regards disabled person parking permits).

Consultant Finding:

The issue related special parking permits for disabled persons is whether the code language in 8.02.110 A.1.a.
(i)-(iii) applies only to the City’s on-street “public parking zone” or whether “public parking zone” would
include City (publicly owned) off-street parking facilities.

In the consultants’ experience, rules for special parking permits do not pertain to how off-street parking is
used, whether those spaces are time limited, free or pay-to-park. The interpretation we have of current
language in 8.02.110 is that it does apply to any public parking zone. Thus, if the City has off-street facilities
in a defined parking zone, then these rules would apply. Also, the language in A.1.a.(iii) is very wide open,
allowing such permit holders to “park for an unlimited amount of time within the Downtown Parking
District,” which could lead in the future to residents in housing located within a downtown public parking
zone to simply park a vehicle on-street or in a public lot indefinitely, while displaying a valid Disabled Person
Parking Permit.

Consultant Recommendation:

Given the very technical issues related to disabled parking in local, state, and federal law, we recommend
further discussion and review of this section by City staff and the City attorney to see if clarifying revisions to
this code section should be pursued.

8.02.110 B.1 - Special parking permits (as regards Delivery of Service Permits).

Consultant Finding:

8.02.110.B.1 should be revised to better reflect new definitions recommended in 8.02.005 above. The third
sentence of the paragraph for 8.01.110 B.1 states:

o No metered space shall be used by any permit holder for any continuous period longer than the time
provided on the meter in question.*

Consultant Recommendation:
Revise 8.02.110.B.1 should be revised as follows:

e No time limited space shall be used by any permit holder for any continuous period longer than the time
provided on the space in question.

8.02.110 C - Special parking permits (as regards Courtesy Visitor Permits).

Consultant Finding:

8.02.110 C describes rules of use for Courtesy Visitor Permits. The language does not indicate that there is a
term limit on the permit (e.g., specific day(s)), only that the permittee is authorized “to park their vehicle
without regard to time limits and without have to pay the meter fees in any parking space.”

Consultant Recommendation
Revise 8.02.110.C should be revised as follows:

e Courtesy Visitor Permits. The City Manager may, at their discretion, make courtesy permits available to
visitors of the City. Such permits shall be free and limited to specific periods of use (e.g., hours, day(s)).
These permits, if properly displayed in accordance with the direction prescribed by the City Manager,
shall authorize the permittee to park their vehicle without regard to time limits and without having to
pay the meter fees in any parking space.

4 Emphasis added by the consultant.

Page | 8
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Chapter 8.04 - Parking in Downtown Parking District

Consultant Finding:

Per discussions with City staff, Chapter 8.04 reflects the City’s attempt to discourage and/or mitigate the use
of on-street parking within the downtown free parking area by employees and students. Per 8.04.010 “no
person who is employed, or is a contract service provider, or is attending school in the parking district, or
employs another or resides in the parking district shall park a vehicle on the public way in the parking district
while in his place of employment, in his residence, or attending school, between nine a.m. and five p.m. on any
day excepting Sundays and holidays.” Per 8.04.030 businesses and other state entities are supposed to report
to the City employee names and license plate numbers by January 15 of each year. The intent is to be able to
provide enforcement personnel with information to track use of parking by employees in the downtown.

Staff has indicated that implementation of such provisions is severely flawed and unmanageable.

The consultant is aware of only one other City with such provisions - Corvallis, Oregon - who have also
indicated that the program is “on the books” but not implemented or managed.

Consultant Recommendation:

We believe that 8.04 could be eliminated through the parking management strategies that are recommended
in the Recommendations Chapter of the Downtown Parking Assessment, given that those recommendations
would initiate time limited parking within a larger are of the downtown. We recommend that a further
evaluation of 8.04 take place once the broader strategies of the Downtown Parking Assessment are evaluated
by City staff and City Council.

Chapter 8.06.010 - On Street Parking Exemptions (as regards Purpose)

Consultant Finding:

8.06.010 intends to exempt residents and their legitimate house-guests from certain restrictions placed
parking on streets that front their primary residences. This is a good intent in residentially zone areas but
can be difficult for residences built in areas that are zoned non-residential or mixed use, like the downtown.
For instance, many new urban residential projects are being built in downtowns that provide for (require)
ground level commercial uses, with residential on upper floors. Exempting residents in these types of
developments from time limits can lead to the warehousing of residential vehicles on-street, during
commercial business hours. It can also incent developers to not provide parking within their projects,
knowing that certain commercial streets in the downtown exempt residents from time limits and other rules
of use.

Consultant Recommendation:

Revise 8.06.010 to state:

e The purpose of this Chapter is to provide permanent residents, and their legitimate house-guests,
exemption from certain restrictions placed on on-street vehicle parking when such restrictions are
placed on residentially zoned streets fronting their primary residences.

Chapter 8.08.020 B and C - Immobilization of vehicles (as regards dollar amount resulting in action by

City)
Consultant Finding:

Per 8.08.020 B and C, City action to immobilize a vehicle for repeating parking violations begins when a
vehicle “has been involved in five or more parking violations under the applicable Chapters of this Code, has
outstanding bail, fines or both totaling $250.” This seems a very high bar to address repeat violations before
immobilization of a vehicle can begin (with the proper notices already outlined in this code provision).

Page | 9
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment
e

Consultant Recommendation:

We would recommend that the City consider revising 8.08.020 B and C to eliminate the $250 provision and
initiate action upon the fifth parking violation.

1.4 Summary

The code revisions provided above are intended to address areas of the code that lack clarity as well as to
create a more direct relationship between the code and City parking management goals and objectives.

Page | 10
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Appendix C: WP #3 - Summary of Guiding Principles

Page | C
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

White Paper #3: Guiding Principles for Parking Management
September 2020 (v2)

This memorandum outlines a draft set of Guiding Principles for the management of parking in downtown
Roseburg. This preliminary draft was developed based on the input received from the Parking Stakeholder
Advisory Committee and is intended to illicit reaction, discussion, and additional input from the Committee at its
October 27, 2020 meeting.

The aim is to ensure that these proposed Guiding Principles are reflective of the intent, purpose, and priorities of
the SAC for managing parking in the downtown. Input received at upcoming Committee meetings and scheduled
public forums will be used to further revise and refine this draft prior to presenting a draft set of Guiding
Principles to the Roseburg City Council. A final set of Guiding Principles will be established following input and
refinement from Council.

1.1 Stakeholder Committee Input

A successful downtown has a clear sense of place and offers an
enticing mix of uses and amenities. The role of parking is to support
the pursuit of this vision. People do not come downtown to park; they
come to experience an environment that is unique, active, and diverse.
A well-organized and effective parking system makes it safe, easy, and
convenient for them to do so. Getting the right parker to the right
stall—making a place for each user of downtown—defines a
successful parking program.

Desired Outcomes

If parking is to be successful, the parking management plan will need
to be:

o Emphasize customer parking - as the public parking system is

prioritized to serve customers.

Consistent - in format, messaging, and design.

Sustainable - both financially and as it supports City goals.

Equitable - in application and affordability.

Convenient - easy to navigate and interact with and take advantage of downtown’s walkable

environment to connect to stores, restaurant, business, and recreational destinations.

Flexible - to anticipate and respond to increasing demand for access to the downtown.

e (learly marked - clearly communicate how and where to find appropriate and available parking; make
parking understandable.

Supporting Roseburg’s Unique Character

Roseburg is a special place. It is a beautiful community, connected to
nature, and provides a high quality of life to its residents and
visitors. Management of the parking system should reinforce and
enhance Roseburg’s unique qualities and character. These qualities
include:

e A family-friendly small town that is welcoming and inviting.

e A place where people know each other.

e Anamenity-rich community with an historic Main Street feel,
unique shops, and great attractions.

e Ahigh quality of life, affordability, and an engaged community.

Page |1
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

e An attractive destination downtown that is both connected to nature (e.g., Umpqua Valley, Crater Lake)
and conveniently proximate as a hub connection to the I-5 corridor.
e The downtown is diverse and easy to get around.

1.2 Guiding Principles - Elements of Parking Management

The Guiding Principles outlined here are summarized under theme categories. The intent is to establish a
basis for consensus and provide both near- and long-term direction for parking management in downtown.
The principles are presented in no particular order or priority.

Priority Users

e On-Street System (Downtown): The most convenient on-street parking will be preserved for the priority
user: the short-term customer trip.?

The on-street parking system in the downtown will be
formatted in a manner that supports turnover and On-street parking should be
minimizes conflicts between the priority user and other available for customers.
users. Employees should not park on-street when at work
and residents should not park on-street in downtown
when at home, particularly when demand for customer parking is high.

e  On-Street System (Adjacent Neighborhoods): The most convenient on-street parking will be preserved
for the priority user: the resident and their guests.

As with on-street parking in the downtown, neighborhood
parking will be formatted in a manner that assures
priority access and minimizes conflicts between the
residential users in a neighborhood and other users.
Employees should not park on-street in residential areas,
particularly when demand for parking by neighborhood
residents and guests is high. When demand is low and/or
surpluses of parking exist, the City can accommodate non-
priority users in the on-street system for interim periods
(e.g., downtown visitors, events).

As parking downtown is
prioritized for commercial
uses, parking in
neighborhoods should be
prioritized for residents and
their guests.

e  Off-Street System: Coordinate public off-street parking to meet employee and residential demand,
balanced with the need for customers and visitors seeking a
longer term stay option.

Existing parking resources
The City’s public off-street supply can serve as an effective should be managed to ensure

resource to provide employees and downtown residents a efficient use of available public
convenient and reliable place to park. This reinforces the parking assets.
customer priority for the on-street system.

1 Customer is defined here as anyone using businesses downtown by a transient trip - this includes shopping, eating,
entertainment, recreating, and visiting downtown amenities. As such, a customer can be a shopper, tourist, or local
resident visiting the downtown.

Page | 2
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Active Capacity Management

e Optimize Utilization: Manage the public parking system using the 85% Occupancy Standard to inform and
guide decision-making.

The 85% Rule is an operating principle for coordinating Car.s currently move and
parking supply. When occupancies routinely reach 85% circulate well in the
during peak periods, more intensive and targeted parking d9wntown. The 85% Rule
management strategies are called for to assist priority will help to manage growth
users in finding available parking. The 85% Rule will and support priority ISR £15
facilitate reasonable and data-driven decisions regarding demands change and conflicts
time stays, enforcement, and other practices related to emerge.

capacity management.

Information Systems (Supply and Customer Based)

Supply-Based

e Monitor and Report Utilization. Performance measurements and reporting will be used to facilitate
decision-making.

Committing to a routine, objective system of measurement and reporting ensures that decision-
making will be informed by data. Key metrics include occupancy, turnover, average duration of stay,
rate of violation, and customer input. Performance monitoring also provides a basis for routine
evaluation of program effectiveness.

Customer-Based

e  Product Quality. The public on- and off-street parking systems will be safe, reliable, user-friendly, and
attractive. They will complement the quality of downtown and attract visitors and customers.

The quality of the parking system and its supporting
programs should reflect the quality of Roseburg itself. On- Existing coin meters are very
street parking should be uniformly managed and outdated. The garage feels
enforced to ensure an intuitive, reasonable sense of time unsafe in some areas.
limits. Off-street facilities should be of uniform quality
and identity to create a clear sense of safety, convenience,
understandability, and integrate with the pedestrian environment. Communications systems should
be professional and effectively coordinated. All systems should, to the highest degree possible, be
reliable and easy to use and understand.

e System Communications. Communications will be uniform and strategically coordinated.

Systems to improve understanding, awareness, and ease
of use of parking should be periodically evaluated
(signage, wayfinding, and collateral customer ¢
information). High-quality communication and marketing should be reliable and easy to
materials should be integrated into a usable package of use and understand.
services to accurately inform and guide the parking
public. Ideally, communications systems would be
integrated through a unique “Roseburg Parking” logo that distinguishes the public parking supply
from private supply.

Communications systems

Page | 3
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Code and Regulation

e Code & Regulation: The City’s parking code should be supportive of user priorities and reflect these

Guiding Principles.

Roseburg’s code for parking should be structured to
reflect the City’s vision for land use growth (commercial The code provides guidance to
and residential). Its requirements and regulatory
guidance should inform and be reflected in parking
management strategies that will be implemented over
time; its intent and purpose to facilitate an efficient and
self-sustaining public parking system.

achieving desired parking
outcomes.

Financial Viability

e  Fiscal Stewardship: All public parking operations should strive to be financially sustainable.

Parking revenues should cover the cost of operations while providing reasonable surpluses to ensure
the highest quality access product, customer convenience, system maintenance, safety, and service
delivery. This will require multiple funding sources for parking operations, maintenance, and system
growth. Sources can include leases, enforcement fees, hourly rates and other user fees, and/or
partnerships with the private sector.

Roles and Coordination

e Primary Role (City of Roseburg): The City’s role in providing public parking is listed in priority order and

includes:

0 Accommodating customer/visitor access downtown;

0 Providing (in partnership with the private sector) reasonable access for downtown employees;
0 Facilitating residential and/or guest access in

neighborhoods adjacent to the downtown.

The City is primarily responsible

The cost for providing parking, especially off-street, is for supplying parking to
very high. The City cannot be fully responsible for customers, using its off-street
providing parking to all users. The City’s role must system to balance demand of
prioritize downtown'’s public system for customers and other users.

visitors.

o Stakeholder Support: Ensure that a representative body of affected private and public constituents

routinely informs decision-making.

Active participation by those affected by parking strategies helps to build an understanding of the
inherent tradeoffs in all parking management decisions. This will be best accomplished through an
established process that allows for routine review performance metrics stakeholders and ongoing
input for emerging issues, challenges, or opportunities.

Page | 4
September 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Appendix D: WP #4 - Parking Management & Financial Review

Page | D
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

White Paper #4: Parking Management & Financial Review
November 2020 (v2)
1.1 Parking Management Overview
Background

Effective enforcement is a critical component of any parking management program. Prior to 2012, the City of
Roseburg contracted with Diamond Parking for management and enforcement services. The City of Roseburg
paid Diamond an annual flat service fee to manage the downtown on and off-street supply. Since 2012, the
City contracted with the Downtown Roseburg Association (DRA) to oversee parking management for the City.
In addition to managing a Main Street program, DRA was to operate the parking management services as
‘Park-Smart’, the enforcement arm and branded social enterprise under the DRA. The new contract remained
similar initially, where the City paid the DRA a flat annual fee for service. However, the fee structure of
contract changed in 2016 in that the DRA paid the City of Roseburg an annual flat fee to manage the parking
enforcement, rather than the other way around. The new contract agreement with the DRA provided the City
with a stable, guaranteed revenue stream. In return, the DRA assumed responsibility for the management and
enforcement of the on and off-street parking program while retaining the parking-generated revenues. The
presumed net parking revenue, after paying the annual fee to the City, remained with the DRA to cover
program expenses. However, from 2016 to 2020, when the contract was ultimately terminated by the City,
the presumed net revenue dwindled for a number of reasons. The reasons, outlined in Section 1.2, essentially
led to reduced annual income from their primary parking-generated revenues: meters, permits, and citations.

Contractor Services and Responsibilities

Under the terms of both professional services contracts (pre 2012 and after) the contractors (Park-
Smart/Diamond) were responsible for several specific services. The services are summarized below:

e Patrol area and hours - identifying where in the downtown enforcement is to occur and the specific
hours of enforcement, 9:00 AM - 5:00 PM, Monday through Saturday, excluding holidays.

e Operations methodology - which emphasized the importance of customer service, courtesy, and
professional manner; work is to be completed in a uniform and impartial manner.

o Enforcement duties - calls out what parking types to be patrolled (e.g., time limited, free parking,
and metered zones) and what types of violations can be employed, the use of towing or booting, and
reporting missing or damaged signage.

e Contractor services and responsibilities

v Court appearances

Complaints

Fines and collections

Revenue collection

Parking meter maintenance

v Parking permit administration

AN NN

e Vehicles - standards for vehicle use during enforcement (if applicable).

e Personnel - code of conduct for enforcement staff.

e Uniforms - professional appearing, city-approved uniforms.

e Training - contract responsible for training their staff.

e Reports and records! - each officer to maintain a logbook of conversations and complaints while
performing work duties. Officers will track citations, warnings, impounds and service requests from

1 The first contract, prior to 2016, required monthly reports, whereas the second contract, beginning in 2016, switched
the reporting frequency to quarterly

Page |1
October 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

citizens. Prepare reports to show total work hours, customer service hours and time in court. This
also included a summary of monthly ticket activity and records of complaints.

e Business space, supplies, and equipment - the contractor is responsible for furnishing their own
office, maintenance, and storage space. They are also responsible for providing their own supplies for
office and field work (including citations).

Fee Structure

After 2016, the agreement changed from paying a contractor a monthly fee for service while the City retained
all revenue derived from parking sources to a flat-fee model for services. The flat-fee model allowed the
contractor (Park-Smart) to retain parking generated revenues but required them to pay the City an agreed
upon annual fee (paid in monthly allotments). The assumed surplus revenue, beyond the annual fee, was then
used to pay for Park-Smart’s ongoing expenses as part of the services and responsibilities as described above.
Therefore, Park-Smart relied on three main sources of parking revenue to pay the flat-fee as well as covering
the cost of providing contractually obligated services; these sources of parking revenue include:

¢ Meter Revenue - Revenue from the coin operated meters, Average Income by
which made up approximately 15% of all revenues.

Source

e Permit Sales - On- and off-street permit sales associated with
special use permits, off-street facilities, and Residential Parking
Permits. Permits accounted for approximately 37% of
revenues.

Citations
45%

o (Citations - Citations for all on- and off-street parking
infractions. Citations were the main source of revenue

accounting for 45% of all funds.

Garbage
e Garbage - Received money from a handful of local merchants 3%

to provide limited trash collection services. This made up
approximately 3% of Park-Smart’s revenues?.

To this end, these revenue sources were critical for Park-Smart to provide parking management and
enforcement for the City of Roseburg. Table 1 provides a summary of revenue sources.

Table 1: Park-Smart Quarterly and Annual Income Profile
Income Profile

Quarterly Average?® Estimate Annual Revenue*
Citations $19,652 $78,607
Garbage $1,350 $5,400
Permits $15,847 $63,390
Meters $6,528 $26,113
Subtotal 543,377 $173,510
Discounts® ($1,071) $4,284
Total $42,306 $169,225

2 Garbage income was identified by Park Smart as part of their revenue because (in a seperate contract with the
Downtown Roseburg Association) the City contracted with the DRA to dispose of garbage in downtown. Garbage removal
will not be included as a future revenue source for a third party vendor.

3 The average income was derived from 6 quarters’ worth of revenue reporting, from July 1, 2018 - December 31, 2019.

4 Estimated annual revenues were extrapolated from the average quarterly income (i.e., four quarters).

5 Bulk permit discount for permits purchases of 10 or more at a time.

Page | 2
October 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

1.2 Park-Smart Organization
Overview of Park-Smart

As mentioned, Park-Smart was a social enterprise of the DRA, charged with managing and enforcing the City’s
on and off-street parking supply, including the Laurelwood District. Park-Smart was also responsible for
managing the parking permit program, maintaining the parking meters, issuing citations for parking
violations, and managing court appeals as needed. The parking enforcement officer (PEO) and staff
administrator are Park-Smart employees (not subcontractors to the DRA or Park-Smart).

In 2016, through the partnership contract, the DRA paid to the City of Roseburg $42,500 annually, or $3,542
per month to manage the parking system. In turn, the DRA was entitled to all revenue associated with the
parking enforcement duties. A contract amendment was signed in 2019 which extended the contract an
additional two years. However, the contract was ultimately terminated on March 31, 2020.

Table 2 provides an overview of Park-Smart’s geographical jurisdiction, facilities they were responsible for,
additional program responsibilities, organizational structure, and annual financial obligations to the city.

Citation Processing

The citation processing was an important and time-consuming part of the contract for Park-Smart. Citations
were issued by both the Park-Smart PEO and the local police®, however, the processing of citations with the
traffic court as well as tracking citation metrics was administered by Park-Smart. Citations were issued using
Ingenico handheld devices. Citations were tracked using a software system called OmniPark. After the
contract termination with Park-Smart, citation activity in the downtown
ceased for a period of time. Limited enforcement by the City is now under
way. Beginning in October of 2020, warnings were being issued by the
Police Department for those parking in violation in City owned lots and in Top Violations
November 2020, citations began to be issued.

2,476 Expired

Citation revenue was one of the three main contributing revenue sources parking meter

which funded the management and enforcement capabilities of Park-Smart.

From 2016 through 2019, Park-Smart issued 11,938 parking citations?. Of 186 Parkingina
the nearly 12,000 citations, one out of every four issued (3,114, or 26%) restricted area
were voided while 7,894 (66%) citations were paid. The cumulative
revenue associated with the paid citations was $542,587. The cumulative
value of the voided citations was $221,090. By industry standards this is a
high level of voided citations, which should be investigated to ascertain
whether this was done internally by the parking management company or
by the courts. If the voids occurred through the courts, it would be helpful
to understand why so many were/are consistently being thrown out. By comparison, over the same period,
747 citations remain open with a total cumulative value of $46,516. The 2019 data represents the last
complete year of parking enforcement under the management of Park-Smart.

161 No visible
permit - in the
restricted zone

Table 3 (page 5) summarizes the breakdown of number of citations issued, number of citations paid, number
of citations voided, number of citations that remain open and the values of each over the four-year period,
2016 through 20198.

6 Few citations were issued by local police - primarily only those pertaining to ADA parking violations in private parking
lots or blocking access.

7 Source: ‘Notice Count By Violation with Pay Off Amount’ - City Excel summary.

8 Note that the numbers differ slightly than those provided in the Profit & Loss annual report provided by the DRA.

Page | 3
October 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Table 2: Park-Smart Overview

Park-Smart Overview

Area covered

= Downtown Parking District: 0.145 square miles
=  Laurelwood Neighborhood: 0.063 square miles
= Chadwick Neighborhood: 0.360 linear miles

Primary Focus Areas

On-Street
= 424 Free stalls (322 in the Downtown Free Parking Zone)
= 262 metered stalls
= 117 Time-limited stalls
= 19 Special use stalls

Off-Street
= 6 off-street lots
= 543 total stalls
e 2 Free unlimited parking areas - 221 stalls
e 4lots: permit/employee/special use - 322 stalls

= 261 on-street parking stalls

= 43 on-street stalls

Additional Areas of
Responsibilities

=  Meter coin collection

= Reporting of missing or damaged signage
= Booting or towing of vehicles

= Court appearances

=  Meter repair & maintenance

=  Personnel training

Organization

= 2total FTE
= 1FTE devoted to office/administrative duties
= 1FTE devoted to patrol

Park-Smart Annual
Budget Elements

»  $126,162 (2018)

»  $42,500 (2016)
»  $45,000 (2017)
»  $47,500 (2018)

Page | 4
October 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Table 3: Citation Summary (2016-19)°

Citations Citations Total Citations Total Citations Total
issued10 paid citation voided citation open citation
value paid value value
voided open
2016 2,469 1,388 $48,478 599 $19,602 482 $22,828
2017 3,380 2,395 $179,629 940 $74,833 45 $3,170
2018 3,110 2,254 $172,102 821 $66,347 35 $2,798
2019 2,979 1,857 $142,378 754 $60,308 185 $17,717
TOTALS 11,938 7,894 $542,587 3,114 $221,090 747 $46,516

Patrol Duties

Park-Smart employed one full-time equivalent (FTE) Parking Enforcement Officer (PEO). The PEO routinely
varied her routes which were up to the discretion of the Park-Smart staff, which included the PEO and the one
office administrator. There were daily routines, but the routines varied based upon daily needs and priorities
(i.e. complaint calls, broken meters, repeat violations, etc.) The Laurelwood neighborhood enforcement was
always the same, following a fixed routine (in other words, not complaint-driven). Enforcement hours were
Monday through Saturday, 9:00 AM - 5:00 PM excluding holidays!.

In addition to the PEOs, the local Police Department may also issue parking citations, though limited in
number. These citations were processed by Park-Smart staff as a time saving measure for the Police
Department. Despite forgoing revenue from the citations, the Police Department was content with this
arrangement. As such, they have expressed their desire to have a new third-party parking enforcement
company continue to process the Police Department’s parking citations.

Meter Enforcement

Meter enforcement was performed either on foot in downtown or in an old police car or a three-wheel
intercept scooter. It is permissible for PEOs to reticket vehicles in meter and time-limited stalls. That is, if a
vehicle is cited for non-payment and then is observed again after the time limit has been exceeded, it can
again be cited for a time-limit violation. For vehicles parked improperly, one citation is given per day. This is
a policy followed by many major cities for these types of violations.

As mentioned above, citations were issued using Ingenico handheld devices. The information was
downloaded daily the OmniPark software system for tracking and monitoring citations as they move through
the traffic court system. Currently, with the cancelation of Park-Smart contract, there is no parking
enforcement being performed. Enforcement of metered time limits is challenging, particularly when there is a
mix of time limits on a single block face. If a block has a mix of time limits (15-minutes, 1-hour, 2-hour, etc.), it
is very difficult to check the shorter time-limited spaces effectively because the required passes (e.g., every 15
minutes) serve little value in enforcing the majority of spaces on the block. A lack of time-limit uniformity on
block faces creates inefficiencies in the system that either require more concentrated time-intensive work or
result in purposely omitted passes in order to properly monitor other parts of the parking system.

Time Limit Enforcement in Unmetered Areas

The process for enforcing time limited stalls was not dissimilar to the meter enforcement process. The Park-
Smart PEO patrolled a given block face, recording the license plates of each vehicle using pen and paper. They
would then time their subsequent passes so they could identify those vehicles that had exceeded the posted
time limit by checking the hand-written list of plates. When warranted, the PEO used their handheld device to

9 Source: ‘Notice Detail By Violation with $’ Excel summary - provided by City of Roseburg

10 Note: Since warnings do not create revenue, they were not counted as citations issued.

11 New Year’s Day, MLK Day, President’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving
Day & Christmas Day.

Page | 5
October 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

issue a citation. The citation was printed and either placed on the windshield or handed to the driver if they
were present. By using the handheld, the information was entered into the online system (OmniPark) for
tracking and reporting purposes by the parking management contractor.

Enforcement in Downtown Free Zone & Unrestricted Stalls

Since time limits were not in place in the Downtown Free Zone nor in any of the unrestricted stalls (on- or off-
street), several citations focused on violations related to parking placement (e.g., over stalls lines, special use
violations, etc.). These citations were also issued using the Ingenico handheld devices. Anecdotally, one of the
complaints of the previous parking management contractor (prior to Park-Smart) was the overzealousness of
officers enforcing these types of violations. However, overzealous enforcement of parking violations (both
perceived or real) can be a result of direct or indirect financial incentives within the contract to share in the
revenues. This can be particularly true when the contractor must rely on citation fees as the primary source
of their revenuel?2.

In the case of enforcement of the Downtown Free Zone (including the Free lot) the focus for patrol was to
ensure that vehicles did not belong to local employees or business owners. This process was done by
checking the license plate against the OmniPark software database via the handheld device. If a license plate
was registered to an employee, then a ticket was issued.

Off-Street Enforcement & Competing Permit Use

The six (6) City-owned off-street facilities are currently a mix of free visitor or customer parking, permit
parking, and special use parking (including City staff parking). Both the permit parking and the special use
parking users are issued permits. The management and issuing of these permits were the responsibility of
Park-Smart. However, in several cases, the county circuit court would issue jury summons with enclosed
parking permits that allowed prospective jurors to park at any “2 Hour, 4 Hour, public parking or meter
parking.” Since these permits were issued by the courts rather than the parking management company
(Park-Smart) this understandably created confusion for enforcement and complicated the ability to properly
enforce parking violations. In other instances, the city would issue its own parking permits to guests or
visitors on official business!3; again, these permits were issued without coordination with Park-Smart, further
contributing to enforcement confusion. Not only did the issuance of jurisdictionally sanctioned permits create
uncertainty for enforcement personnel, but it also may have reduced meter revenues when vehicles
displaying these permits were parked in metered stalls.

From the quarterly Park-Smart reports, it appears that off-street permit facilities were oversold when needed
(Armory & Court Street lots). This practice is common when managing off-street facilities and is referred to as
‘float’. This concept is an industry best practice, and, if managed properly, can create an efficient off-street
parking system that maximizes stall capacity. ‘Float’ is based on the premise that all off-street parking stalls
are not fully utilized throughout the workday (due to shifts in schedules, vacations, sicknesses, etc.).
Therefore, the vacant stalls can be used by permits at a rate greater than 1 permit to 1 stall.1* Assuming Park-
Smart tracked actual usage of the facilities, this practice provides additional off-street capacity when
proactively managed.

Enforcement of these facilities was integrated into the downtown enforcement routine. The enforcement
process of the visitor stalls in the first floor of the parking garage and in the Free Visitors lot was similar to
the process of enforcement of the Downtown Free Zone, where citations were limited to violations related to
parking placement and improper employee parking. Whereas enforcement of the permit and special use stalls
was generally complaint based, meaning a PEO would only check these stalls if a complaint were called in to
Park-Smart.

12 Citation revenues make up 45% of all operating income for Park-Smart in 2018/19.
13 City will periodically issue permits for commission members that meet on a monthly or quarterly basis.
14 The minimum industry standard for selling permits into a long-term parking supply (float) is 1.15 per stall.

Page | 6
October 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Residential Parking Permit Zones

Park-Smart administered two (2) Residential Permit Parking (RPPs) programs. The RPP in the Laurelwood
neighborhood prioritizes residential parking and was initiated in response to Roseburg High School students
parking in the local neighborhood. The Chadwick RPP began in 1983 and abuts downtown to the east. The
Chadwick RPP came about in response to employee and patron parking in the unmetered/unrestricted on-
street parking supply along Chadwick Street. The RPPs were enforced using a mix of regular patrols to check
for violations and complaint-driven calls.

1.3 Performance Management
Revenue/Expenses

The contractual relationship between Park-Smart (DRA) and the City of Roseburg was not unique, but
unfortunately does not provide clear and consistent information regarding actual revenue and expenses
associated with the enforcement program. The information provided was incomplete and at times conflicting,
therefore, some basic assumptions have been made and data has been extrapolated when necessary to
provide a more complete financial picture.

As stated above, Park-Smart (DRA) paid the City of Roseburg $3,542 per month ($42,500 annually) to provide
on and off-street parking enforcement in 2016. The annual fee in 2017 increased to $45,000 and then to
$47,500 in 2018. In fiscal year 2019, there was a signed contract amendment which renewed the contract
with updated terms. As part of that contract amendment the city reduced its fee from $47,500 (paid in 2018)
to $37,500 to reduce the financial burden on Park Smart, which, at the time, was struggling financially.
Pursuant to the contract, DRA’s annual fee to the City was to increase to $48,925 ($4,077 /monthly) in
2020/21 and to $50,392 ($4,199/monthly) in 2021/22. This contract was terminated in March 2020, before
these increases went into effect.

A single annual report from 2018 showing profit and loss for Park-Smart provides the most complete picture
of income and expenses related to downtown’s parking enforcement program. The report shows nearly
$177,000 in annual income from three primary sources: meters, permits, and citations. The report provides a
detailed look at organizational expenses from accounting to insurance to travel and meetings. Annual
expenses totaled nearly $174,000, leaving a minimal amount of net revenue ($3,300). Table 4 through 6
provide a complete look at Park-Smart’s 2018 financials.

Based on the information contained within the balance sheets and a profit and loss reports shared with the
consultant team, it appears that the parking management program was operating efficiently. Unfortunately,
financial reports do not tell the whole story. On one hand, extremely thin margins make it difficult to absorb
market fluctuations (the ebb and flow of visitors to downtown), unforeseen expenses, rising cost of labor and
insurance, and general maintenance required to keep a parking program functioning; on the other, there
were internal factors that contributed to Park Smart’s challenges. Elements such as staff turnover, a lawsuit
that depleted funds, the inability to apply and enforce downtown parking policies (e.g., maintaining an
employee vehicle list), and an insufficient number of staff to handle the ongoing workload. These factors
combined with aforementioned enforcement challenges, along with revenue generation limitations made
operating and maintaining the parking management contract at a high level challenging for Park Smart.

Table 4: 2018 Income Summary?®

Income Jan. - Dec. 2018

Meter $30,869.53
Permits $56,398.01
Citation $91,942.66
Discounts (-$2,464.50)
Other Revenue $212.92
Total Income $176,958.62

15 Source: 2018 DRA annual profit and loss report

Page | 7
October 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Table 5: 2018 Expense Summary16
Expenses Jan. - Dec. 2018 Details

Tax return 1,870.19
Business expenses 70.90
Contract services 50,321.27
Accounting fees 1,890.00
Citation management 1,800.00
City contract 46,248.00
CSO - credit agency 110.00
DMV - retaining records 35.00
Legal fees 238.27
Rent 7,200.00
Federal unemployment tax!” 211.31
Health insurance 33,362.24
Insurance (liability - directors & officers) 4,411.82
Meter maintenance 439.42
Batteries 439.42
Operations 9,975.38
Bank service charges 368.30
Cell phone 1,283.68
Cleaning (downtown & office) 1,493.58
Computer — website maintenance 1,453.00
Credit card processing 1,336.14
Entertainment 388.00
Fax 9.99
Hiring expenses 153.00
Leased equipment 1,148.40
Misc. 1,299.99
Refund - overpayment 107.00
Telephone 934.30
Patrol vehicle 5,569.13
Fuel 1,048.28
Insurance 1,464.40
Licensing 229.00
Maintenance 2,827.45
Payroll expenses 54,388.94
Federal payroll taxes 7,470.11
Oregon payroll taxes 3,818.20
SAIF 353.04
Wages 42,747.59
Reconciliation (4,025.62)
Supplies 7,543.01
Office supplies 6,434.99
Postage, mailing services 1,098.03
Printing, copying 9.99
Travel and meetings 2,324.41
Conference, convention, meeting 54.84
Mileage reimbursement 2,109.57
Training 160.00
Total Expenses $173,662.40
16 Source: 2018 DRA annual profit and loss report
17 Referred to as FUTA in annual profit and loss statement
Page | 8

October 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Table 6: 2018 Income & Expense Summary

Profit & Loss January - December 2018
Total Income $176,958.62
Total Expenses ($173,662.40)
Net Income $3,296.22
1.4 Considerations18

Enforcement Personnel
Continue with a Third-Party Parking Management & Enforcement Service

Despite the contract termination of Park-Smart, contracting with a third-party enforcement company
provides several benefits to a community Roseburg’s size. A contracted service allows for built-in flexibility.
There is a start of service and end of service term; during this time metrics can be tracked to conduct a cost-
benefit analysis related to the level of service being provided. In addition, a contracted service allows for
flexibility in terms of the actual current needs within the system. In other words, the level of service can be
specifically tailored to meet the parking needs - permit management, enforcement, maintenance, etc. This
concept is particularly critical as Roseburg begins to upgrade its current parking system with updated
technologies and associated enforcement capabilities. Finally, a third-party service will bring a built-in
expertise in terms of services, protocols, recommendations, and performance metrics.

The new service agreement should be mutually agreed upon by the City, the Police Department, the circuit
court, and the service provider, and should establish clear roles and responsibilities for parking management
tasks (on and off-street management, meter revenue collection, permit management, and enforcement). The
agreement should clearly detail which entity is responsible for issuing all parking permits (both on and off-
street) and specifically identify where they can be used within the downtown parking supply and any rates or
fees associated with those permits. It should also address what happens when there are street or parking lot
closures due to construction, which can have a sizable effect on parking/operating revenues depending on
how long the closures last. Further, to ensure transparency, all parties should initially conduct monthly
check-ins to review reporting protocols and financial agreements, gradually transitioning to quarterly or
semi-annual meetings.

Incorporate Ambassadorial Services

Roseburg’s downtown is destination-based, with vital street level activities in the Downtown Free Zone with
retail and residential along the periphery. As Roseburg transitions to a new enforcement vendor, the role of
the new Patrol Enforcement Officer(s) can be reimagined by blending enforcement activities with
information services to users. This concept was noted in the previous DRA’s contract!®. Coupled with best
practice metrics for compliance and upgraded technologies, the new downtown Parking Enforcement Office
could be broadened into a Downtown Ambassador Service.

A shift from the traditional enforcement model to the ambassador approach will require a comprehensive
training program, rewritten job descriptions, and a shift in the skills sought throughout hiring. Also, the
process for establishing, implementing, monitoring, and reporting parking management activities should be
clearly detailed in the scope of services within the operating agreement.

Dedicated City Staff Oversight

As Roseburg assesses new third-party parking management vendors, the internal and external transition will
need proper oversight and staff time management. To this end, it is recommended that a portion of a current

18 The consultant is providing the following actions as considerations for discussion currently, allowing time for input
from the City, the SAC and public outreach process. Final recommendations will be contained in the strategy section of the
draft and final report yet to come.

19 See Section 3.2 ‘Operations Methodology’ of the ‘Contract for Professional/Personal Services’ 2016.

Page | 9
October 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

staff member’s time be dedicated to the management and oversight of the third-party vendor, including RFP
writing, proposal review, contract negotiations, routine performance metric review?29, staff performance
review, budget tracking, capital improvement works, etc. Further, rolling out new a parking management
team will also require communicating the transition to the public including residents, employers, employees,
and visitors via a public relations campaign. This approach would also allow for the consolidation of all
parking oversight under a single (part-time) Roseburg city staff member or parking manager.

Performance Metrics - Financial
Ensure the Enforcement Program is Financially Self-Sustaining

A key success metric will be to ensure than the annual enforcement budget is adequate to cover the expected
day-to-day parking management tasks. Moving forward, third-party contract language could require a routine
schedule (e.g., quarterly) of performance reviews across a consistent set of metrics, which could include
expense and revenue, citations issued/waived, permit sales, complaints, and facility condition/capital needs.
Consistent and routine reviews would provide a greater sense of transparency, fiscal tracking, and
recommendations for changes to the system to ensure that the parking system is financially self-sustaining.
Future planning should, at minimum, calibrate meter, permit, and citation rates based on cost recovery for
delivery of the program. See “Performance Metrics - Operations”.

Establish an Evaluation Process for all Parking Related Fees

Currently, the median parking citation fee is $28.00, with a max of $78.0021. Fees established for parking
violations should be based on four criteria and evaluated (at minimum) every two years:

e Minimum break-even cost
e Future system needs
e Compliance performance

e Comparable cities

Performance Metrics - Operations
Define Enforcement Performance Metrics

The City’s parking and enforcement programs should have established goals and measures that reflect best
practice indices of success, efficiency, and compliance. These metrics should be readily available for staff to
review to make any appropriate change requests. Best practice success metrics to ask a vendor to track
include:

Enforcement

e Violation rate/capture rate

e Deployment of labor

e Infractions: by total and by type

e Revenue by type of citation

e Expense/revenue performance related to enforcement and citations

e Tracking of citation adjudication

Off-street facilities and Permit Sales

e Number sold by facility or area (e.g., Residential Permit Parking)
e Schedule of fees

20 Which should include an evaluation of citations issued/paid/open/voided to ensure compliance and a high level of
performance for all parties involved (e.g., parking management vendor, city, and county courts).
21 See Appendix Table 7: Fee Schedule - 2020

Page | 10
October 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

e Float
e Expense/revenue performance related to permits

On-street

e Gross revenue derived from on-street meters/pay stations
e Schedule of fees
e Expense/revenue performance related to on-street system (sans enforcement)

Routinely Track Enforcement Performance Metrics

Information necessary for tracking and quantifying established performance metrics would be gathered
within the context of a routine schedule of data collection as outlined in the management services agreement
with the third-party vendor. It is recommended that these metrics be periodically verified or “ground-
truthed” by an independent parking management firm every three years. Periodic evaluations of parking
behavior of both visitors and employees within the downtown and the residential permit parking (RPP) areas
is an excellent method in helping better understand how the parking system is being utilized by the full cross-
section of users. The results can provide valuable, constructive feedback for the City and the parking
management contractor.

Technology

Implement Technology Improvements

Comments About Roseburg’s

It is evident from the public comments made by visitors (see k
Parking Meters

inset) to the downtown and those who have received citations
that the parking meters are in dire need of an upgrade. This is

i B ) “Unable to tell if meters are real
further evidenced Park-Smart’s inability to find or procure

e X or nostalgic”
replacement parts for existing meters due to their age and or
general condition. There are several technology platforms that "Meters in poor shape, I had no
would allow users to pay for parking in several ways such as idea they were operational”

coin/cash, credit card, by phone, online, and/or using a mobile

app. Some technologies are physically installed in the right-of- "I thought the meters had been
way such a single-head smart meters and multi-space pay abandom.—:d and were inoperable.
stations while other are virtual like a parking payment mobile No marking on the meters”

app or pay-by-phone service. All these examples require

supportive signage to instruct users on how to pay for parking.

The physical technologies tend to have higher capital costs but are more intuitive to users (i.e., customer-
friendly), while the virtual options can have less capital costs but require more user education and can
frustrate less technologically-experienced users (i.e., less customer-friendly to some).

Regardless of the chosen technology route, Roseburg should strongly consider and fiscally plan for an
upgrade of their existing parking payment equipment. Some examples of communities that have done that are
Hood River, Oregon City, Salem, Oregon and Vancouver, Tacoma, Washington?22.

1.5 Summary

Pursuing a management services agreement with a third-party parking operator makes good sense for
Roseburg. The previous scope of work agreements are a great starting point for introducing a refreshed
version for prospective vendors. The new one should emphasize the importance of regular reporting, a more
fully integrated customer service component (e.g., downtown ambassadors), quarterly meetings with the city
“parkin g manager,” and creating a fiscal environment (i.e., calibrate citation fees, adjust parking meter rates,
and permit costs) where parking management can at least operate in a self-sustaining manner.

22 In each of these examples there was high confidence that revenue generated from the system would cover the cost of
investment.

Page | 11
October 2020


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Appendix
Table 7: Fee Schedule - 2020
Violation Issue Amount Max Amount
Expired Meter $28.00 $78.00
Handicapped Zone $210.00 $260.00
Employee/Res 15t Offense $28.00 $28.00
Employee/Res 2nd Offense $60.00 $110.00
Employee/Res 31 Offense $115.00 $160.00
No Visible Permit $28.00 $78.00
Expired Permit $28.00 $78.00
1 Hour Overtime $27.00 $77.00
Opposing Traffic Mvmt $35.00 $85.00
Restricted Zone $35.00 $85.00
Loading Zone $28.00 $78.00
Double Parked $15.00 $65.00
Obstructing Crosswalk $35.00 $85.00
30 Min Over Time $12.00 $62.00
Parked in Alley $12.00 $62.00
Obstructing Sidewalk $35.00 $85.00
Blocking Driveway $17.00 $67.00
Yellow Zone $12.00 $62.00
Vehicle Running $12.00 $62.00
Improperly Parked $30.00 $80.00
Fire Hydrant $60.00 $110.00
5 Hour Over Time $30.00 $80.00
3 Hour Over Time $27.00 $77.00
4 Hour Over Time $28.00 $78.00
Hooded Meter $12.00 $62.00
2 Hour Over Time $27.00 $77.00
Tow Away Zone $35.00 $85.00
Bus Zone $30.00 $80.00
Over 12 Inches $12.00 $62.00
10 Min Over Time $10.00 $60.00
Outside Parking Marker $28.00 $78.00
Blocking Alley $30.00 $80.00
Parked in Restricted Area $35.00 $85.00
Parked in Restricted Zone $28.00 $78.00
Parked in Tow Away Zone $12.00 $72.00
Free Parking Zone Req Penalty $100.00 $150.00
Median Violation $28.00 $78.00
Average Violation $36.28 $82.73

Page | 12
October 2020



http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Appendix E: WP #5 - Summary of Public Outreach Findings

Page | E
March 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Public Outreach Summary
February 2021 (v2)
1.1 Introduction

From September 2020 through February 2021, the Downtown Parking Assessment Project Team led an
outreach campaign to engage residents and stakeholders to help understand, frame, and prioritize the key
challenges and potential improvements for the parking experience in Roseburg.

This summary provides an overview of the variety of opportunities for stakeholder engagement and
education that were offered throughout the project, highlights consistent themes—observed by the
consultant team and self-reported by the community—and concludes with strategies for incorporating
identified stakeholder priorities into the development of strategies.

The document is organized as follows:

e Virtual Open House Summaries
e Survey Results
e Summary Key Findings

1.2 Open House Summaries

Two virtual open house events were hosted during the project, hosted on Zoom and broadcast on Facebook
Live. Both open house events were open to the community and publicized widely via traditional and social
media and were available to watch on the Facebook page for those who were unable to attend the live event.

Each virtual Open House provided an opportunity to update the community on the project, obtain feedback,
and answer questions. The following section summarizes each Open House along with key issues raised.

Open House #1

Overview

e Date: Wednesday, November 18, 2020

e Virtual Platform: Zoom, broadcast on Facebook Live

e Format: 45-Minute Presentation + Q & A.

e Attendees: Approximately 15 (including 2 individuals from the SAC on Zoom)

Issues Raised
e Concern regarding empty storefronts in Downtown and impact on future direction of the parking
program

e Timing of getting an enforcement program back up and running

e Traffic associated with new development/housing

e Safety of Downtown streets/traffic speeds

o Safety of the Public Parking Garage and need for improved lighting, signage, and security patrols
Open House #2

Overview

e Date: Tuesday, February 17, 2021

e Virtual Platform: Zoom, broadcast on Facebook Live
e Format: 45-Minute Presentation + Q & A.

e Attendees: Approximately 12

No audience questions or concerns were raised during Open House #2.

Page |1
February 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

1.3 Survey Results

e Total Responses: 303
e Dates: October 27, 2020 through November 30, 2020

Gender Identity

FEMALE i 63%i NON-BINARY i <1%i

MALE (28%) NO ANSWER (8%)

e Female: 192 responses
e Male: 86 responses
e Non-Binary: 1 response
Age
% 45-54 (16%) 65-74 (24% 75+ W
35-44 (17%) 55-64 (24%) NO ANSWER (1%)
o <34: 34 responses
o 35-44: 51 responses
e 45-54: 47 responses
e 55-64: 72 responses
e 65-74: 73 responses
o 75+ 14 responses
Roseburg Residents
DOWNTOWN ROSEBURG
RESIDENT
(10%) OTHER ROSEBURG RESIDENT (50%)
(2%) NOT A ROSEBURG RESIDENT (38%)
LAURELWOOD
RESIDENT
e Downtown Resident: 29 responses
e Laurelwood Residents: 6 responses
e Other Roseburg Residents: 153 responses

Downtown Employees/Business Owners

DOWNTOWN OWNER/OPERATOR &
EMPLOYEE WORK DOWNTOWN

ill%i (4%) —

(4%) NOT A DOWNTOWN ROSEBURG EMPLOYEE OR BUSINESS OWNER (82%)
DOWNTOWN BUSINESS
OWNER/OPERATOR
e  Work Downtown: 32 responses
e Downtown Owner/Operator: 12 responses

e  Work Downtown/Owner/Operator: 11 responses

Page | 2
February 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Parking Location (When Visiting Downtown)

¢ Question: When you drive to shops/restaurants/activities in Downtown Roseburg (non-work-related
trips), where do you typically park?
o Total Responses: 302 (1 skipped)

N/A; Bus, bike, walk, or park outside of Downtown [l 3%
Other public parking lot | 0.3%
Free customer public parking lot [l 3%
Public parking garage | 1%
Private off-street parking | 2%
Other on street parking (time limited or permit) | 1%
On street at a parking meter [ 8%

On street in the free customer parking zone I, 52

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

e N/A; Bus, bike, walk, or park outside of Downtown: 10 responses

e  Other public parking lot: 1 response

e Free customer public parking lot: 8 responses

e  Public parking garage: 2 responses

e  Private off-street parking: 5 responses

e Other on street parking (time limited or permit): 4 responses

e On street at a parking meter: 23 responses
e Onstreetin the free customer parking zone: 249 responses

Page | 3
February 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Parking Location (When Working Downtown)

¢ Question: When you drive to work in Downtown Roseburg, where do you typically park?
e Total Responses: 68 (235 skipped and/or not a Downtown business owner/employee)

N/A; Bus, bike, walk, or park outside of Downtown [ 9%
Other public parking lot I 16%
Free customer public parking lot 0%
Public parking garage I 13%
Private off-street parking | I 7%
Other on street parking (time limited or permit) | 1%
On street at a parking meter | 1%
On street in the free customer parking zone | 18%
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

*Chart expressed as percentage of respondents who indicated that they work Downtown (68 respondents)

e N/A; Bus, bike, walk, or park outside of Downtown: 6 responses

e  Other public parking lot: 11 responses
e Free customer public parking lot: 0 responses
e  Public parking garage: 12 responses
e Private off-street parking: 25 responses
e  Other on street parking (time limited or permit): 1 response

e Onstreet at a parking meter: 1 response

e Onstreet in the free customer parking zone: 12 responses

Page | 4
February 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Downtown Permit

26 respondents reported that they have a Downtown Parking Permit

(o}
(o}
(o}

6 permit holders live in Downtown Roseburg.

7 permit holders reported that they park in the public parking garage when working Downtown.

9 permit holders reported that they park in the Court Street Lot, Armory Lot, Shalimar Lot, or Phillips
Lot when working Downtown.

2 permit holders did not indicate that they live or work Downtown (permit use unknown).

1 permit holder reported parking in the free parking zone when working Downtown (permit use
unknown).

1 permit holder reported parking in a private lot when working Downtown (permit use unknown).

Page | 5
February 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Use of Alternative Modes

e Question: Do you occasionally (or frequently) travel to Downtown Roseburg using any following
alternative options?
o Total Responses: 67 (236 skipped and/or do not typically use alternative modes)

Park outside of Downtown and walk to Downtown . 5%

Walk (from home) - 15%

Bicycle / Skateboard . 4%

Bus (Umpqua Transit) I 2%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

*Chart expressed as percentage of total respondents (303 respondents)

e Bus (Umpqua Transit) 5 responses
e Bicycle / Skateboard 12 responses*
e Walk (from home) 45 responses*

e Park outside of Downtown and walk: 15 responses*
*9 respondents are included in multiple categories.

Page | 6
February 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Parking Meters

Question: When you drive and park at a meter, what is the primary reason for parking in the metered
area? Please select only one choice.
Total Responses: 295 (8 skipped / no answer)

Broken meter / no payment required I 1%
| am not allowed to park within the Downtown Free Zone I 2%

29%

Unable to find free parking / easier to find meter parking

Convenience / closest to my destination 37%

Not applicable / | never park at a meter 31%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

*Chart expressed as percentage of respondents who answered (295 respondents)

Broken meter / no payment required: 3 responses

I am not allowed to park within the Downtown Free Zone: 6 responses
Unable to find free parking / easier to find meter parking: 85 responses
Convenience / closest to my destination: 110 responses
Not applicable / I never park at a meter: 91 responses

Page | 7
February 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Prioritization of Issues

Garage / public parking lots feel dark and/or unsafe

Question: If you could address 3 issues related to parking in Downtown Roseburg, what would you

prioritize?

Total Responses: 300 (3 skipped or noted no issues to address)

I 53%

Difficult to find free on-street parking I 5/,

Difficult to find available off-street parking m— ———— 23%

Outdated / confusing parking meters — @ 20%
Confusing parking regulations and signage mE——— 8 0%
Inadequate wayfinding / directional signage m— 15%
Need improvements to sidewalks / streetscape m— 15%
Inadequate enforcement m—— 11%
Insufficient number of employee parking options == 9%
Insufficient short term/drop-off parking options 8%
Need improved alternative transportation options == 6%
Improve Downtown safety / security / cleanliness mm 5%
Limited parking for oversized vehicles B 1%

Over enforcement / too many tickets 1 1%

0% 10% 20% 30%

Garage / public parking lots feel dark and/or unsafe:
Difficult to find free on-street parking:

Difficult to find available off-street parking:

Outdated / confusing parking meters:

Confusing parking regulations and signage:
Inadequate wayfinding / directional signage:

Need improvements to sidewalks / streetscape:
Inadequate enforcement:

Insufficient number of employee parking options:
Insufficient short term/drop-off parking options:

Need improved alternative transportation options:
Improve Downtown safety / security / cleanliness:
Limited parking for oversized vehicles:

Over enforcement / too many tickets:

"Need fresh painted lines in Phillips Lot"

"Delivery trucks stopping in street block safe parking"
"Go back to parallel parking"

"Insufficient number of resident parking options"
"People parking in private lots they aren't patronizing"
Dislike revamping of one ways and single lanes with parking

40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

177 responses
164 responses
70 responses
62 responses
61 responses
44 responses
44 responses
33 responses
27 responses
24 responses
19 responses
15 responses
4 responses

3 responses

1 response

1 response

1 response

1 response

1 response

1 response

Page | 8
February 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

Parking Difficulty

e Question: Typically, on a scale of 1 to 5, how difficult is it to find parking in Downtown Roseburg?
e Total Responses: 291 (12 skipped or noted that they do not park in Downtown)

30%
26%
259% 24%
0% 20%
0
16%
15% 14%
10%
5%
0%
Easy / few issues 2 3 4 Very difficult /
finding parking frustrating

*Chart expressed as percentage of respondents who answered (291 respondents)

Page | 9
February 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

General Comments

Need Improved Signage / Lot Maintenance — n—

Question: What other comments would you like to share regarding parking in Downtown Roseburg?
Total Responses: 115 respondents (classified into 133 specific comments)

Downtown Unsafe . )
Eliminate Parking Meters I ——— | 7
Garage Unsafe m———— | 6
Narrow Lanes / Traffic Speeds Unsafe m————— | 6
Difficult to Find Available Parking ~m—..— ———————————— 1| 3
Need More Enforcement m———————— 7
Need Additional Public Parking ~m—s— G

Need Improved Streetscaping / Bike Lanes m— 4

Need Improved Employee Parking —m— 4

Need Updated Parking Meters

Overly Aggressive Enforcement
Improve Parking Permit Process
Special Events mmmmm 2

Eliminate Residential Parking Meters mmmmm ?
Limited Parking for Oversized Vehicles mmmm 2
Other — e o

w w w w

Sample Comments

Downtown Unsafe
0 "I feel unsafe parking far from my destination"
0 '"lItdoesn’t feel safe to park my car and leave it unattended except for peak daytime shopping...."

Eliminate Parking Meters

0 "The outdated meters and requirement to pay for parking makes downtown feel less welcoming to
residents and visitors."

0 "Atthe least to help the small business & restaurants having a two-hour free on-street parking would
be most helpful to promote the downtown area.”

Garage Unsafe

0 "I'dlove to see the parking garage more approachable -- cleaner, more light, murals by local artists
(or just a bit abstract mural painting day)"

o "..If parking garage was well lit and had a security person, [ would park there...."

Narrow Lanes / Traffic Speeds Unsafe
0 "The driving lanes are too narrow"
0 "..Speed is too fast with people trying to parallel park and car doors opening quickly...."

Difficult to Find Available Parking

0 "l usually avoid going to downtown because the parking is so bad- [ sometimes have to drive around
several blocks to find an open spot.”

0 "Parking is most troublesome on Friday and Saturday nights."

Need More Enforcement

0 We need to enforce the rules that employees stop parking in free zone... there is nowhere for
customers to park depending on the time of day you come downtown... i.e. lunch or dinner hours."

o "..Iwould like to see our parking rules enforced."

Need Additional Public Parking

0 "Itis my understanding that the 2 level parking structure was actually created to have 4 levels... add
the 2 additional levels..."

0 " Another parking garage would greatly alleviate parking issues in downtown Roseburg."

Page | 10
February 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

Downtown Parking Assessment

1.4

Key Findings

Customers and visitors to Downtown typically park on-street in the free parking zone. Only 8% of
respondents indicated that they "typically” park on-street at a parking meter, and fewer than 1%
indicated that they typically park in the Parking Garage for non-work trips to Downtown.

Although not their preferred parking location, nearly 70% of survey respondents indicated that
they do park and pay at a parking meter at least occasionally (31% indicated that they never park at
a parking meter).

While a majority (71%) of the 68 respondents who work Downtown indicated that they typically park
off-street for work trips to Downtown (including 37% in private lots and 34% in public lots or the
Garage), a significant percentage (18%) indicated that they park on-street in the free zone while
working Downtown. Given the limited size of the Downtown Free Parking Zone (322 stalls), even a
relatively small number of employees parking all day in the area can contribute to perceptions that
parking availability for customers is limited in Downtown.

Of the 23 survey respondents who typically park in the Parking Garage or other public parking lot when
working downtown, most (70%) have a parking permit, but 30% indicated that they do not have a
parking permit.

Fewer than 2% of survey respondents indicated that they even occasionally ride transit to
Downtown, and fewer than 4% of survey respondents indicated that they occasionally bike or
skateboard. A higher percentage (15% and 5%, respectively), either walk from home or park outside of
Downtown and walk into Downtown at least occasionally.

A majority (58%) of survey respondents feel that the Garage and/or public parking lots feel dark
and/or unsafe. This was the single most consistent theme expressed by survey respondents.

Opinions on the difficulty of finding parking in Downtown are somewhat mixed. A majority (54%)
of survey respondents feel that it can be difficult for some to find free on-street parking, and 23% feel
that it can be difficult for some to find available off-street parking, noting these as key issues the City
should address related to parking. However, less than half (46%) of survey respondents personally find it
at least moderately difficult to find parking in Downtown, while approximately 30% personally do not
feel parking in Downtown is much of a challenge at all.

Signage, communication of regulations, and maintenance of equipment/facilities were commonly
cited as key issues to address. 20% of survey respondents feel that the existing parking meters are
outdated and/or confusing and 20% of survey respondents feel that some parking regulations and
signage are confusing.

Many survey respondents expressed safety as a priority issue in their comments. Particularly at
night, many residents and visitors feel unsafe parking and walking in parts of Downtown,

Page | 11
February 2021


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

CONSENT AGENDA A
03/22/2021
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING
March 8, 2021

Mayor Rich called the regular meeting of the Roseburg City Council to order at 7:00 p.m. on
March 8, 2021 electronically via Zoom in Roseburg, Oregon. Councilor Cox led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

ROLL CALL

Present: Councilors Bob Cotterell, Sheila Cox, Alison Eggers, Sheri Moothart, Brian
Prawitz, Patrice Sipos and Andrea Zielinski.

Absent: Councilor Beverly Cole

Others Present: City Manager Nikki Messenger, Assistant City Manager/City Recorder Amy
Sowa, City Attorney Jim Forrester, Finance Director Ron Harker, Police Chief Gary
Klopfenstein, Public Works Director Brice Perkins, Human Resources Director John
VanWinkle, Community Development Director Stuart Cowie and Management Assistant Koree
Tate.

Mayor Rich explained the meeting was conducted remotely to address the increase in the
number of COVID-19 cases reported throughout the County and State, and as permitted by
HB4212 adopted by the State legislature. The public could watch the meeting live on YouTube
and the City’s Facebook page. Comments were submitted via email to the City Recorder prior
to 4:00 p.m.

PROBLEM GAMBLING AWARENESS MONTH PROCLAMATION

Mayor Rich proclaimed March 2021 as Problem Gambling Awareness Month and encouraged
citizens to participate in the observance. Cati Adkins, Adapt Prevention Program Director,
thanked the Mayor, Council and Roseburg Staff for proclaiming March as the month where the
City of Roseburg joins Oregon and the Nation to raise awareness about Problem Gambling.
The impact from problem gambling could be catastrophic for individuals, community members
and families, but it was often an issue that went overlooked. The theme this year was,
“‘Awareness Plus Action.” The issues in reference with the proclamation was not about
gambling, but about problem gambling. Unlike chemical addiction, problem gambling was hard
to recognize and was known as a hidden addiction. Eight percent of all Oregonians had
confirmed they had a problem with gambling. Oregon was a national leader in the field of
services to provide prevention, outreach, treatment and recovery, and was all funded by the
Oregon Health Authority and Oregon Lottery. In Oregon, all treatment for gambling was free.
In Douglas County, Adapt provides services to assist with gambling problems that was
comprehensive to help the individual and families. Ms. Adkins asked those interested to go to
Adaptoregon.org for more information or resources.

CITY MANAGER COMPENSATION AND CONTRACT AMENDMENT

Mr. VanWinkle stated that Council decided to amend the City Manager evaluation process at
the February 8, 2021 Council meeting. During the last Executive Session meeting, Council
concluded the City Manager evaluation process. At the conclusion of each annual performance
evaluation, City Council had the opportunity to adjust the City Manager’s salary. For
comparison purposes, other non-represented employees received a 3% cost of living

1_City Council Minutes 3/08/2021




CONSENT AGENDA A

03/22/2021

adjustment effective July 1, 2020. Council had the opportunity to choose to grant a merit

increase in addition to any cost of living adjustment. The City Manager’s current salary was

$12,917 per month and had not been adjusted since September 1, 2019. A 3% adjustment

would increase the City Manager's salary to $13,305 per month, effective back to the
September 1, 2020 anniversary date.

Mayor Rich stated emailed comments were received:
Julie Hammond, Roseburg, stated no public servant should ever make more than four
times the median household income of the constituents they claim to represent.

Dennis Rogers, Cannaking Dispensaries, said as a public servant the City Manager
should not earn more than two times the median household income of constituents they
represent, and wanted to know what happened to limited government. He believed most
founding fathers were not paid, but were a volunteer for their position.

Mayor Rich said they needed to make a decision to update the contract, change the evaluation
period to July and determine if a 3% cost of living increase were to be included. Councilor
Cotterell moved to award the City Manager a 3% Cost of Living Increase that was given to
other non-represented employees and to move the evaluation period to July. The motion was
seconded by Councilor Prawitz. Councilor Cotterell recalled the City Manager nor Municipal
Judge did not receive step increases and only received a cost of living (COLA) increase when
approved. Mr. VanWinkle explained non-presented staff had step increases along with a
COLA, but the City Manager did not. Councilor Cox said the City Manager position had always
been set by contract and could be provided a COLA increase based on the percentage given
to other non-represented employees.

Councilor Eggers said she wanted it on record that Council took a lot of time and care
developing and comparing the City Manager salary to other cities. Councilor Prawitz noted all
department heads had competitive salaries. He wanted the best possible employees
compared to other cities and felt they were right in line. After going through the City Manager
hiring process, he was certain they were in great shape with their decision for hiring Ms.
Messenger. The motion was approved with the following vote: Councilors Cotterell, Cox,
Eggers, Moothart, Prawitz, Sipos and Zielinski voted yes. No one voted no.

COMMISSION AND WARD REPORTS

Mayor Rich reported Homeless Commission Member, Mike Fieldman, and Representative
Gary Leif had been working with Speaker Kotex for a Bill 2004 to fund a low barrier shelter and
navigation center. They were able to talk to the speaker and have Roseburg included in the
bill. There were five cities in Oregon that would have the opportunity to receive the money.
For Roseburg, it would be $1.5 million dollars and a matter of passing through both chambers
and to the Governor to sign. Mayor Rich felt this was good news to obtain funds towards
building a shelter and to have it completed by summer 2022.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION — EMAILED COMMENTS PRIOR TO THE MEETING
Mayor Rich announced comments were received electronically prior to the meeting for specific
agenda items that would be discussed during those sections of the meeting.

2 City Council Minutes 3/08/2021




CONSENT AGENDA A
03/22/2021
CONSENT AGENDA
Councilor Cotterell moved to approve the minutes of February 22, 2021. The motion was
seconded by Councilor Cox and approved with the following vote: Councilors Cotterell, Cox,
Eggers, Moothart, Prawitz, Sipos and Zielinski voted yes. No one voted no.

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06 — DECLARING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY AS SURPLUS

Ms. Sowa reported that two properties, 1054 NE Cedar and 154 SE Mosher Avenue, were
registered as Derelict by the City in 2018. Over the next year and a half, the property owners
failed to abate the nuisance, bring the properties into compliance and pay the fines. Roseburg
Municipal Code Section 4.04.190 gives the City authority to foreclose on real property on which
city liens had been filed if the property owner remained delinquent on the total assessment.
On January 30, 2020, the City conducted a public auction on the two properties. No one from
the public bid on either property, so the City chose to purchase both properties. State statute
requires a one-year redemption period following sale of the property to provide the owner or
legal representative of the owner an opportunity to pay final assessments and redeem
ownership of the property. The one-year redemption period ended January 30, 2021, and the
properties were deeded to the City on February 3, 2021. The building on 154 SE Mosher
Avenue was deemed dangerous and was demolished by the City, leaving it as a vacant lot.

Ms. Sowa said several people had expressed interest in purchasing one or both of the
properties, and before going through the process of selling the properties, the City must
determine the properties were not needed for public use or that the public interest may be
furthered by disposal of such property. Staff from all City departments confirmed the properties
were not needed for public use. The following real market values for the properties were listed
on the Douglas County Assessor’s webpage:

e 1054 NE Cedar Street: $99,178

e 154 SE Mosher Avenue (vacant lot only): $37,500

Council was asked to determine whether or not to declare the properties as surplus and provide
direction regarding value and procedure to sell. Ms. Sowa confirmed once a proposal was
received, a public hearing would be scheduled for the potential sale of the property.

In response to Councilor Cox and Mayor Rich, Ms. Sowa confirmed the City was no longer
under contract with a local real estate agent and a new agreement would be required when
one was chosen. Councilor Cotterell questioned if the City would have to go through a bidding
process. Ms. Sowa stated the City could select a realtor without such process and responded
to Councilor Sipos that advertising would be at the discretion of the chosen realtor.

Councilor Cotterell moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-06, entitled, “A Resolution Declaring
Certain City of Roseburg Real Property as Surplus.” The motion was seconded by Councilor
Sipos and approved with the following vote: Councilors Cotterell, Cox, Eggers, Moothart,
Prawitz, Sipos and Zielinski voted yes. No one voted no.

Councilor Cotterell moved to proceed using the values listed by the Douglas County Assessor
and use a realtor for the surplus property. The motion was seconded by Councilor Prawitz.
Mayor Rich noted the realtor could advise the City regarding a price for the properties with a
fair market value. Councilor Moothart added property was moving quickly and agreed a realtor
3 City Council Minutes 3/08/2021




CONSENT AGENDA A

03/22/2021

could provide fair market value. Attorney Forrester asked to have the motion changed.

Councilors Cotterell and Prawitz withdrew their motion and second. Councilor Cotterell moved

to allow a realtor and City Staff develop fair market value for the surplus properties. The motion

was seconded by Councilor Eggers and approved by the following vote: Councilors Cotterell,

Cox, Eggers, Moothart, Prawitz, Sipos and Zielinski voted yes. No one voted no. Mayor Rich
declared Resolution No. 2021-06 as adopted.

ORDINANCE NO. 3551 — AMENDING RMC CHAPTER 6.04, KEEPING FARM ANIMALS,
SECOND READING

Ms. Sowa read Ordinance No. 3551, entitled, “An Ordinance Amending Certain Sections of
Chapter 6.04 of the Roseburg Municipal Code,” for the second time.

Mayor Rich stated emailed comments were received for this item:
Ashley Hicks, 730 SE Flint Street, provided information regarding the benefit of having
chickens and opposed the suggested Ordinance changes. She questioned the number
of dogs legally allowed at a residence and wanted to know how many livestock permits
had been issued and if those with permits were contacted about the changes.

Manya Nicholson, Roseburg resident, shared slaughtering livestock could be a public
nuisance along with noise, smells, and rodents. She said containment of any livestock
was essential and was in favor of the Ordinance changes.

Susie Osborn, Roseburg resident, supported the Ordinance changes and stated there
should be rules that everyone was expected to follow and information for when an
individual chooses not to comply with their permit. She suggested adding something
within the ordinance to allow police to rescind a permit when the permit holder violates
the rules.

Councilor Cotterell moved to adopt Ordinance No. 3551. The motion was seconded by
Councilor Zielinski. Roll call vote was taken: Councilors Cotterell, Cox, Eggers, Moothart,
Prawitz, Sipos and Zielinski voted yes. No one voted no. Mayor Rich declared Ordinance No.
3551 as adopted.

ORDINANCE NO. 3552 — AMENDING TITLE 9, BUSINESS PERMITS, LICENSES, TAXES
AND REGULATIONS, SECOND READING

Ms. Sowa read Ordinance No. 3552, entitled, “An Ordinance Amending Title 9 — Business
Permits, Licenses, Taxes and Regulations, of the Roseburg Municipal Code,” for the second
time. Councilor Cotterell moved to adopt Ordinance No. 3552. The motion was seconded by
Councilor Moothart. Roll call vote was taken: Councilors Cotterell, Cox, Eggers, Moothart,
Prawitz, Sipos and Zielinski voted yes. No one voted no. Mayor Rich declared Ordinance No.
3552 as adopted.

ORDINANCE NO. 3553 — AMENDING TITLE 2 — GOVERNMENTAL PROVISIONS OF THE
ROSEBURG MUNICIPAL CODE, SECOND READING

Ms. Sowa read Ordinance No. 3553, entitled, “An Ordinance Amending Title 2 — Governmental
Provisions, of the Roseburg Municipal Code,” for the second time. Councilor Sipos moved to
adopt Ordinance No. 3553. The motion was seconded by Councilor Cotterell. Roll call vote

4 City Council Minutes 3/08/2021




CONSENT AGENDA A

03/22/2021

was taken: Councilors Cotterell, Cox, Eggers, Moothart, Prawitz, Sipos and Zielinski voted
yes. No one voted no. Mayor Rich declared Ordinance No. 3553 as adopted.

AIRPORT PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS BID AWARD RECOMMENDATION — 20PW22
Mr. Perkins reported that in 2004, Commercial Hangars A and B that were located to the
southwest of the Fixed Base Operator (FBO) Hangar were demolished. As a result, the
entrance into the Roseburg Airport and FBO changed and was now through the gravel area
that remained after the demolition project. This parking lot improvement project would surface
the area with asphalt and include the following additional elements:

e Concrete sidewalk along the south side of the FBO Hangar with an ADA access

ramp onto the sidewalk.

¢ An ADA parking space and unloading zone adjacent to the new ADA access ramp.
A landscape planter along the south side of the FBO between the existing building
and new concrete sidewalk.
ADA access path from the FBO to Aviation Dr.
A new driveway approach along Aviation Dr.
Landscaping along Aviation Dr. on both sides of the new driveway approach.
Storm drainage to collect storm water runoff from the new asphalt surface.

Mr. Perkins said the project was advertised on January 21, 2021 and bids received were
separated into Schedule A for the majority of the work with an alternate Schedule B for fencing.
Three bids were received on February 11, 2021:

Bidder Schedule A | Schedule B | Total Bid

Black Pearl Asphalt Maintenance, LLC |$ 117,588.50 | $8,100.00 $ 125,688.50
LTM Inc. DBA Knife River Materials $ 123,736.00 | $7,850.00 $ 131,586.00
Wildish Construction Co. $141,774.00 | $10,040.00 | $ 151,814.00
Engineer’s Estimate $117,821.00 | $7,005.00 $ 124,826.00

If awarded, the Notice to Proceed would be issued as soon as possible and the contractor
would have seventy calendar days to complete the project. The project went before the Airport
Commission on February 18, 2021 and was unanimously approved to proceed to Council.

Councilor Cox said the Airport Commission was very supportive of the project and moved to
award Schedules A and B of the Airport Parking Lot Improvements Project to the lowest
responsible bidder, Black Pearl Asphalt Maintenance, LLC for $125,688.50. The motion was
seconded by Councilor Cotterell and approved with the following vote: Councilors Cotterell,
Cox, Eggers, Moothart, Prawitz, Sipos and Zielinski voted yes. No one voted no.

HOUSING NEEDS ANALYSIS UPDATE
Mr. Cowie discussed that since the adoption of the Housing Needs Analysis in September
2019, the Community Development Department had been actively working on implementing
action items provided in the document. As part of the development, five housing policies were
created:

1. Land Availability

2. Opportunities for housing development to meet the City’s identified housing needs

3. Affordable Housing
5 City Council Minutes 3/08/2021




CONSENT AGENDA A
03/22/2021
4. Infrastructure Planning
5. Funding

Forty-four implementation items were created as ways in which the policies identified could be
implemented. Some of the implementation items were general in nature and could be
interpreted as ongoing activity, while others were very specific. Some point to a single action,
while others could be combined to achieve one particular outcome. Over the last year the City
had worked on 15 implementation items that included (1) items the City was working on prior
to the Housing Needs Analysis, (2) indirect work that resulted from new development proposals
and permits, (3) work the City initiated to stay consistent with recent changes to state law, and
(4) action items identified under City Goal #1; “Develop and implement policies to enhance
housing opportunities” for 2020-2022.

Mr. Cowie continued with information identified under Goal #1, adopted through Resolution
2020-01:

Implement House Bill 2001 Provisions (Middle Housing Project)

In 2019, the Oregon Legislature passed House Bill 2001 to help provide citizens with more
housing choices, beyond that of a typical detached single-family residence. Under the bill, by
June 30, 2021, cities with a population of less than 25,000 must allow duplexes in areas zoned
for single-family dwellings. By June 30, 2022, cities with a population of more than 25,000 must
allow people to build duplexes, triplexes, fourplexes, cottage clusters, and townhouses in
residential areas.

Roseburg sat in a unique situation, in that the current population was 24,890, just short of the
25,000 to require triplexes, fourplexes, cottage clusters and townhouses. Recognizing those
future changes, the City applied for a grant through the Department of Land Conservation and
Development (DLCD) in April of 2020. The grant was designed to assist in amending the code
to better enable the use of duplexes in residential areas and to help prepare future amendments
to allow triplexes, fourplexes, cottage clusters and townhouses, recognizing that by June 30,
2022, most likely the population would exceed 25,000. The City was awarded the grant in June
of 2020, and a contract was executed between the City, DLCD and 3J Consulting in August of
2020. Since that time, a Steering Advisory Committee was formed and met three times to
discuss the project and review draft code; a community survey was launched that saw 353
individuals provide feedback; a public open house was held on December 8, 2020; and a
second open house had been tentatively scheduled for April 2021.

It was anticipated that the Planning Commission would hold a public hearing surrounding
duplex-related amendments to the code in May, with Council reviewing the amendments in
June to ensure the City was compliant with new state law. Amendments concerning triplexes,
fourplexes, cottage clusters and townhomes would be provided to the City by the consultant at
the end of the grant in June, giving the City the opportunity to fine-tune the amendments the
following year prior to required implementation in June of 2022.

Pursue UGB Swap
Although this project had moved slowly, the City took necessary steps to complete items that
would bolster a future application. Adoption of the Housing Needs Analysis into the City

6_City Council Minutes 3/08/2021




CONSENT AGENDA A
03/22/2021
Comprehensive Plan, was a vital step in identifying the UGB swap as a potential option for
providing more suitable residential land for development. In addition, studies concerning traffic
impacts and the feasibility of future infrastructure improvements were currently underway, in
an effort to help strengthen an application that was scheduled to be presented this summer.
Ongoing discussion had occurred with the two property owners, whose property would be
moved outside the UGB to help facilitate the swap. Two public meetings were held, primarily
consisting of people living in and owning property within the Charter Oaks area. A future public
meeting with the Charter Oaks neighborhood would be conducted prior to submittal of an
application.

Continue Urban Renewal Multi-Family Housing Incentives

Since adoption of the Diamond Lake Urban Renewal Plan on June 25, 2018, the City reviewed
or was in process of reviewing 400 new apartment units along the Diamond Lake corridor within
the Urban Renewal District. Significant multi-family dwelling projects had been under
construction for Deer Creek Village apartments, which consisted of 68-units of affordable
housing geared toward serving the veteran population. That facility was able to partner with the
City to qualify for the SDC buydown program in which $314,367 of SDC fees were deferred by
the Urban Renewal Agency. Completion of this project was anticipated in the spring.

In addition, Oak Springs apartments located on NE Pomona Street was under construction with
several buildings nearing completion. Three of the eight buildings were recently granted a
temporary certificate of occupancy, meaning 36 new units were available to rent. The remaining
buildings were slated for completion in the coming months. Oak Springs consisted of a total of
89 two-bedroom units of market rate housing. This facility also partnered with the City to qualify
for the SDC buydown program in which $409,968 of SDC fees were deferred by the Urban
Renewal Agency.

Although unable to qualify for the SDC buydown option, as the owner had indicated a desire to
request tax exemption status once constructed, the City in March of 2020 issued Conditional
Use Permit approval, and was currently processing a Site Review application for Sunshine
Apartments. This new apartment complex would be located on the corner of Sunshine Road
and Hwy 138E, across from Sunshine Park. The apartments would consist of 144 units of
affordable housing, including both one, two and three bedroom units.

The owner and developer of the property, Wishcamper Development Partners, was the
recipient of $9.8 million state grant designed to increase affordable housing. The grant was
among $75 million distributed in July of 2020 in Local Innovation and Fast Track (LIFT) funding.
The LIFT program was approved during the 2016 session of the Oregon Legislature to help
spur affordable housing across the state for low-income families, including those in rural
communities.

Finally, within the last month the City received a Conditional Use Permit application for a 100-
unit apartment complex adjacent to Oak Springs Apartments on the corner of Pomona St. and
Hwy 138E. This development proposal was submitted by Timberview Construction, the same
developer constructing Oak Springs Apartments. The application was being processed and
additional SDC buydown options would be evaluated.

7_City Council Minutes 3/08/2021




CONSENT AGENDA A

03/22/2021

Mr. Cowie said the remaining action item identified within Goal #1 was to prioritize

recommendations from the Housing Needs Analysis. It was anticipated upon completion of the

Middle Housing Project and submittal of a future UGB swap application that staff would return
to Council to discuss other recommendations.

In response to Councilor Cotterell, Mr. Cowie confirmed the types of homes would not be
mandated, but left to the developers to have incentives to put them in place. There would be
some code changes around duplexes to make them available for all residential zones.
Councilor Eggers said she noticed some homes in her neighborhood were providing
improvements to provide a rentable space.

Mr. Cowie provided a map showing growth in the Urban Renewal District for Deer Creek
Village, Oak Springs Apartments and future location for apartments on Sunshine Road. He
never imagined that in such a short time his department would be reviewing over 400 units of
apartments for the community. In response to Councilor Moothart, Mr. Cowie reported there
was a mix of affordable and market value rentals. Councilor Prawitz added he had been on
the Housing Needs Advisory Committee and knew the community needed affordable housing,
but also needed all levels of housing. Councilor Cotterell wanted to know that with the new
work for housing, what percentage had asked for property tax exemption. Ms. Messenger
reported only the one property on Sunshine Road had applied for an exemption. Mr. Cowie
noted that they were trying to provide a housing mix for what people needed and more would
come forward in future meetings.

PUBLIC EDUCATION AND GOVERNMENT (PEG) CHANNEL UPDATE

Mr. Harker provided information regarding the long history of broadcasting City Council
meetings through a Public Education and Government (PEG) Channel that as provided free of
charge through a franchise agreement with Charter Cable. In order to record and broadcast
City Council meetings, the City must own, operate, and support several pieces of equipment
within City Hall and the Council Chambers. In the past, the City made upgrades to audio and
visual equipment, including microphones and camera upgrades. The PEG channel equipment
specifically required to broadcast over the Charter channel currently failed and needed to be
replaced should the City choose to continue to broadcast meetings through this medium.

In order to continue to broadcast over the PEG channel the City would need to invest in the
following equipment:

o Teradeck Slice 756 DeCOEr .........cccovvuuiiiiiiiiiieeeeeceeeeeeee e $ 3,990
o Teradeck Slice 776 ENCOAEN ........oouniieeiie e $ 3,990
o Miscellaneous CabIes..............oeeeeeiiiieieieeeeee e $ 250
e Leightronix Ultranexus HD X2 ... $10,995

$19,225

The City’s history using the PEG Channel to broadcast City Council meetings goes back
decades, and in the beginning a local cable channel was the only viable way of broadcasting
public meetings to the general population. However, due to developments in satellite, internet,
and streaming video technologies, cable TV was no longer a sole source for video media
content for the City’s residents.

8 City Council Minutes 3/08/2021




CONSENT AGENDA A
03/22/2021
Mr. Harker did not have statistical information regarding the level of penetration that Charter
continued to maintain in the community, but it was certain that the PEG channel would gain
access to only a portion of the population. With advancements in live streaming technologies
over the last decade, it became much more feasible and affordable to broadcast public
meetings over social media such as Facebook Live. Recording meetings and making them
available for later viewing had also become feasible and affordable. During this past year, due
to COVID restrictions, the City initiated efforts to broadcast not only City Council meetings but
also Special Meetings and hearings using Facebook Live, recording, and posting the
recordings to the City’s website.

The City started presenting Council meetings live on Facebook in April 2020. Then, around
October 2020, the City transitioned all of its public meetings onto Facebook Live. Since that
transition, the City Facebook page has grown exponentially. The City gained over 1,500 new
followers on the City of Roseburg page; bringing the City to 2,221 followers. The City had
continued to demonstrate audience growth over a period of time by use of social media. The
City’s average engagement rate with its followers, since implementing the Council meetings on
Facebook, was 8.6 percent. To give perspective, typically a “good” engagement rate on
Facebook was anything above 5 percent. Based on this metric, the City was doing a good job
of posting content that seemed to resonate with its audience. For the videos themselves, the
City had seen a gain in public interest. The City’s most popular public meeting video in the past
six months was its first Homeless Commission meeting on January 25, 2021. That video alone
was watched by over 6,700 people on Facebook. It was shared 32 times in the community,
and the City received over 98 comments on the post. Looking at the Council meeting videos in
general, the City averaged around 2,500 views per video. Depending on the topics at the
meeting, the viewership was typically in the 2,400 to 2,600 range; based on the last six months
of data. For Commission meeting videos (not including the Homeless Commission), they have
a lower average viewership of around 400 to 500.

Mr. Harker said should the Council decide to continue to broadcast over the PEG Channel,
there would be a one-time outlay of approximately $20,000; otherwise, the discontinued use
would not incur any additional expenses. Ms. Messenger added Planning Commission
meetings were also broadcast on the PEG Channel, but other Commissions were not.
Councilor Cox said she remembered when they started the Channel, how it seemed outdated
now, and realized technology was now different and thought it could be frustrating that only
Charter subscribers had the ability to watch the meeting on television.

Councilor Cotterell agreed and felt $20,000 was a lot of money that could be used elsewhere.
Councilor Sipos agreed and felt the newer technology was sufficient without the need to spend
more money. In response to Councilor Prawitz, Mr. Harker explained the equipment started
with Douglas County, the City took it over, and there was a separate room inside city hall where
the equipment was housed to code, decode, maneuver cameras and upload the link for the
Charter channel. The manipulated signal had to pass through and out to Charter for them to
use their equipment for the broadcast. It had nothing to do with the cameras in the Council
Chamber. When meetings go back to in-person, the cameras in the Council Chamber would
be used to continue livestreaming meetings on Facebook live without the need for the Charter
Channel.

9 City Council Minutes 3/08/2021




CONSENT AGENDA A

03/22/2021

Councilor Prawitz confirm he struggled with the notion of reducing visual capability for those

using the Charter cable channel even if it were only five people. If they decided to not use the

funds he would love to see the money go toward building some emergency shelter huts to help

the unhoused out of the cold weather. In response to Councilor Eggers, Mr. Harker explained

the City had done what they could to keep the equipment working, but parts were not readily

available. Ms. Messenger added there was an added expense to have an employee run the

equipment to broadcast the meetings. The PEG Channel had been inoperable for some time
and the City had not received any calls or complaints of missed meetings.

Mayor Rich said he was interested to know how many people watched the channel besides
himself and hoped he was not the only person left who did not use Facebook for the meetings.
Mr. Harker explained Facebook live was not the only means to watch meetings as they were
also uploaded to the City website. Councilor Cotterell suggested to hold off on spending money
at this point unless persons in the community came forward requesting it be available. Mayor
Rich asked Council if they approved to discontinue immediate use of the PEG Channel
operations based on the increased viewership on social media and the City website unless
citizens came forward seeking access. The vote was approved by the following: Councilors
Cotterell, Cox, Eggers, Moothart, Sipos and Zielinski voted yes. Councilor Prawitz did not
provide a vote

ITEMS FROM MAYOR/CITY COUNCIL/CITY MANAGER
No new items brought forward.

ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Rich adjourned the meeting at 8:27 p.m.

Koree Tate
Management Assistant

10_City Council Minutes 3/08/2021




CONSENT AGENDA B
03/22/2021

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

OLCC ADDITIONAL OFF-PREMISES LICENSE
HACIENDA VIEJA MEXICAN RESTAURANT — 780 NW GARDEN VALLEY

BOULEVARD #45
Meeting Date: March 22, 2021 Agenda Section: Consent Agenda
Department: Administration  Staff Contact: Koree Tate, Management Assistant
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6866

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY

Roseburg Municipal Code Chapter 9.12 requires staff review of all applications submitted
to the Oregon Liquor Control Commission for a license to sell alcoholic beverages within
the City. Upon completion of staff review, the City Recorder is required to submit the
application and a recommendation concerning endorsement to the Council for its
consideration. Changes to existing licenses must be processed in the same manner.

BACKGROUND

OLCC has received an application from Hacienda Vieja Mexican Restaurant located at
780 NW Garden Valley Boulevard #45 to add an “Off-Premises” license. Hacienda Vieja
Mexican Restaurant was previously approved by the Council at the January 25, 2021
meeting for a “Full On-Premises Commercial” license.

A. Council Action History. Chapter 9.12 requires Council to make a
recommendation to OLCC on the approval or denial of all liquor license
applications submitted by any establishment located inside City limits.

B. Analysis.  The Police Department previously conducted a background
investigation on the applicant and found no reason to deny the application.

C. Financial and/or Resource Considerations. The applicant has paid
the appropriate fee for City review of the application.

D. Timing Issues. The applicant is requesting endorsement from the Council
for immediate submittal to OLCC.

COUNCIL OPTIONS
Council may recommend OLCC approval of the application as submitted or recommend
denial based on OLCC criteria.


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

CONSENT AGENDA B
03/22/2021

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends Council approval of the application as submitted.

SUGGESTED MOTION

“I MOVE TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE OLCC ADDITIONAL LICENSE
APPLICATION FOR HACIENDA VIEJA MEXICAN RESTAURANT LOCATED AT 780
NW GARDEN VALLEY BOULEVARD #45 IN ROSEBURG, OREGON.”

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment #1 - Subject Application

cc: License Applicant w/copy of agenda
Jonathan Crowl and Amanda Cooper, OLCC Representatives
OLCC License File



CONSENT AGENDA B
ATTACHMENT #1



CONSENT AGENDA B
03/22/2021



DEPARTMENT ITEMS A

03/22/2021

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

WEST AVENUE WATER MAIN EXTENSION

BID AWARD RECOMMENDATION — 19WA04
Meeting Date: March 22, 2021 Agenda Section: Department Items
Department: Public Works Staff Contact: Brice Perkins, PW Director
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6730

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY
The City recently received bids for the West Avenue Water Main Extension project. The
issue for the City Council is whether to award the construction contract.

A. Council Action History.
On November 8, 2018, City Council awarded the West Avenue Water Main Extension
project design contract to Murraysmith.

B. Analysis.

There are two major transmission mains between the water treatment plant in Winchester
and the City’s main reservoir complex located on Bellview Court (Reservoir Hill). The
mains were installed in phases between 1934 and 2013. The existing transmission mains
vary in size from 20-inch to 30-inch and consist of various pipe materials. The 30-inch
transmission main terminates north of Reservoir Hill at West Avenue where it connects
back into the 24-inch transmission main. The 24-inch main then functions as a single
supply transmission main the remaining distance of approximately 1600 feet to the
storage facilities at Reservoir Hill. The adopted Water System Master Plan recommends
an extension of the 30-inch transmission main between West Avenue and Reservoir #7
in order to provide system redundancy to the reservoirs.

Murraysmith’s design calculations determined that a 24-inch pipeline extension was
adequate for current and future capacity of the Water Treatment Plant.

Five bids were received. They are summarized below:

# Bidder Total Bid Amount

1 Trench Line Excavation, Inc. $1,225,000.00

2 Black Pearl Paving & Excavation $1,101,944.00

3 Cradar Enterprise, Inc. $1,277,280.00

4 Laskey-Clifton Corp. $1,405,895.00

5 Emery & Sons Construction Group LLC $1,228.533.00
Engineer’s Estimate $ 1,457,027.00



http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

DEPARTMENT ITEMS A
03/22/2021

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
The FY 2020-21 Water Fund budget includes $2,000,000 for this project. The total project
costs are estimated below:

Design $ 240,805.00

Construction $ 1,101,944.00

Construction Mgt. Support (Murraysmith) $ 61,004.00

Construction Mgt. Support (i.e. Engineering) $ 34,560.00

Contingency  (7.5%) $ 82,645.80
$

Total 1,520,958.80

D. Timing Considerations.

If awarded, the Notice to Proceed would be issued in May after execution of the
construction contract. The contractor is allowed 120 calendar days to complete the
project.

COUNCIL OPTIONS
The Council has the following options:
1. Award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder, Black Pearl Paving &
Excavation, LLC, for $1,101,944.00; or
2. Request additional information; or
3. Reject all bids.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Funds have been budgeted and are available to construct the project. The bid appears
to be both responsive and responsible. The Public Works Commission discussed this
project at their March 11, 2021, meeting. The Commission unanimously recommended
awarding the project to the lowest responsible bidder, Black Pearl Paving & Excavation,
LLC, for $1,101,944.00. Staff concurs with this recommendation.

SUGGESTED MOTION
“I move to award the West Avenue Water Main Extension Project to the lowest
responsible bidder, Black Pearl Paving & Excavation, LLC, for $1,101,944.00.”

ATTACHMENTS:
None



DEPARTMENT ITEMS B
03/22/2021

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

CONTRACT AWARD - CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES WEST
AVENUE WATER MAIN EXTENSION- 19WAO04

Meeting Date: March 22, 2021 Agenda Section: Department Items
Department: Public Works Staff Contact: Brice Perkins, PW Director
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6730

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY

Staff recently negotiated a proposed scope and fee for limited construction management
(CM) services for the West Avenue Water Main Extension project with Murraysmith. The
issue for the Council is whether to award the construction management (CM) services
contract.

A. Council Action History.
On November 8, 2018, City Council awarded the West Avenue Water Main Extension
project design contract to Murraysmith.

B. Analysis.

Construction documents were completed in December 2020 and construction bids were
opened on March 4, 2021. Considering their role as the design engineer, staff negotiated
directly with Murraysmith for the CM services required for this project. It is anticipated that
construction will begin in May 2021.

The proposed scope of work includes project management and coordination, pre-
construction services, clarifications and interpretations, submittal review, request for
information support, weekly progress meetings, monthly site visits, preparation of record
drawings, and other miscellaneous services. Additionally, the scope of work includes
geotechnical and cathodic protection system support during construction.

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.

The FY 20-21 Water Capital budget includes $2,000,000 for this project. The cost of the
proposed construction management contract with Murraysmith is $61,004.00. Total
project costs are estimated below:


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

DEPARTMENT ITEMS B

03/22/2021
Design $ 240,805.00
Construction $1,101,944.00
Construction Mgt. (Murraysmith) $ 61,004.00
Construction Mgt. (i.e. Engineering) $ 34,560.00
Contingency  (7.5%) $ 82,645.80
Total $ 1,520,958.80
D. Timing Considerations.

The award of the construction project is on this same Council agenda. It is important to
identify how the resident observation will be achieved at this time.

COUNCIL OPTIONS
The Council has the following options:
1. Award a construction management services contract to Murraysmith for an amount
not to exceed $61,004.00; or
2. Request additional information; or
3. Recommend staff issue a Request for Proposals for the construction management
services.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Funds have been budgeted and are available for the proposed CM Services contract. The
Public Works Commission discussed this contract at their March 11, 2021, meeting. The
Commission unanimously recommended awarding the contract to Murraysmith for an
amount not to exceed $61,004.00. Staff concurs with this recommendation.

SUGGESTED MOTION

“I move to award the West Avenue Water Main Extension Construction
Management Services contract to Murraysmith for an amount not to exceed
$61,004.00.”

ATTACHMENTS:
None



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C
03/22/2021

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

HARRISON ST. - HARVARD AVE. STORM DRAIN IMPROVEMENTS
BID AWARD RECOMMENDATION - 20PW21

Meeting Date: March 22, 2021 Agenda Section: Department Items
Department: Public Works Staff Contact: Brice Perkins, PW Director
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6730

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY

The City recently received bids for the Harrison St. - Harvard Ave. Storm Drain
Improvements project. The issue for the City Council is whether to award the construction
contract.

A. Council Action History.
None.

B. Analysis.

The project consists of replacing approximately 325 linear feet of undersized 8-inch
concrete storm sewer pipe in Harrison Street where it crosses Harvard Avenue. Harrison
Street has a large flat low area with poor drainage and a history of standing water. The
2011 Roseburg Storm Water Master Plan identifies the area west of I-5 and east of Keady
Court as being a problem area where the storm drainage system is under capacity. In
2013, i.e. Engineering, Inc. performed a study of the area which included hydraulic
modeling and recommended improvements. One of the recommendations was to replace
the 8-inch storm drain on Harrison Street with larger capacity 12-inch storm drain.

Due to their familiarity with the storm system in this area, staff negotiated directly with i.e.
Engineering, Inc. to provide civil design services to develop construction drawings for this
project. Staff assembled the bid documents and special provisions. The project was
advertised for bid on February 2, 2021. Construction management will be provided by
staff.

One bid was received on February 23, 2021, and is summarized below:

# Bidder Total Bid Amount
1 | Black Pearl Paving & Excavation $ 205,604.00

Engineer’s Estimate $ 185,295.00



http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

DEPARTMENT ITEMS C
03/22/2021

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
Funds are available in the fiscal year 2021 Storm Drain Fund. The total project costs are
estimated below:

Design $ 16,410.00

Construction $ 205,604.00

Contingency (7.5%) $ 15,420.00

Total $ 237,434.00
D. Timing Considerations.

If awarded, the Notice to Proceed would be issued in April after execution of the
construction contract. The contractor is allowed 60 calendar days to complete the project.

COUNCIL OPTIONS
The Council has the following options:
1. Award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder, Black Pearl Paving &
Excavation, for $205,604.00; or
2. Request additional information; or
3. Reject all bids.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Funds have been budgeted and are available to construct the project. The bid appears to
be both responsive and responsible. The Public Works Commission discussed this
project at their March 11, 2021, meeting and unanimously recommended awarding the
project to the lowest responsible bidder, Black Pearl Paving & Excavation, for
$205,604.00. Staff concurs with this recommendation.

SUGGESTED MOTION

“Imove to award the Harrison St. - Harvard Ave. Storm Drain Improvements Project
to the lowest responsible bidder, Black Pearl Paving & Excavation, for
$205,604.00.”

ATTACHMENTS:
None



DEPARTMENT ITEMS D

03/22/2021

ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

2021 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAM — PHASE |
BID AWARD RECOMMENDATION - 21PWO01

Meeting Date: March 22, 2021 Agenda Section: Department Items
Department: Public Works Staff Contact: Brice Perkins, PW Director
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6730

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY

Construction bids were received for Phase | of the 2021 Pavement Management Program
(PMP) project. The issue for the City Council is whether to award the construction
contract.

A. Council Action History.
On September 23, 2019, Council awarded a new Five Year Pavement Management
Program engineering contract to Century West Engineering.

B. Analysis.

As part of the City’s annual pavement rehabilitation work, the City identified the
rehabilitation of Lincoln Street from Sunset Street to Malheur Avenue as the priority for
2021. The project consists of utility trench restoration, grinding and repaving 37 feet wide
and roughly 3,300 lineal feet of roadway and the replacement of 12 Americans with
Disabilities (ADA) ramps.

To encourage competitive bidding, staff divided this year's PMP project into phases.
Phase | will be constructed this fiscal year and consists of removing and replacing the 12
ADA ramps. Phase Il will bid later this spring for summer construction and will include
the 2” grind and inlay. Phase | of this project was advertised for bid on February 11, 2021.

Three bids were received on March 4, 2021, and are summarized below:

No. Bidder Total Bid Amount

1 Guido Construction, Inc. $185,897.00

2 Pacific Excavation $201,691.00

3 Brown Construction $248,386.00
Engineer’s Estimate $172,760.00



http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

DEPARTMENT ITEMS D
03/22/2021

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.
The FY 20-21 Transportation Fund budget includes $1,522,500.00 for capital

improvements. To date $1,095,897.00 has been expended. Total project costs are
estimated below.

Construction $ 185,897.00

Construction Mgt. Support (Century West) $ 16,391.00

Construction Mgt. Support (i.e. Engineering) $ 18,720.00

Contingency (5% of const.) $ 9,294.85

Total Estimated Costs $ 230,302.85
D. Timing Considerations.

If awarded, the Notice to Proceed would be issued in April. The contractor is allowed 90
calendar days to complete the project.

COUNCIL OPTIONS
The Council has the following options:
1. Award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder, Guido Construction, Inc. for
$185,897.00; or
2. Request additional information; or
3. Reject all bids.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Funds have been budgeted and are available to construct the project. The bid appears
to be both responsive and responsible. The Public Works Commission discussed this
project at their March 11, 2021, meeting and unanimously recommended awarding the
project to the lowest responsible bidder, Guido Construction, Inc., for $185,897.00. Staff
concurs with this recommendation.

SUGGESTED MOTION
“Imove to award the 2021 Pavement Management Program — Phase | Project to the
lowest responsible bidder, Guido Construction, Inc., for $185,897.00.”

ATTACHMENTS:
None



DEPARTMENT ITEMS E

03/22/2021
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY
RESIDENT OBSERVATION MASTER CONTRACT AWARD
Meeting Date: March 22, 2021 Agenda Section: Department Items
Department: Public Works Staff Contact: Brice Perkins, PW Director
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6730

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY

The City has several construction projects scheduled for this summer. The issue for the
Council is whether to authorize a master contract to provide resident observation
(inspection) services for multiple projects.

A. Council Action History.
City Council awarded Resident Observation Master Contracts to i.e. Engineering, Inc. on
April 23, 2018, and May 13, 2019.

B. Analysis.

Staff's intent is to execute a master contract with i.e. Engineering, Inc. for resident
observation services. Each task order under the master contract would be individually
negotiated, based on an agreed upon scope of work. Work that would be accomplished
under this contract is field inspection services for construction projects. Staff has
determined that entering into a contract with i.e. Engineering, Inc. is the most cost
effective method to provide field inspection services required to successfully complete the
projects currently scheduled this construction season.

At this time, staff intends to utilize this contract for inspection services on the West Avenue
Water Main Extension, Phase | of the Lincoln Street Improvements, and the 24” Water
Transmission Main from Hooker Rd. to Isabell Ave. projects.

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.

It is staff’s intent to enter into a master contract and negotiate task orders as required on
a project by project basis. A new task order will be negotiated for each project, and the
cost for these services will be included in the overall project cost and will be funded
accordingly. Any task orders over $50,000.00 will require approval from the City Council
after a recommendation by the Public Works Commission. The combined value of all
task orders will not exceed $100,000.00.


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

DEPARTMENT ITEMS E
03/22/2021

D. Timing Considerations.

Two of the three projects for which this contract may be utilized have been bid and are
ready for award. It is important to identify how the resident observation will be achieved
at this time.

COUNCIL OPTIONS
The Council has the following options:
1. Award a master contract for resident observation services to i.e. Engineering, Inc.;
or
2. Request additional information; or
3. Recommend not moving forward with the master contract at this time.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The Public Works Commission discussed this contract at their March 11, 2021, meeting
and unanimously recommended that the Council award a master engineering contract for
resident observation services to i.e. Engineering, Inc. for an amount not to exceed
$100,000. Staff concurs with this recommendation.

SUGGESTED MOTION
“I move to award a master engineering contract for resident observation services

to i.e. Engineering, Inc. for an amount not to exceed $100,000.”

ATTACHMENTS:
None



INFORMATIONAL A

03/22/2021
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY
CITY MANAGER ACTIVITY REPORT
Meeting Date: March 22, 2021 Agenda Section: Informational
Department: Administration Staff Contact: Nikki Messenger, City Manager
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number: 541-492-6866

ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY

At each meeting, the City Manager provides the City Council with a report on the activities
of the City, along with an update on operational/personnel related issues which may be
of interest to the Council. These reports shall be strictly informational and will not require
any action on the Council’s part. The reports are intended to provide a mechanism to
solicit feedback and enhance communication between the Council, City Manager and City
Staff. For your March 22, 2021 meeting, the following items are included:

. Department Head Meeting Agendas
. Tentative Future Council Agenda ltems
. City Manager Weekly Messages


http://www.cityofroseburg.org/

INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A
ATTACHMENT #1



	Agenda Page
	4A - Child Abuse Prevention Month Proclamation
	4B - National Library Week Proclamation
	4C - Budget Committee Appointments
	4C Attachment #1 - Kelly Peter Application
	4C Attachment #1 - Stephen Krimetz Application
	5A - Parks and Recreation Commission Appointment
	5A Attachment #1 - Mike Baker Application
	5A Attachment #2 - Tobiah Mogavero Application
	7A - Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan Presentation
	7A - Attachment #1 - 2021 Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan Document
	8A - March 8, 2021 Meeting Minutes
	8B - OLCC Additional License for Hacienda Vieja Mexican Restaurant
	8B Attachment #1 - Hacienda's application
	10A - West Avenue Water Main Extension Bid Award Recommendation
	10B - Contract Award for Construction Management Services West Avenue Water Main Extension
	10C - Harrison St. - Harvard Ave. Storm Drain Improvements Bid Award
	10D - 2021 Pavement Management Program - Phase 1 Bid Award Recommendation
	10E -Resident Observation Master Contract Award
	Informational A - City Manager Activity Report
	Untitled

	Name: Mogavero
	First: Tobiah
	Home Address: 1920 NW Lynwood St., Roseburg, OR 
	ZIp: 97471
	Phone Number: 435-210-0509
	Cell Phone: 435-210-0509
	Email Address: tobiahm78@yahoo.com
	Occupation: Environmental Programs Manager
	undefined: Roseburg VA
	Business Address: 913 NW Garden Valley Blvd., Roseburg, OR 97471
	Text6: 541-440-1000 x40305
	Group7: Choice1
	Group8: Choice3
	Check Box8: Yes
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Please Specify: 
	Group9: Choice1
	Text1: Personal experience includes: 20 years of environmentally related work such as trail construction and maintenance, community development, tourism; expedition guiding, timber sale planning, wildlife habitat management, and heavy equipment operation within federal forest lands; a Bachelor's degree in Environmental Studies and a Master's of Science in Environmental management. Current job duties include the planning, analysis and management of the following environmental programs: natural resources, waste water, storm water; pesticides, hazardous waste, underground storage tanks. 
	Text2: Involvement includes a member of Source One Serenity veterans community group (trail maintenance, outdoor activities and community outreach); the co-chair of the Roseburg VA Green Environmental Management Systems Committee (regulatory compliance, project planning and analysis).

Activities include: landscaping, mountain biking, hiking, fly-fishing, running and yoga.
	Text3: The generation  and management of waste streams within city parks; 
The sustainable development of city property to accommodate multiple use;
Community outreach;
Community event planning.

 
	Text4: I desire appointment to this position because I am a highly motivated to sustainably develop the community. I love hard work and collaboration with others who have vastly different ideas.  I thrive on adversity and the challenges of winning the hearts and minds of numerous stakeholders. I believe Roseburg is ripe for gaining personal and professional experience in land development and stewardship. I respect and value the longstanding traditions established within this timber community. With my experience I see these traditions preserved  while assisting to add an abundance of new recreation opportunities, right here within city limits.
	Date: 2/6/2021
	SUBMIT FORM: 


